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Section 1 | Overview

Who we are

Serco makes a difference to the lives of militons of people around
the world.

Our customers are national and local governments and leading
companies We have more than 50 years’ experience of helping
them to achieve their goals

By focusing on the needs of the people they serve, we enable our
customers to deliver better outcomes Qur frontline delivery involves
us in vital areas of public life, including providing safe transport,
finding sustainable jobs for the long-term unemployed, helping
patients recaver more quickly, improving the local environment,
rehabilitating offenders, protecting borders and supporting

the armed forces

We also manage crucial business processes for both public and private
sector organisations This frees them to focus on their core operations,
while delivering tangible benefits to their customers — from faster
mortgage approvals to better online shopping

The long-term dnivers of our markets include public service reform,
developing economies’ investment in services and infrastructure, and
our customers’' need to deliver the best end-user experience They want
a partner who gives them confidence through consistent delivery, who
can anticipate and adapt to change, and who can understand what they
want to achieve across their organisation They value our fresh thinking
and the collaborative and imaginative way we work We also look for
opportunities to leverage our scale to our customers' advantage

Serco 1s a values-led company and our culture and ethos are at
the heart of everything we do We give our people responsibility,
s0 they can put their ideas into practice and make a real difference
Our approach has made us one of the world's leading service
companies and our vision IS to be the world's greatest

Qur service ethos means that our customers come back to us
again and again. These long-term relationships help us to meet
their changing needs and to do what we do best

...bringing service to life
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Section 1 | Overview

Serco in brief

What we offer

Serco improves the qualty, rehabiity and efficiency of services that matter
to milions of peopla around the world, by managing people, processes,
technology and assets We help our customers focus ther precious
resources on what they do best, confident that they can rely on us to

do what we do best in the moments that matter

Feor the public sector, we deliver essential fronthne services to detence,
transport, justice and health customers in national, state and local
governments For the private sector, we handle customer contact and
business activities for financial, retail, travel and telecoms companies

Our vision and strategy
Our vision 1s to be the world's greatest service company This 1s
a company that

® customers see as a hallmark of quality, so they want to be associated

with us, tell others about us, and talk proudly about what we do for them

@ attracts the best talent in the world, where people can be challenged,
rewarded and achieve therr full potential, in a great culture that is
respected by our peers

@ communities welcome as a partner, because they know that we care
and can use our talents and reach to solve the toughest problems
they face, and

® INveslors see as a great share lo own because they trust us to
delver growth, excellent earnings visibility and stable cash flows

Qur strategy for achieving this wision has three elements

1 Bullding a balanced portfolic we aim to have a contract portfalio
that is strong and diverse, and that 1s appropnately balanced between
public and private sector customers, fronthine and middle/back office
business process outsourcing (BPO), and developed and developing
economies This allows us to select the most attractive growth
opportunities, including making acquisitiens that support our organic
growth We also actively manage our portiolio, to ensure it continues

to fit our strategy and has approprate levels of performance and returns

2 Driving improved service and margin as Serco grows, we will
ncreasingly have opportunities to transfer our capabilihes around the
world, so that more of our capabilites are available to more of our
customners and best practice is fully shared With this increasing
scale comes the chance to dnve economies, In particular through
the efficsency of shared services and commaon processes
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3 Enhancing cur people and enabling strategles our people
strategy I1s designed to ensure we have the nght people m the nght place,
at the nght tme We also look to have the right systems to support our
business, and to actively manage our brand and reputation

Corporate responsibility ({CR} 15 a fundamental part of the way we work
influencing everything from the markets we choose to the way we manage
and develop our people

For more on our strategy, see pages 14 to 15 Morte on our approach
to CR, including our people strategy and performance, ¢an be found
on pages 66 to 77

Our track record of success

Serco has along track record of success This flows directly from
delivening the best possible service for our customers, whichis
recognised by others in the many awards we win for service excellence
Since we listed n 1988, we have consistently grown our revenue and
broadened our portfolio, positicning us in faster growth and more
profitable matkets, while lmiting the impact, | any, of our markets
become challenging At the same time, we have continually Jooked

to enhance our effictency and to invest for the future

For more on our recent performance, see the Operating Review
on pages 40 to 57 and the Finance Review on pages 58 to 65

The future

Customers around the waorld are looking for efficient, high quahty
and innovative service provision, from frontine delivery to back office
efficiency This creates opportuntties for Serco in new and existing
markets Qur prospects are supported by the high revenue wisibility
provided by ourarder book, our pipeline of opportunities and the
growth potential we see across our markeis

For more on our markets and opportunities, see the Operating
Review on pages 40 to 57




Our business

The following pages describe our operations around the world

In January 2012, we announced a new divisional structure, which
created our Global Services division and amalgamated our UK
and European operations into a single division More information
on the reorganisation can be found on pages 23 and 24

For more on the services provided by each of our divisions
is included in the Operating Review which begins on page 40

Serca Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012 | 03




Section 1 | Overview

UK & Europe

2012 revenue - ongoling activities

£2,494m

+2%

2011 £2,434m

UK & Europe provides frontline
services iIn Home Affarrs,
Health, Transport & Local
Direct Services, and Defence
and Science

For more information on our UK &
Europe division, see pages 40 to 45
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Home Affalrs

Serco s a leading custedral accommodation provider, operating five adult prisons in England
and Scotland These include HMP & YOI Doncaster which is piloting Payment by Resuilts,

a key compoenent of the Government's strategy to reduce re-offending, and HMP Thameside,
one of the world’s most technologically advanced prisons We also run a young offender
institution and a secure training centre

We prowvide prisoner escort and custody services, and electronically monitor defendants

and offenders subject to home curfew In partnership with the London Probation Trust,

we deliver Community Payback, which requires offenders to do unpaid work for the
community On behalf of the Home Cffice we run two immigration removal centres and
provide technology services for border control and secunty We also provide accommaodation
and franspon services for asylum apphcants in the North West of England, Scotland and
Northern ireland

On the Work Programme, Serco and its partners are placing thousands of jobseekers into
sustainable employment A Serco-led consortium operates the National Citizen Service,
enabling 16 and 17-year-olds to develop skills through projects that contribute o society

Health

Serco delivers GP out-of-hours seraces in Cornwall, and provides a comprehensive range
of clinical services at Bramtree Community Hospital and in the community in Suffolk

We are one of the UK's leading suppliers of occupational health serices and the largest
independent provider of custodtal health serices We are also a major supplier of support
services to a number of UK hospitals Our GSTS Pathology joint venture 1s the UK's leading
independent pathology services provider

Transport & Local Direct Services

We are a key prowder of ransport services in the UK With our partner Abellio, we operate
both Northern Rail, the UK's largest train franchise, and Merseyrail the UK's most punctual
train operator in London, we run the Docklands Light Raitway, the Barclays Cycle Hire
scheme and traffic management operations, supporing growth in regular journeys as well
as major events such as the London Marathon, the Diamond Jubilee and the 2012 Clympic
Games We also prowide lifeline freight and passenger terry services to the Northern isles
in Scotland

Serco provides environmental services and manages lessure facihtes for local councils,
community leisure trusts and universities across Batan Qur environmental services include
refuse collection, recycling, street cleansing and grounds mantenance Our leisure business
provides a comprehensive range of health, leisure, fitness, well-being and community
focused services

Defence & Science

Serco provides training engineering and operational support to the Royal Ar Force

the Army Air Corps and the Royal Navy's Fleet Air Arm We also support the Royal Navy's
three main UK bases and operate and mamntain strategic assets such as secure satellite
communications, the Defence Academy of the United Kingdom, the Emergency Planming
College and the UK's ballistic rissile early warning system

We provide systems engineenng, safety assurance and nsk management services,
and support the essential research camed out at the Defence Science and Technology
Laboratory (Dstl) Our joint venture with Lockheed Martin and Jacobs Engineering
manages the Atomic Weapons Establishment, which provides the warheads for the
UK's nuclear deterrent
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Americas

2012 revenue

£753m

-13%

2011 £868m

Our Amerncas business provides
professional, technology and
management services focused
pnmanly on the US Federal
Government, including every
branch of the military, key
civiian agencies and the
intelhgence community

For more information on our Amerncas

division, see pages 46 to 49
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We have a 16-year track record as the largest Netwerk and Information Technology {IT)
design, engineenng and installation contractor and one of the largest systems engmneenng
and techmcal assistance contractars for the US Arr Force Space Command, supporting a
wide range of military satellite systems, missile defence systems, command and control
systems and missicn essential networks and IT systems worldwide We install and test
communtcations and data networking systems {or shore, ship and submarnne installations
for the US Navy and prowvide logistics support for the Navy's anti-submanne and undersea
warfare capabiites Through advanced economic cost analysts, we are helping the Nawy to
reduce procurement costs We assist a mayor intelligence agency to acquire next generation
IT systems We are managing base closures for US forces in Afghanistan and upgrading
communications systems for the Mine Resistant Ambush Protected vehicles which protect
soldiers from improvised explosive devices We designed and installed nuclear materals
detection systems at over 70 locations in 18 countnes as part of the United States’ “second
Iine of defence”

Serco has helped more than two millon Veterans to start or advance therr civilian careers
through career counselling, employment workshops and job fars We provided personnel
and family suppon services to over two million military personnel and therr families and
designed the software and operate the systems data centres and call centres used by
over four million federal employees to manage their retrement savings plans

In 2012, Serco processed 32 millionwisa transacticns for the Department of State and
managed more than eight millkon apphcation case files for the Department of Homeland
Securty We have helped speed the review of patent applications by automating the
pre-classification of nearly two mithon US patents over the past six years

Serco manages arr traffic control services at 64 towers across the US, ensunng the safe
transport of nearly nene mulion commercial aircralt passengers a year, and in 2012 received
an award for reducing aircraft delays by 98% In Canada we provide dniver examination
services at approximately 100 locations across Ontano, and deliver faciliies managerment
services at the Canadian Armed Forces Base in Goose Bay




AMEAA

2012 revenue

£883m

+31%

2011 £672m

AMEAA consists of Australasia,
the Middle East, Asia and Africa,
where we provide services
inctuding transport, justice,
immigration, health, defence
and other direct services such
as facilities management

For more information on our AMEAA

dvsion see pages 50 to 53

In Australia, Serco I1s an intelligent integrator of people, processes, equipment and
technology for the Australian Defence Farce We recently strengthened our ofienng by
acquinng the remaining 50% of DMS Mantime, one of the largest manne services prowiders
In Australla Qur work in justice and corrections, focused on reducing reoffending, has been
recognised by numerous industry and government awards In health, we draw on Serce’s
global and regional expertise in pronding qualdy clinical and non-clinical services We are
responsible for integrating faciiies management and support services for Western Australia’s
flagship Fiona Stanley Hospital, which will cpen in 2014 We work with the Australian
Department of immugration and Ciizenship to run its national network of immigraton centres
and have helped to transform its services In transport, we offer every facet, from operating
customer senvices and processing information to developing and mamntaining infrastructure
Seico also owns Great Southern Rail, which operates Auslialia’s rconic trains, the Indian
Pacific and the Ghan

In New Zealand, we manage Mt Eden Corrections Facility, which i1s currently the country’s
only privately operated prison, and are part of the consortium chosen to build and operate
a new prison at Win, South Auckland, under a public-private partnershup

In Hong Kong we are a market leader in managing, operating and mantaining road
tunnels and retated tollways infrastructure The Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management
gave us an award for excellence for our operation of EcoPark, Hong Kong's first recychng
industnal park

The Middle East 1s home to some of Serco's longest standing aviation contracts We are
also the region’s largest international player i surface transport Most notably, we operate
the Dubal Metro the world's longest and most-advanced daverless ight rail system

Our technology business serves the telecommunications manne and bromedical seclors,
and we provde integrated facilities management to the education and commercial sectors

In India, Serco has signed dis first fronthine serace contract to operate and maintain the
new Bus Rapid Transit System, in the city of Indore 10 the state of Madhya Pradesh
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Serco Global
Services

2012 revenue - ongoing activities

£702m
+41%

2011 £497m

Serco Global Services brings together
our customer contact, middle and
back office skills, allowing us to provide
broad end-to-end business process
outscurcing (BPO) services to public
and private sector customers We are
among the world's leading global BPO
businesses, and the combination of our
BPO expertise and frontline services
sets us apart from other prowiders
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Serco Global Services operates inmore than 100 locations across 13 countries, and
employs 60,000 people We conduct more than 90 milion multi-channel interactions

In 20 kanguages around the globe every year, as well as 600 milhon calls and 60 milion
back office transactions Our wadespread presence allows our customers to choose
the onshore, nearshore or offshore delivery location that best matches thex skill and
cost requirements

We offer three lines of service - BPQ, consuling and technology services Our specialist
teams address customers’ needs across functions including HR, finance and accounting,
procurement, customer services and consuling We provide advisory, design and
delivery expertise in the areas of operations strategy transformation, pregramme delivery
outsourcing, people performance and selection, change management and research

We are also experts in handiing large workforce wransfers and managing confidental data

Qur solutions are industry-specific, for customers in Banking & Financial Services,
Insurance, Retall, Travel, Telecoms, Utlies, Heatthcare and the public sector We builld
customised solutions assisted by industry experts, whether our customer 1s a bank
looking to improve the qualty of its mortgage portfolio, a aity council with a need to
transform its local services or an arlne wanting to reduce s costs

For more information on our Global
Services division see pages 54 to 57
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How we performed — 201 2 highlights

Well placed for future growth following excellent achievements in 2012.

Record level of contract wins and excellent

operational performance
e £58bn of awards (2011 £5 1bn), iIncrease in order book to £19 1bn
(2011 £17 9bn)

& High revenue visibility (92% for 2013, 79% for 2014 and 70% for 2015)

o Excellent service delivery across existing operations and major new
contracts progressing well

Strong financial result for the year
& Total revenue growth of 5 7% to £4 8bn, growth of 6 2% at
constant currency

& Organic growth of 3 3%, with excellent performances in AMEAA
{up 22%) and Global Services (up 12%)

@ Adjusted operating profit growth of 9 9% at constant currency, margin
increase from 6 2% to 6 4%

o Adjusted earnings per share growth of 7 5% 1o 42 55p, growth of 8 7%
at constant currency

e Group free cash flow of £181 2m, with an exceptionally strong
conversion rate of profits in the second half

& Proposed 2012 {otal dividend of 10 10p, up 20%, increase reflects new
policy 1o accelerate dmidend growth on the path to a higher payout ratio

Greater exposure to international growth markets

and sectors

& Growth prospects further underpinned by entry nto new countnes,
services and private sector industries

& 31% total revenue growth in AMEAA increases region’s exposure
to 18% of the Group's portfolio

® 40% total revenue growth in our global Business Process Outsourcing
(BPO) business increases nen-frontline services to 15% of the
Group’s portfolio

® These achievements, together with a return to organic growth in the UK,
more than offset US challenges

Naotes

Strategic position further improved through ongoing

proactive portfolio management

¢ Additional capabilities and market access from infill acquisitions such
as Vertex and DMS Mantime

& Exits from non-core operations reflect our ongoing focus on strategic fit,
performance and returns

@ Leading BPO position after full integration of operations and successful
taunch of Global Services division

Extensive pipeline demonstrates attractive

growth opportunities

e Estimated £31bn pipeline reflects growing demand for etficient,
high qualty and iInnovative services

@ Positive developments opening up more fronthne services markets,
exciting new opportunities in AMEAA

o Good longer term opportunities in Americas, beyond the current tough
US federal contracting environment

o Excellent growth prospects in the global BPO market with both private
and public sector customers

Confident of further growth and continued resilience

of the Group

@ Strength of portfolio prowides resilience and enhances growth potential

» Group well posiioned follewing excetlent strategic and orgarisational
progress n 2312

@ For 2013, expect a modest improvement in organic growth and
operating margin {0 be broadly maintaned

e Beyond 2013, planrung for continued delivery of strong
financial periormance

# Confidence in outlook and strength of financial position underpin
plans for tugher dividend payout rato

Ongoing actvties excludes the financial results of subsidianes and operations disposed of dunng the year being nuclear consutting services defence-related German operatons education software

and UK data hosting operations

Adjusted cperating peofit is bafore amorugabon of intangibles arising on acquisitions acquishor-related costs ard exceptonal tems {being profits of losses on disposals of subsidianes and

operations, and the one-off payment 1o the ch

big foundation) as shown on the face of the Group s consolid

and the wing notes Adjpusted profit

d ncormte

before tax 13 also before the exceptonal gan ans;yg from the step acquisiaon accounting for the DMS joint venture in Austrafia

Adjusted eamings per shara 1s calculated on the basis of earnings before amortisation of Intangibles ansing on acquisiions acquisrion-elated costs and exceptional items as noted above

together with the tax effect of these adjusting items

Group free cash flow 15 free cash flow from subsidianes and dedends receved from joint venturas and I$ reconciled to mavements in cash and cash equivalents in Section 3 of the Finance Review

Performance at constant currency has been calculated by ranslatng non-Sterding revenue and eamings for the year 10 31 December 2012 into Sterling at the average exchange rates for 2011

The order book reflects the value ot tuture revenues based on all exssting signed contracts It excludes contracts at tha pratered tiader stage and excludes the award of new Indefinite Delivery
Indetrita Quantity IDIQ} contract vehiclas and Multiple Award Centracts {(MACs) where Serco 1s one of a number of compenies able to bid for $pecific task orders 1ssusd undar tha 1DIQ or MAC

The value of any task order 1s recogrised within the order book when subseguently won

The pipeline is the estimated value of all future potential oppartuties that ara deady defined and entfiable

10 | Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012




Revenue

Adjusted operating profit

Operating profit

£4,913.0m
+5.7%

£314.8m
+8.5%

£287.6m
+8.0%

2011 £4,646 4m

2011 £290 1m

2011 £266 2m

Adjusted profit before tax

Profit before tax

Adjusted earnings per share

£278.1m
+6.1%

£302.0m*
+26.7%

42.55p
+7.5%

2011 £262 2m

2011 £238 3m

* Includes the mpact of exceptional tems,
principally the £51 1m non-cash gain ansing
from the step acquisition accounting for the

2011 3959

DMS joint venture in Australa

Earnings per share

Dividend per share

Group free cash flow

49.94p

+39.9% +20%

10.10p

£181.2m
+£12.9m

2011 3570p 2011 8 40p

*Serco improves the quality and efficiency of services that matter to
millions of people arcund the world, helping our customers to focus their
precious resources on what they do best To continue developing our
business we are providing mare suppaort lo our existing customers,
offering more to emerging markets and improving our ability to provide
maore complex services Thus has resulted in a strong year for us in 2012
despite some very real challenges we won more work than ever, we
entered new markets, we built more capabilities and we established a
global BPO business Qur unique breadth and depth leaves us strongly
positioned to meet the growing demand from around the werld for our
skills and services This confidence in our business prospects underping
our new dividend policy and commitment to a lhigher payout ratio over
the coming years

2011 £168 3m

| am also enormously proud of the achuevements of our 120,000 people
around the world and with ther support, 1n celebration of our 25th
anniversary, we have launched the Serco Foundation te help charities
and other organisations make an even bigger smpact on some of the
world's most cntical 1ssues "

Christopher Hyman, Chief Executive
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Section 2 | Our business

Our business model

At the heart of our business model is a set of key strengths, which enable us to compete effectively and
create value for our shareholders and other stakeholders These competitive advantages denve from our
broad contract portfolio, our devolved structure and robust management system, our people and values,
and our focus on delivering the best for our customers.

Our strategy {see page 14) builds on and reinforces these strengths, enabling us to deliver growth and

value creation into the future

Broad portfolio

Qur uriquely broad portfolio 1s diversified by market and geography
This allows us io pick the best opportunities, in whichever market

or country they occur

Our breadth alsc allows us to transter skills honedin one market

to other markets around the world, opening up new opporiunities
And we can bring together unique combinations of skills from across
the Group, for example by joining our fronthne semces with our

BPO capabilities

Customer focus
Delivening excellent service for
our customers and the public
1s at the heart of our approach
It enables us to build long-term
relationships, which help us to
grow our contracts and retain
them at retnd It also contnbutes
to our reputation, helping us to
win new work and enter new
markets We use our 50 years'
expenence 10 bnng fresh
perspectives to customers’
praoblems, for example by
creating new contracting

or partnership models

Value
creation

Devolved structure

By devolving responsibility and
decision making to the contract
level, we empower our people
to delver excellent service

The Serco Management
System provides a robust
system of control, to ensure
these detisions are also in
Serceo’s best interests

Devolving responsibility also
makes our business scalable,
allowing us to successfully
manage our growing

contract portfolio

People and values

Serco is a pecple-based business, so we employ and develop
excellent people with a strong service ethos

We also have a deeply iIngrained set of values, which are
encapsulated in our Governing Pnnciples and owr approach to CR
Our people embody those values, ensunng they are reflected n
every decision we take These values help us to actin the nght way,
so we protect the interests of our stakeholders and Serco

Qur competitive environment
Our business model makes us a strong competitor in our chosen markets

Competition 1s necessary for our markets to operate as i encourages

customers to put services out to tender, provides a benchmark to ensure
they are getting best value and drives innovation
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Our business breadth means we have a large number of competitors for
both public and private sector contracts These competitors are pnmanly
companies but for government contracts they can include pubkc sector
and voluntary bodies As we enter new markets, we meet compelitors
who specialise inthose areas While we see effective competitors in
every markel, no orgarisation competes with us in all of them and only
afew operate in more than one

.




A values-led business

Serco could not succeed without the skill and dedication of our people around the world They embody
our culture and our values, which underpin the way we run the Group Our values, which are encapsulated
in our Governing Principles, inform every decision we make. They ensure that we deliver the excellent

service on which our success depends.

The Governing Principles are integral to the Serco Management System (SMS), which 1s our mandatory
management framework within which all parts of Serco must operate. Each policy area in the SMS reflects
one or more of our Governing Principles, which means that working within the SMS ensures we are living

our values

Our Governing Principles

1 We foster an entrepreneurial culture

We are passionate about building innovative and
successful Serco businesses We succeed by
encouraging and generating new 1eas We trust our
people to deliver We embrace change and, by taking
measured nsks, encourage creative thinking

3 We deliver our promises

We do what we say we will do to meet expectations
We only promise what we can deliver [f we make
rmistakes we put them nght We are clear about what
we need to achieve and we expect to make a fair profit

2 We enable our people to excel

Our success comes from cur commitment and energy
to go the extra mile We are responsible to each other
and can expect support when we need it most We
expect our people to achieve more by recognising and
harnessing the power of individuals We value people
for thewr knowledge, \deas and potental to contribute

4 We build trust and respect

We build respect by operating in a safe, socially
responsible, consistent and honest manner We never
compromise on safety and we always operate in an
ethical and responsible manner We listen In doing
s0, we treat others as we would wish to be treated
ourselves and challenge when we see something

1s wrong We integrate with our communities

Sergo Group ple | Annual report and accounts 2012 | 13




Section 2 | Our business
Our strategy

Setting our strategic direction

We regularly review our strategy to ensure it remains appropriate and
reflects the opportuniies we see ahead of us This led us to refresh our
strategy In 2012, resulting in a strategic approach that remains centred
on organic growth while also emphasising the factors that will support
that growth — service quality, efficiency, people development and our
systems and infrastructure

Our Group strategy
Serco's Group strategy has three paris

The starting pont for setting our strategy 1s our corporate plan, which
defines the Group’s medium-term direction and cutlines the cppaortunihes
and challenges we face in getuing there Our divisions then create
strategies that enable us to achieve this plan by taking the actions
necessary to succeed In ther markets The dwisionat strategies are

then aggregeated to preduce the strategy for the Group as a whole

Strategy Description

Building a We aim to have a strong and diverse contract portiohio that (s

balanced approprately balanced between public and private sector customers,

portfolio frontine and BPO services, and developed and developing economies
This reduces our exposure 1o market fluctuations, enables us to select
the best opporunties wherever they anse, and allows us to {ransfer
expertise from one market to another
We tocus on sevices and markets where we can develop deep expertise,
underpinning our growth and allowing us to offer the same sefvices to
customers around the world This approach will increasingly enable us
to apply commen processes and dnve economies of scale
To support our organic growth, we make acquisitions that enhance our
existing business or enable us to enter new markets or geographies
Our proactive portfolio management also involves ongoing assessment
of our contracts for therr strategic fit, together with therr expected
performance and returns

Driving As Serco grows, we look for opportunities to transter our capabiliies

improved around the wordd, so that all of our capabilities are avalable to all

service of our customers With this increasing scale comes the chance to

and margin dnve economies, through shared services and commaon processes
We therefore look to share global best practices and maxmise the
efficiency of our operations

Enhancing To support our growth, 1t s essential that we have the nght people,

our people in the nght place, at the nght time Our people strategy aims to develop

and enabling the leadershup we will need, to have integrated and engaged people

strategies who bring service to ife, and to make 1t easter to manage our pecple
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by continually enhancing our systems and processes

We also look to have the night information technology to support our
business, and 1o actrvely manage our brand and reputation, which is
Increasingly imporiant as we enter new markets




A responsible business

Serco 1s a values-led organisation and corporate responstbility 1s

a consistent theme runming through owr strategy Acting respansibly
enables us to be a better, more efiicient business and a good corporate
atizen that benefits society in numerous ways

Our approach to responsible bustness influences everything from the
markets we choose to the way we manage and develop our people

It helps us to deliver excellent service by ensunng we keep our people
safe and secure, and iImproves our efficiency by encouraging us to

Key achievements in 2012

Delvered revenue growth of 6%

Nearly half of Group revenue now generated outside the UK and 15%
from BPO

Continued to win a wide range of contracts in new and existing markets,
including entenng new countries in the Middle East, fronthne services
in India, and new service lInes such as community healthcare

Concluded a rearganisation that created our first global business,
Serco Global Services, and a single UK & Eurgpe dmision

Acquired Vertex's UK public sector BPO operations and the cutstanding
50% of DMS Mantime in Australa

Disposed of a number of businesses that were non-core 1o the Group's
development These were our UK nuclear technical consulting services,
education software and UK data hosting operations, and the majonty
of our mainly defence-retated operations in Germany

Continued to deliver high quality services to customers Of particular
note was the performance of our contracts supporting the London
Olympic Games and major new contracts which started during the year

Achieved an Adjusted operating profit margin of 6 4%, up from 6 2%
n 2011

Completed a recrganisation which is delivering ethciencies, such as our
internal shared service centre now operated by Serco Global Services

Evaluated our leaders to ensure the composition of our top 500 leaders
now properly reflects the international nature of our business

Worked to better understand the link between customer advocacy
and employee engagement

tndertook our annual global employee survey, gving us important
insights INto how we can improve the working expenence at Serco

Completed Serco's first ever global software implementation, providing
arange of self-service HR tools for both managers and employees

reduce our energy and resource use which at the same time mitigates
our enmironmental impact We also look to engage with our communiies
which helps our custormers achieve their aims and makes us a welcome
partner In tackling community problems This directly contibutes to our
ability to wan and retain contracts, while strving to contnbute positively
to the communities in which we work

For more information on our approach 1o corporate responstbility
and our performance, see pages 66 to 77
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Section 2 | Our business

Key performance indicators (KPls)

We use the following KPIs to monitor our performance over time They are split between financial

and non-financial measures

Financial

Revenue {£mj}

Definition

Revenue represents the amounts due for goods and services we provided
dunng the year, and includas our share of revenue from joint ventures,

net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Relevance to strategy

Our revenus growth flows directly from successful mplementaton of all three
aspects of our strategy - a balanced portfolo of growth opportunies, delivenng
mmproved service for customers and ensunng we have the nght people systems
and processes

Parformance

The 5 7% growth in the year represents a good performance aganst gur
strategic objectives, particulardy given the challenging condrtions we faced
In certain markets, most notably the US federal contracting industry

Adjusted operating profit (Em)

Definition

Adjusted operating profit 1s before amortisation of intangibles arising on
acquisitions acquisition-related costs and exceptional iems (being profits
or fosses on disposals of subsidianes and operatons and the one-off
payment to establish the chantable Foundation)

Relevance to strategy

Our Adjusted operating profit reflects our atility to win and retan contracts
with approprtate margins our success at drving an improved margin through
efficient operations and our proactive portfollo management to ensure
appropnate periormance and retuns

Performance
The growth of 8 5% represents an increase i margin from 6 2% 10 6 4%

Ad)justed earnings per share (EPS) {p)

Defintion

Adjusted earmings per share 1s calculated on the basis of eamings before
amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisibons, acquistion-related costs
and exceptional items as noted above together with the tax efiect of these
adjusting itermns

Relevance to strategy

Adjusted EPS reflects our abity to deliver a financial performance that grows
bath our revenue and our Adjusted operating profit margin, together with the
strength of funding and overall inancial posibion

Performance
The 7 5% growth demonstrates the delivery of a strong financial resuft for 2012
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Group frea cash flow {£m)

Definition
Group free cash flow is the free cash flow from subsidianes and ddends
receved from joint ventures

Relevance to strategy
Group free cash flow reflects our abidy to driva a financial performance that
generates the funds to Invest in our fulure growth and strategic development

Parformance
The Group Iree cash flow for the year represents a continued strong conversion
of profits into tunds to INvest in our future




Non-financlal

Reportable incident rate (per 100,000 employees)

Dafinition

Reportable incidents include work-related fatalities, major njuries, munes
resulting in absences from work of more than three days, work-related diseases
and near mess incidents The rate measuses our success In prowding a safe
and secure working environment (excluding joint ventures)

Relevance to strategy
Delivenng excellent service requires us to operate in the safest way possible Safety
also has a direct bearing on the commitment and engagement of our people

Parformance

The 2012 Rl rate 1s a 22% improvemnent on 2011 at 389, and a 60% improvement
against 2008 This mprovement has been partly driven by the evolving nsk
profile of the Group, with a significant increase In staff numbers in vary low
safety nsk environments The R rate of our higher nsk operations was largely
flat compared with 2011 at 742, but was below the UK HSE Labour Force
Survey All Industnes benchmark of 750

investment in society (£m)

Each year, we aim to invest 1% of our pre-tax profits into society
We do this through cash donations, gifts in kind employee volunteenng and
management ime

Relgvance to strategy
Strong community engagement helps us to win and retan contracts, as well
as directly benefiting the Ivas of the people we assist

Performance

We invested £2 560,084 through donations of money assets and time

o community projects and charties, representing 1% of our pre-tax profit

In addition, to mark Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated
o service exceltence, we have established the Serce Foundation as an
independent chartabile foundation An exceptional one-off payment of

£5 Om has been made In the year to establish the charitable foundaton

Carbon Emissions Headcount Intensity (1CO,e/1000)

Dsfintion

Serco has staried to capture and report emaronmental data for its global
operations As the profile of our business changes nomalising by headeount 1s a
more relevant way of sething targets and reporting performance Moving forward
we will therefore monitor Carbon Emissions Headcount Intensity {tCO,e/1000)

Relevance to strategy
Ouwr carbon dioxide emissions are drrectly related to our energy use and hence
to the efficiency of our operations

Parformance

While our overall emissions have increased the headcount intensity has shown
an improvement of 14 4%, reflectng business growth and particularly increases
In staff numbers in office-based environmants
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Section 3 | Our performance

Chairman's Statement

It was, | suggest, impossible to experience the atmosphere in the Olympic stadium on 11 August 2012,
up on one’s feet applauding Mo Farah’s amazing 5,000 metre gold medal, and not be proud to be British.
It was equally rmpossible not to be proud to be Chairman of Serco given the flawless performance of

our Docklands Light Railway and Barclays Cycle Hire contracts durning the penod of the Olympic Games
All across the Group — In our Board, executive, management and operations — we felt the weight of the
responsibility for not only transporting a significant proportion of the spectators to Britain’s most important
sporting showcase, but for ensunng our other London-based contracts, such as Court Escorting,
continued to work as expected durning this most unusual period. That everything functioned exactly

as planned 1s testament to the foresight, capability, commitment and ingenuity of all those involved.

In all parts of Serco, when | wisit our contracts | meet people who have
the same commiiment to seyvice, to making a difference through helping
those with whom they work while at the same time delivenng aganst

our prormises | have witnessed this ability to reconcile efficiency and
humanity in such diverse areas as the way our electronic monitonng
teams deal with new offenders, the way cur staff supporting the US
Veterans Agency interact with returning war-iighters, and the way our
teams in Austraha handle those seeking tmnrugrant entry to the country
This ethos 1s deeply ingrained in Serco and 1s enshnned in our Governing
Prnciples, which set out clearly and succinctly the behaviours by which
we e

Our desire to look beyond the confines of the contract and to put
something back mnto the communities in which we work, 1s amply
evidenced by the amount raised each year by our people for a wide
vanety of chantable causes In recognition, the Board has decided that
the most appropnate way to mark Serco’s 25th year as a publicly traded
company Is to establish, with an endewment of £6m an independent
chantable foundation with the mission of helping chanties be even more
effective through the application of Serco's people, skills and capabilities

Another of Serco's four Governing Principles 15 to foster an entreprensunal
culture, In particular to embrace change and, by taking measured risks
encourage fresh thinking The management team has successfully
implemented significant change during the past year, restructuning the
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business into ashape to be able to better support our customers and
deliver our stralegy over the next five or so years Serco now has three
distinet areas of regional focus UK & Europe, Amencas, and AMEAA,
and ane area of sector speaahism - our Global Services BPO dmision
Thts recrgarisaton equips Serco to increase our exposure to international
growth markets, bulds a significant private, alongside our majornty public
sector customer base, creates an ability to bring together expertise
across back and middle office, and our histone strength in fronthine
services and sims us down to a much tighter concentration of functions
at the centre

Accompanying this restructunng 1s the proactive management of our
porttolio by assessing the strategic fit of particutar operations, together
with their expected future levels of performance and returns As a
consequence we disposed of four operations durnng the year At the same
time we ook advantage of opporturities 1o add further scale and depth

of capability to Global Sennces through the acquisition of the UK pubhc
sector BPO operations of Vertex and strengthened our posibon as

a leading defence services provider, as well as increasing our exposure

to the growing manne sesvices market in Australia, by acquinng the
remaining 50% of DMS Mantime

The benefit of this portfolio shift 1s already starting to ewdence itself
Over the fast two years the proportion of our turnover derived from
outside the UK has increased to 44%, while the vatue of our BPO




contracts has nsen to 15% These changes in turn reflect the continuad
excellent revenue growth in AMEAA and the successful launch of Global
Services, in par offset by the very difficult US environment

With a large and high growth addressabile market, Global Services has
estabhshed rtself very strongly with major new wins, for example, in retal
customer contact, lite and pensions transaction processing, and NHS
shared service centre operations Through the successful integration

of related operations over the course of 2012, we have established Serco
as a leading provider of BPO services, with extensive opporturities i the
private sector and uniquely posiioned to offer Integrated services through
joint bids with cur frontline regional dmisions

We see the potential for sustained strong growth in the AMEAA region,
with real GDP growth alongside a drnive by governmenits to invest in
social infrastructure, in particular in justice, health and transport A small
but sigrificant step was achieved by wanning our first frontine semces
contract in India, to operate a dedicated bus corridor in the city of Indore
Nat only does this provide Serco with a foothold in the rapidly developing
public transportation sector in tncia, but it also demonstrates how

our achievemnents elsewhere in the world can support our entry into new
markets In this case, our management of complex transport systems
such as the DLR, the Dubair Metro and the Barclays Cycle Hire scheme,
were particularly relevant Similarly, earlier in the year Serco was awarded
the contract to prowide and operate the innovative Win pnson in

New Zealand, bullding on our expernence in custodial sefvices across
New Zealand, Australia and the UK

The UK continues to account for more than half our turnover and,
whilst we encountered some headwinds in 2012 from contract attntion,
we continue to view the market outlook as positive This i1s supported
by the underlying economic pressures on government to deliver more
services for less, and the approach to introducing more competiton,
choice and innovation, as set out In the Public Services White Paper

The Amencas have presented us with the toughest trading conditions,
with new coniract awards betng constrained by the inability to agree
federal government funding Although this underlying uncertainty remans
unresolved, the US 1s still the world’s largest outsourcing and BPO
market We are, therefore, confident that having a significant estabhished
presence will reap dividends for the Group In the future

At the forthcoming Annual Genesal Meeting we say goodbye to David
Richardson Dawd joined the Board of Serco in June 2003 and has served
as Charrman of our Audit Committee for the past nine years and as Senior
Independent Director since 1 January 2011 Turnover in 2003 was £1 6bn,
compared with £4 9bn in the year pist ended, such has been the extent of
change over the penod David has been a Director | would Iike 10 extend
to um the thanks of the Board for hus wise counsel dunng this journey
and our best wishes for the future In David's place as Audit Chair | am
delighted to welcome Malcolm Wyman, who joined the Board with effect
from 1 January 2013 Malcolm has a long and distinguished career having
retired in 2011 after ten years as Chief Financial Officer of SAB Miller,

a penod of substantrtal international expansion for the group He s also

a non-executwe director of Impenal Tobacco and 1s SID and Audit Char

at the Nedhank Groupr |

Finally, may | once again thank our shareholders tor their continued
support and for the time they have devoted to mantaining an active
dialogue with our management and our Board Given the breadth

and diversity of our business, we aim to ensure that our shareholders
understand our objectives and the challenges to therr achievement
Where relevant, such as on matters relabing to remuneration, we seek
to consult waith them at an early stage and take therr input into account
as we develop our thinkmg In tum |, and my colleagues on the Board,
are always avalable shouid there be 1ssues they would like 1o discuss
n more detal

Alastair Lyons CBE
Chairman
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Saction 3 | Our performance

Chief Executive's Statement

Overview

2012 has been a year of significant progress operationally, financially and strategically. With a record level
of contract wins dniving £5 8bn of awards in total, our order book has grown to £19 1bn. Revenue and
Adjusted operating profit were £4,913m and £314.8m, representing growth at constant currency of 6 2%
and 9.9% respectively The breadth of our portfolio has enabled our strength in the AMEAA region and the
successful launch of our Global Services BPO division to offset challenges in the US federal contracting
market We have made further significant strategic progress in pesiioning our business to deliver strongly
{or the future The pipeline of Identified opportunities has been replenished to stand now at an estimated
£31bn We remain, therefore, confident of continued resilience in tmes of dynamic market condiions

and of Serco’s overall outlook and attractive future growth prospects.

Record level of contract wins and excellent
operational performance

In 2012, across our wide portfolio of markets and geographies, we signed
arecord level of contracts valued at £5 6bn and were appointed preferred
bidder for a further €0 2bn The total £5 8bn of awards compares with

£5 1bnin 2011 Our wins included smaller and medium-sized awards
which are fundamental to our growth, as well as significant retnds,
extensions, expansions and new contracts Reflecting the substantial
level of awards, our order book grew to £19 1bn at 31 December 2012
(£17 9bn at 31 December 2011)

Notable contract awards, along with approximate total value and contract
length where appropnate incfuded

® Ferry services to the Northern Isles in Scotland (£350m over six years)

& Environmental Services for Wycombe and Chiltern District Councils
(£55m over seven years)

® UK asylum applicant accommaodation and transport services (£175m
over five years)

o Cammunity Payback probation services in London (£38m over
four years)

e Delivery of the UK's National Citizen Service (£70m aver two years)
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® NHS Suffolk community health services (£140m over three years)

e Next pnaing penod signed for Atomic Weapons Establishment (AWE)
management and operation {£1 5bn over five years)

@ Leadership for corporate services (BBS) for the UK Mirustry of Defence
{£36m over four years)

o US Army base closure support in Afgharustan (USS57m over
three years)

o US Navy Automated Digitat Network Systems engineering (US$€68m
over five years)

® San Francisco parking services (US$43m over five years)

o US MRAP military vehicle equipment and system upgrades (US$73m
over 15 months)

& Win Prison 25-year operating contract in New Zealand (approximately
£15m a year from 2015)

® Wandoo Resntegration Facility In Western Australia (A$50m over
five years)

® Bus operations in city of Indore, India {£13m over six years})




# Australan Tax Oftice contact centre services (€90m over five years)

e Major BPO contract with leading UK retailer Shop Direct Group
(£430m over ten years)

e Contact and support services for AEGON UK (£170m over ten years),
and

® Anglia Support Partnership shared services operation for UK health
sector (£120m over four years)

More details of these and other contract awards can be found in the
Operating Review, with further information and other smaller and
medium-sized contract awards dunng the year described in the contract
news updates and other announcements avalable on our website,
WWW SErco ¢om

Visibility of future earmings remains high due to the signed contiacts that
make up our order book, contracts that we expect to extend and rebid
and contracts at the preferred bidder stage which we expect to sign

At 31 December 2012 revenue visibility was 92% for 2013, 79% for 2014
and 70% for 2015

Across the Group we have maintaned excellent service delivery We wete
particutarty proud of our achievements through the 2012 Otympic Games,
where a number of our contracts were heavily mnvolved We carnied record
passenger numbers while maintaning exceptional service metrics on

our transport-related services, most notably the Docklands Light Railway,
where volumes were substantially ahead of forecasts and there were half
a millon passengers on the busiest day We have also been delighted
with service standards through the mobilisation and transition phases for
major new contracts that commenced across our home affairs, transport,
health and BPC operations

Strong financial result for the year

Serco has delivered growth in revenues including further good organic
growth, increased the operating margin, and maintamned a strong ¢ash
generation profile and financing position

Reported Group revenues were £4,913 Om, representing total growth

of 5 7% Excluding operations disposed of duning the year, revenues
from ongoing activities were £4 832 2m with growth at constant currency
of 8 5% Within this, organtc growth was 3 3% and the contributton from
acguisittons added 5 2%
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Chief Executive's Statement

Gooed organic growth, for the Group as a whole, demonstrated the
resthence of the portfolio and our successiul development in new markets
and geographies There was further very strong revenue growth in AMEAA
—up 22% organically Global Services, our newly created BPQ dvision,
saw orgamic growth of 12%, with underlying growth of over 30% after
adjusting for the transfer back of the Bradford education contract and

the government funding cuts to our previous work for the UK Regional
Devetopment Agenctes Qur UK & Eurcpe fronthne services division,
supported by new contract wins, saw a return to organic revenue growth
of 2% Growth in these three dvisions more than cffset the 14% decline

in organi¢ revenues for the Americas division that resulted from

the challenging conditions of the US federal outsourcing market

Our dwisional performance 1s described fully in the Operating Review

Adjusted operating profit increased 8 5% to £314 8m Excluding
operations disposed of dunng the year, Adjusted operating profit from
ongoing activities was £309 1m, representing growth at constant currency
of 13 4% and an increase in the operating margin to 6 4% Net finance
cosis were £8 8m higher, principally reflecting the mcremental cost of
funding acquisihons Adjusted profit before tax of £278 1m and Adjusted
earnings per share of 42 55p grew at constant currency by 7 3% and

8 7% respectively

Following successiul perifolio management activity, there was a £5 6m

net exceptional profit on disposals of subsidianes and operations in the
year This, together wath the £5 Om one-off payment to establish the
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charitable foundation, 1s excluded from Adjusted operating proft There
was also an exceptional gan of £51 1m ansing from the step acquisiion
acecounting for the DMS joint venture in Australia This sigreficantly
enhances reported profit before tax and eamnings per share, but has been
exctuded from our measures of adjusted financial performance in order
to aid comparability

Group free cash flow was £181 2m compared with £168 3rm in 2011
There was an exceptionally strong conversion rate of profits in the second
half of the year, and dividend distributions from joint ventures were

£16 3m higher After the effect of acquisitions and disposals, the payment
of dividends and other financing movements, tofal net debt reduced by
£53m to £581m as at 31 December 2012

Our dvidend policy in the past has been to Increase the total dvidend
each year broadly in ine with the increase in underlying earnings
Reflecting this, In 2011 we increased the total dividend by 14% to 8 40p
which based on 39 59p of Adjusted eamings per share represented

a payout of 21% and dividend cover of 4 7 imes

The Board I1s conlident in the future growth prospects for the Group

and of the strong financial position that we have We therefore intend
progressively to increase the payout ratio and thereby reduce our
dividend cover over the next three years Beyond that point, we anticipate
a policy of maintaning dividend cover of between 2 5 and 3 times and
theretore revertingto increasing the total divedend each year broadly




in hne with the increase in underlying earnings The Board has proposed
a final dwidend for 2012 of 7 45p per share, bringing the total dmdend
for the year to 10 10p, up 20% compared with the previous year Thig
represents a payout of 24% based on 42 55p of Adjusted earnings per
share, or dividend cover of 4 2 times The final dmdend will be paid,
subject to shareholder approval, on 22 May 2013 to shareholders on
the register on 15 March 2013

Earnings, cash flow, financing and related matters are descnibed fully
in the Finance Review

Greater exposure to international growth markets
and sectors

Governments and companies face an increasing need to improve the
qualty of services o therr cihizens or customers while contending with
constrained or reducing budgets Competition and ocutsowrcing offers

a solution o this need, where deep operational expertise can assure
delivery, a breadth of knowledge and experience can bning fresh thinking,
and a mixture of front, middle and back office expertise can enable
transformation We are already a leading player in our core markets of
defence, transport, justice and health in the public sectors, and financial
services, retall, travel and telecoms in the private sector, benefiting from
the growth In these markets Qur strategy Is 1o widen our exposure Lo
emerging markets, where supernor growth and margins can be achieved,
and to deepen our transformational expertise to access larger, more
complex and higher margin growth opportunities across our core markets

Qur achievemnents in 2012 supported this strategy, dnven in particular by
excellent performances tin our AMEAA and BPO operaiions Our AMEAA
region grew total revenue by 31% increasing to 18% the region’s share
of the Group’s portfolic Meanwhile our Global Services BPO business
saw 40% total revenue growth, driven by the combination of the
contnbuticn from acquisitions and a series of very strong contract wins
Both the AMEAA region and cur BPO operations are expected to account
for an increasing proportion of the Group's revenue mix

The excellent performances in the AMEAA and Global Services divisions,
together with a return to arganic growth in the UK, more than offset

the performance of our Amencas dvision This has been impacied

by extremely tough conditions for the US federal contracting marke,
due to the political challenges of the annual budgeting process and
reaching agreement an future government funding

As described in our Operating Review, 2012 has seen greater exposure
to growth markets following entry into new countries in the Middle East
as well as new fronthne senaces in India, the prowvision of new service
lines such as community heafthcare, and breaking into new private sector
industnes such as the UK Life and Penstons segment of the financial
services market We also set out for each of our divisions areas of future
growth opportunity, which we expect to pursue In 2013 and beyond

Strategic position further improved through ongoing
proactive portfolio management

As part of midening our exposure 1o emerging markets and deepening
our transformational expertise, the launch of our Global Services dvision
n 2012 has been key, adding significant capability in the tast gromng,
higher margin BPO market The acquisition of Intelenet in 2011 was
strategically important for Serco's development, as were other smaller
infill acquisitions such as The Listening Company i the UK and Excelior
in Austraha These acquisitions added speaific customer contact
capabilities and geographic reach During 2012 these have been fully
integrated with Serco's own BPO operations, while the acquisitton

of Vertex's UK public sector BPO operations has provided addional
expertise and strategic partnerships The success of banging together
our BPO skills and scale in one global division has been reflected in
contract awards in the year totaling over £1bn and with Serco being
recognised in independent studies and awards as a new leading force
in the BPO industry

Another acquisition in the year was our purchase of the remamning 50%
stake In DMS Mantime from our joint venture partner This strengthens
Serco’s position as a leading defence services prowider in Austraha and
in the growing manne services market While remaining pnmanly focused
on organic grawth, Serco will continue to look at potential acquisitions
that similarly bnng new skills, capabilities or market access

Qur proactive portioho management also involves an ongoing
assessment of our existing operations for strategic fit, together with
expected future levels of performance and returns As part of this,

Serco made four disposals of operations hat were non-core to the
future devetopment of the Group These were our Technical Services
business which provided consulting and project solutions to the UK civil
and nuclear defence markets, the majonity of our manly defence-related
operations N Germany, our education software business, and our UK
data hosting operations We will continue to serve the energy, defence,
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education and |T-enabled BPO markets in other ways, but will focus
on our long-term contract model to develop the best opporturities
and a balanced portfolio

The successiul Group reorganisation has also enhanced our strategic
posiioning Creating the new BPO dimsion as our first global business
brought together all of Serco's middle and back office skills and
capabilities, improving the services we provide 1o customers and enabling
better targeting of opportunities around the world in both the private and
public sectors The reorganisation has also created a single UK & Europe
dvision, supporting better customer relatienship management and
service development, as well as increased internal efficiencies For
example, since July 2012, the Global Serwices division has been operating
an internal shared service centre for the Group These argamisational
changes, which led to headcount reductions i management and our

own back ofhice support functions, have generated in-year savings to
cover the associated costs

Extensive pipeline demonstrates attractive

growth opportunities

A significant number of opportunities were successtully converted to
contract awards in 2012 Newly identified prospects across our portiolio
have increased the pipeline value to an estimated £31bn  This increase
reflects an ongoing demand for efficient, high quahty and innovative
service provision from public and private sector customers around

the world
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There 1s a strong pipeline N AMEAA, with many exciting new opportunities
such as those inthe growing health markets in the region and in the
justice sector There also remain substantia! prospects n defence
support, engineenng and manne services, transportation markets
including fright raill, road networks and arr trathc contrl, and integrated
faciliies management services to support major infrastructure projects

in the region

In the UK, markets continue to show stabihsation and increasing signs

of improverment There are further indications of new markets opening up,
supported by the agenda for public service reform New opportunities
include those diven by the growth in commissioning of health services,
defence organisation strategic partnerships and from competiion being
ntroduced to numerous areas of the home affars market such as
offender rehabiltation

While the US 1s expected to remain very challenging in the short term,
due to government budget and funding 1ssues, we continue to develop
our business and expect to secure new areas of work in defence
technology and engineenng, logistics and programme support and
human capital management Other civihan markets such as transport
and health will be actively pursued We therefore see good longer

term opportunilies in the US, as well as sirong potential to develop

our presence In the wider Amencas region




There are strong growth prospects in the global BPC market as well
Following significant recent wins in the prvate sector, further prospects
are being pursued across a number of vertical markets including life and
pensions, telecom, retall, ravel and utilies There are also opportunities
in the UK public sector ncluding more strategic partnerships with local
authontigs to transtorm their services, and prospects for future centrat
government shared service centres continue to develop

Confident of further growth and continued resilience
Serco's portfolto breadth across different markets and economies
continues to prowde resiience while at the same time enhancing our
growth potential For example, while condittons remain very difficult and
uncertain for the US federal outsourcing market, we anticipate further
improvement in UK markets and strong performances from our AMEAA
and Global Services BPO operations The strategic and organisational
activity In 2012 has also positioned the Group well for future growth

For 2013, we are forecasting a modest improvement in the rate of
organic revenue growth The effect of acquisitions and disposals to date
1s hikely to have a broadty neutral mpact on iotal revenue growth We are
forecasting our Adjusted operating margin to be broadly mantamned at
the level achieved in 2012

Net finance cosls are anticipated to be approximately £45-50m, including
the impact from the forthcoming revsion to I1AS 18 This would represent
a slight increase on the equivalent 2012 restated net finance cost
Reflecting anticipated further incremental working capital investment
supporting BPO growth, together with lower dividends from joint ventures,
free cash flow in 2013 may be lower than the level achieved in 2012

Beyond 2013, we are planning for continued delivery of strong financial
performance at Serco Qur confidence in continuedt resiience, the overall
outlook and future growth prospects for the Group have also been
reflected in our plans to increase the proportion of our profits pad as
dwvidends to our shareholders

Serco Foundation established

To mark Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated to
service excellence, we have established the Serce Foundation as an
ndependent chantable foundation with a one-off endowment of £5m
The foundation will build partnershups with large charities 1o make
donations and also support them in the delivery of thewr programmes
through the application of Serco's people skills and capabiities

People

We have a clear strategy for managing and developing our peopts, which
in turn supports our vision 1 am pleased that we made good progress
aganst each part of this stralegy in 2012 More information on how we
achieved this can be found on pages 68 and 69

Serco’s continuad growth i 2012 means that we now have more than
122,000 people delivering services around the world Our success comes
from their hard work and commiiment to our values | thank them for therr
contnbution to Serco and our customers

Chnstopher Hyman CBE
Chief Executive

For more details of these and other contract awards,
see the Cperating Review on pages 40 to 57

For details of some of the many smaller and medium-sized
contract wins, see our contract news updates at www serco com
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Section 3 | Our performance

Our strategy in action

We have a clear strategy for achieving our vision The case studies on the following
pages show just some of the ways that we put that strategy into action duning 2012.

The case studies Illustrate a number of the key themes for our business — new markets, new ideas,
outcomaes for ciizens and integrating with our communities, Each of these 1s important for the continued

development of our business

Entering new markets helps us to build a balanced portfolio, with our unique breadth and depth positioning
us to take advantage of attractive growth opportunities. Qur customers increasingly want new ideas,
which are rooted in our world-class expertise and can drive improvements n the quality and efficiency

of their services.

Local and national governments face demands from citizens for more and better services within
constrained budgets, or need to deliver new services to citizens In countries where the size and wealth
of the population 1s growing. And the communities around our contracts play a vital role Our people
live and work In those communities and we often deliver services directly to local people Helping our
communities tackle their pressing 1ssues is therefore part of the way we work Many of the case studies

here illustrate more than one of these themes

New New
markets ideas
Outcomes Integrating

for citizens
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with our
communities

Mare information on our strategy and our achievements
during the year can be found on pages 14 and 15




Providing high-value
BPO services to Orbitz

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v

The acquisition of Intelenet took Serco into new markets around the world. In the US,
we entered the travel, transportation and hospitality sector for the first time, serving
major private-sector customers.

A key example 1s Orbitz Orbitz Worldwide 1s a leading global
conhne travel company that uses mnovative technology to enable
leisure and business travellers to research, plan and book a
broad range of travel products It has more than eight million
unque visitors each month and has also become a major player
In corporate travel

We prowide a range of sophisticated customer service and
back-office functions, which have helped Orbitz improve
productivity and sales performance since 2002 Qur people

help Orbitz's customers to make and manage their bogkings

We also give consuitative support, so they get the best deal on
therr transactions Back-cffice work includes ticketing, processing
exchanges and researching 1ssues for travellers We alsc provide
Orbitz with exclusive support to its corporate travel programme,
working with Fortune 500 organisations to deliver everything from
general to executive travel

Our at-home agent model allows us to recruit anywhere in the US,
finding people with the specific skills and expenence we need
The average agent for Orbitz has more than ten years in the
industry, including former airline and travel agency employees
We also provide substantial training, typically running for eight
weeks or more

We now have the opportunity to apply these high-value services
to other customers, within the travel sector and beyond We do
this by sharing best practices around our globa! business, working
collaboratively to spread our capabilities and make them
avallable to all of our customers
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Our strategy in action

Transforming the
back office for the
Ministry of Defence

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v

In March 2012, Serco began to operate the Defence Business Services (DBS) contract
for the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD). DBS plays a wvital role in the MoD’s administration,
including paying the salaries of all of the MoD'’s 74,000 civil servants, settling four
million invoices totalling £26bn each year, and carrying out all the vetting for the MoD
and its contractors.

DBS 1s our first pure back-office contract in the UK public sector
and has some particularly innovative features In a traditional
outsourcing arrangement, all the staff and assets transfer to

us for the Iife of the contract At DBS, we provide the leadership
team while the staff and assets remain with the customer

Cur team delivers management expertise to DBS through

the roles of chief executive, chief operating, information and
people officers, and transformation director

This model, known as management insertion, allows for faster
procurement and gives the customer a broader range of
options when the inihal contract comes to an end In addition,
our remuneration 1s based 100% on the results we achieve —
a new approach for a UK government contract
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Since we began to operate the service, DBS has produced
excellent results We have met alt of the performance measures
in the contract, while delivering first-year savings of around
20% to the MoD and coping with a 35% reduction in workforce
since DBS's formation We see significant potential for

further back-ofice work in the UK public sector, with DBS
demonstrating the benefits customers can receive
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Our strategy in action

A new approach to
community healthcare

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v (4 v

Serco’s contract with NHS Suffolk 1s our first to provide community health services.
It covers community nursing, specialist nursing, community hospitals, speech

and language therapy, community dentistry, community equipment and specialist
children’s services

At the heart of our approach i1s our unique partnership with kind In the NHS The centre, which has just completed a pilot
South Essex Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust, phase, 1s based in Ipswich and employs local people It gives
which ts a leading provider of community and mental health patients, carers and doctors a central point of contact for all
services, and Community Dental Services CIC, a staff-owned enquines, reducing the administrative burden on chnical staff
social enterprise This gives us a powerful combination of
expertise from the private, public and not-for-profit sectors In total, we am to increase the time chinical staff can spend with
patients by more than one quarter, gving patients the support
The contract serves over 700,000 Suffolk residents To ensure they need to manage ther condiions more effectively and Iive
we took account of theirr views, we undertook a substantial happily and independently m ther own homes

engagement exercise, involving nearly 80 meetings with key
stakeholders including patients, the public and local doctors
Benefits of the service include extending times for routine
appointments from 8 hours to 12 hours a day, a named care
lead for each patient, new mobile technology for frontline climcal
staff and a centralised admimistration centre — the first of s
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Our strategy in action

Transporting the public
to the London Olympics

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v

The Docklands Light Raiway (DLR) 1s the UK's busiest light railway. Serco has
operated and maintained it since 1997, on behalf of Transport for London (TfL).

‘

2012 saw the DLR face one of its biggest challenges, as a We created ten bespoke timetables to run durnng the Games,
key transport ink for the London Olympics — the largest ever with three-car trans on all routes Plans were developed to
peacetme event in the UK We began our preparations in spring  enable 25 stations to be manned around the clock, with staff
2011, more than a year before the Games Qur programme plan  welfare centres strategically located throughout the system
included 11 workstreams with more than 3,500 actvities New passenger information systems were introduced and a
24/7 team set up to deal with any operational issues that arose
We were at the centre of the Games, servicing the Olympic and
Paralympic venues at the Olympic Park in Stratford, Greenwich The outcome was a great success The DLR carmed 7 2 million

Park and the Royal Artillery Barracks in Woolwich, as well as passengers dunng the Olympics — more than double the normal
being the only direct transport provider to the ExCel Centre level — with trains running at an average of 99% for departures
m Custom House and relability The enhancements we delivered have since

enabled us to improve our ongoing serice to the DLR's regular
In total, our support to the Olympics required temporary staffing  users, and to sign an extended contract with TfL to operate
arrangements consisting of over 900 extra temporary workers and maintan DLR for another 18 months
Over 45,000 extra staff hours coverage were required through
Olympic rosters for full tme staff
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Our strategy in action

Building links in o
remote community

New New Outcomes
markets ideas for citizens
v

Integrating with
our communities
v

Scherger Immigration Detention Centre (SIDC) is in a remote part of Queensland,
Australia. When the centre opened, local residents were concerned that its employees
would put pressure on health services and leave less room on flights to the region.

In addition, negative media coverage of immigration raised fears about SIDC'’s clients.

As SIDC's operator, we recognised the need to buld stronger
community relaticnships The centre 1s based on indigenous
land and the area has a much higher proportion of indigenaus
pecple than the natonal average Along with the Department
of Aboriginal & Torres Strait Multicultural Affarrs, we therefore
created an action plan to demonstrate our commitment to
supporting the needs of Aboriginal pecple

Other iniiatives included arranging for a team of SIDC's clients
to compete in a local cncket tournament The team was so
popular that ABC News covered the final match SIDC clients
have since helped to renovate the clubhouse and worked

on other community projects We also renovated a local park,
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providing somewhere for clients to go dunng excursions from
the centre In addition, we built relationships with Rio Tinto -
the major local employer — through chanty events and
community projects

The outcome has been a significant increase in SIDC’s standing
with local people, helping us to attract new employees and
improving our ability to care for our clients by opering up local
amenties to them
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Our strategy in action

Improving lifeline ferry
services in Scotland

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v

Serco operates NorthLink Ferries on behalf of Transport Scotland, carrying passengers
and freight between the Shetland and Orkney archipelagos and the Scottish mainland.
We took over the contract in July 2012 and by the end of the year, the ferries had
carried over 160,000 passengers and more than 33,000 cars, as well as 130,000 sheep,
30,000 cattle and 60,000 tonnes of fish food

The ferries play a vital part in everyday lives, so commumity and a visual identity with a local flavour that users can identify

engagement 1s key Dunng the bidding process, we talked with Islanders can also use a resident card to pre-book seats

to local residents and service users to learn what they needed at no cost and receve a 20% discount on many onboard

and how we might shape an enhanced service We continue retall products

to engage, by offenng passengers the chance to give feedback

to customer service teams on board, through Facebook and Our approach alse supports Transport Scotland’s pnornties

Twitter, and at the ferry terminals We also attend ZetTrans, After a short handover, we moved quickly from transihon to

a forum and aliance of key stakeholders, which looks to ensure  transformation and delivered refurbishment and restructuring

the transport network 1s sustainable seamlessly We have introduced vanable passenger capacity
and made timetabling and staff rosterning more efficient, all while

Our engagement has informed the changes we have made achieving savings for our customer

These include a £1m shipboard refurtishment programme,
which increased the number of rechning seats and introduced
premium services We have inihated marketing campaigns

on a new website that offers a wide range of news, tmetables,
special offers and opportunities for interaction and feedback,
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Qur strategy in action

Protecting the eyesight
of vulnerable people

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v

Serco-run Acacia prison In Australia has a restorative justice strategy that enables
prisoners to give back to society, while learning skills they can use on release.

The programme has been running for several years and prisoners are now suggesting
their own projecits.

One of these was Clear Vision With the support of the
Optometnst Association and Vision West, 1t allows prisoners

to refurbish spectactes, which are distributed to underprivileged
people in Perth and developing countries This can be life
changing for the recipients, often helping them to see clearly
for the first time in years

Acacia found workshop space for the pnsoners to use and the
first delvery of spectacles to the pnson contained 30,000 pairs
— all of which were saved from landfill As more prisoners have
become involved, it has helped them to bulld confidence and
boosted their communication and people skills

Clear Vision now has the chance to make an even greater
difference [t 1s collectng and restoring sunglasses, to distnbute
in countries where sun-related eye damage 1s an immense
chalienge Large companies have also expressed an interest in
collecting glasses and Acacia 1s looking to fund a full workshop
The prison has received approximately A$25,000 worth of
donated ophthalmic equipment for this project, along with the
services of a professional optometrist to set up the workshop
and train prisoners to use it
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Changing lives through
welfare to work

New New Outcomes Integrating with
markets ideas for citizens our communities
v v

Unemployment can ruin hives but our contracts — under the UK government'’s
Work Programme for long-term unemployed people and Job Deal for ex-offenders —
help to turn lives around.

Our model for getting people back into waork brings together
a network of partners to deliver all fronthine services, drawing
on the best national prowviders from the private, public and
voluntary sectors, and integrating them with smaller and
community-based orgamsations

'n total, we have helped more than 41,000 people into work —
a rate of over 1,000 each month Some find employment,
while others are supported with starting a business

Anna s Just cne example As a single mother, she found

it hard to balance work and childcare and had been unemployed
for two years After she joined the Work Programme, she was
referred to one of our partners, which prowvides professtonal and
practical business support services to entrepreneurs

Anna immedately embraced the opportunity Her adwviser hefped
her with the legalities of self employment and helped her to
create cash-flow and profit forecasts, based on market research
data Anna was able to turn her aristic skills into a business by
transforrming old furniture into attractive one-offs She now has

a unit where she sells her work and her adviser provides ongoing
suppon, helping Anna with any concerns

Our contracts deliver successes each day but we are always
looking for new ideas For example, we are planning to work
with the government to apply behavioural science to inform
the behaviour of long-term unemployed people, to improve
the number starting and sustaiming employment
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Operating Review and Growth Opportunities

This sechion 1s presented according to the four
divisions, based around our principal markets

® UK & Europe

® Americas

® AMEAA (Australasia, Middle East,
Asia and Afnca), and

® Global Services

The section outhnes contract awards which are
significant because of their value or their strategic
contribution to our business. Further details of
these, as well as other medium and smaller-sized
contracts, can be found on our website

WWW Serco com,

UK & Europe

The UK & Europe division includes our fronthne services in
Home Affairs (encompassing justice-related operations, immigration
and border secunty, and welfare), Health, Transport & Local Direct

Services, and Defence & Science.

UK & Europe — operating review

Revenue from ongoing activities grew by 2% (o £2,434m {2011 £2,434m),
and represented 51% of Group ongoing revenue (2011 55%) On an
organic basis, revenue also grew by 2% Adjusted operating profit from
ongoing operations grew by 5% to £172 9m (2011 £165 0m), with the
margin increasing to 6 9% {2011 6 8%) Including the impact of disposals,
reported revenue declined by 1% to £2,561m (2011 £2,595m) and
Adjusted operating profit was broadly unchanged at £177 8m

(2011 £177 6m)

The return to orgamc revenue growth, after a marginal dechine in 2011,
reflected the start of numerous new contracts that also reinforce our
wview of an improving cuticok This more than offset the impact of Serco
operating fewer contracts in the welfare to work market and ongoing
government austenty which ptaces pressure on areas of discretionary
spend with Serco The margin performance reflected the delivery of
operatronal iImprovements, largely offset by the effect of the start of

new contracts particularly in the second half of the year The creation

of a single UK & Eurcpe division has involved significant organisational
change dunng 2012, both to increase our own etficiency and, crucially,
to support the delivery of better services for our customers In 2013, there
will be further activity to drive operational improvements and efficiencies
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Home Affairs
Our operations actoss the Home Affairs market account for approxmately
20% of UK & Europe revenues

HMP Thameside, the new priscn at Belmarsh West in London became
operational in 2012 As one of the most technologically advanced pnisons
in the world, 1t has, for example, advanced CCTV digital recording and
monitoring the latest drug and contraband intervention equipment
brometric key vending for staff, and in-cell IT for prisoner education

and adminustration Currently HMP Thameside Is a local Category B
establishment wih an operational capacity of 800 convicted and remand
male prisoners, and the Ministry of Justice has recently announced that

it wilt be expanded with the bulding of a new houseblock

In the probation services market, which 1s expected to see substantral
future devetopment with the introduction of competiion 1o improve
services and efficiencies, Serco has been awarded the first UK contract
In partnershep with the London Probation Trust, Serco 1s operating
Commuruty Payback, which requires offenders to undertake unpaid work
for the community The parinership 1s prowiding an integrated service

to manage the approximate 15,000 offenders who receive non-custodial
sentences in Loncon every year The four-year contract 1s valued n total
at £38m with this defivening savings to the taxpayer of over 30%




Qur Payment by Results pilot at HMP & YOI Doncaster 1s also showing
that it has real potential (o reduce re-offending Typical of the many
innovative interventions in place are the Famites First Programme
which supports prisoners’ relationships with their partners and children,
and Second Shot Productions, which teaches technical and creative
skills in filming and graphic design Both of these programmes won
preshgious Butler Trust Awards in 2012

For the UK Border Agency (UKBA), Serco commenced the delivery of the
COMPASS project, providing accommodation, transport and associated
services for asylum applicants in the northwest of England and in
Scotland and Northern Irefand  Full Permit to Operate in both regions
was awarded at the end of 2012 and Serco 1s now managing over 6,000
service users across 2,800 properties

In the wellare to work market, our Work Programme performance
continues to rank Serco as one of the leading performers in securing
successful job outcomes from the referrals made to our services
Reflecting our approach and performance in this market, Serco’s
consortium was awarded a contract to deliver the National Ciizen Service
across six regions in the UK Expanding our expenence of working

in partnership with the voluntary sector, Serco in association with the
National Youth Agency, UK Youth, Catch 22 and vinspired, will offer

16- and 17-year olds from different backgrounds a six-week programme
to develop hfe skills through community actvities working with chantable

organisations and business leaders The estimated combined total value
of the contracts over the initial two-year pernod 1s approximately £70m

Health
Qur operations across Health account for approximatety 10% of
UK & Eurcpe revenues

A number of significant new health contracts began during 2012 For the
NHS in Suffolk, Serco commenced aperations in October to provide a
wide range of community health services These include community
nursing, speciaist nursing, management and operation of community
hospitals, speech and language therapy, specialist children’s services
and commurity equipment services Serco I1s working with a range of NHS
and third sector partners to create a umque model of integrated service
delivery The three-year contract has a total vatue of approximately £140m

Inintegrated faciliias management {FM} services for the health market,
Serco began a new contract for the East Kent Hospitals University

NHS Foundation Trust, delivering services to three acute hospitals, two
community hospitals and several small ¢lircs in the area The contract
has a total value of approximately £140m over a maximum ten-year
penod For equivalent services at Forth Valley hospital, where Serco has
implemented a number of nnovative technological solutions, we receved
the highest level of recognition in the 2012 Global FM Awards for
Excellence in Faciities Management
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UK & Europe

Elsewhere, we continue to transform the services at Braintree Community
Hospital, for which Serco became responstble in 2011 and our GSTS
pathology joint venture 1s delivening the necessary efficiency
improvements as it modernises services

Transport & Local Direct Services
Qur operations across Transport & Local Direct Services account
for approximately 40% of UK & Europe revenues

Our London transport contracts — compnsing the Docklands Light
Raitway {DLR), the Barclays Cycle Hire scheme and traffic management
operations — have all achieved excellent operational performance dunng
the year Serco continues to support growth in regutar journeys as well as
annual events such as the London marathon, and successhully executed
the significant additional workload involved in the Diamond Jubylee and
the 2012 Olympic Games The DLR tn particular was a key part of the
London 2012 Games transport network, with the Stratiord Internaticnal
Extension, opened last summer, adding four new stations and connecting
five Games venues According to Transport for London and the Olympte
Delwery Authonty, duning the penod of the Olympic Games, the DLR
carned 7 2 million passengers — up by over 100% on normal levels

On the busiest day the DLR carried a record-breaking 500,000 people
Serco was named 'Light Rail Operator of the Year' in 2012 and since

the year-end our DLR contract has been extended to September 2014

In July, Barclays Cycle Hire rentals exceeded one million for the first bme
In any month
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Our other UK ral franchises, Northern Rail and Merseyrail, are also
supporting growth In passenger numbers and continued strong
operational metnes At Northern Rail, our performance has fed to
a further extension of the contract through to 1 April 2014

In July, Serco began operating a new contract for ifeline freight and
passenger ferry services to the Northern Isles in Scotland, bullding on

our experience of managing and transforming other critrcal local transpont
services such as Northern Ral and Scatsta Awport on the Shetland
Islands Serco also has extensive operations in the international marine
market, including services for the Royal Navy through which it operates
more ships under the UK flag than any other company The new six-year
contract has a total value of approximately £350m

In direct services for local authoriies, a number of contracts were
awarded during the year In Apnl, Serco began prowding refuse and
recycling services for 127,000 households in the London Borough of
Wandsworth helping the council to meet Government recycling targets
and reduce costs such as landfill taxes The contract 1s valued at £44m
over eight years Serco has been appointed to operate a new joint
environmental services contract for Wycombe and Chiltern Duistrict
Councils The mtegrated services include household waste recycling
collections and street cleansing, with the joint contract targeting
operational efficiencies while mcreasing recycling rates across both
districts The nibal seven-year contract 1s valued at approximately
£55m Serco has also successiully rebid s waste and recycling services




contract and its landscapes and grounds maintenance services contract
for Canterbury City Council In our prowision of a comprehensive and high
qualty range of health, leisure, filness, wellbeing and community-focused
services, Serco secured new contracts with North Down Borough Council
Mansfield District Council and Shropshire Council

Defence & Science
Qur operations across Defence & Science account for approximately
30% of UK & Europe revenues

Qur management and operation of the Atomic Weapons Establishment,
as part of a joint venture with Lockheed Martin and Jacobs Engineering,
has been achieving excellent results The contract ts delivenng value

for money for the Ministry of Defence (MoD) whilst achueving excellent
performance In the qualtty and timelness of our programme delvery

In recognition of this, arrangements for the next pncing penod through
to 31 March 2018 were successfully concluded The next five-year
penod will see Serco’s share of revenue expected o remain on average
at approximately £300m a year although under the back-end weighted
agreed incentvisation arrangements, the earnings and margin rate

in the initial years wili be similar to those achieved in the iniial years

of the current pncing period

In Apri 2012 Serco began operating a new contract for the MoD to
provide training and support to the British Army prior to deployment

on operatons overseas Known as the Contemporary Operating
Environment Force, and awarded by Army Headquarters, critical
pre-deployment training includes language, cultural and operational
environment skills and the creation of realistic traiming conditions o
prepare UK military forces for operations in Afghanistan and other theatres
of eperation around the world The contract runs to December 2014
ncluding an option year, and has a total value of approximately £55m

Cur defence multi-actmity contracts at RAF Northolt and RAF Brize
Norion were expanded it the year Additional servces include iT vehicle
maintenance, expanded arrcraft handling and the maintenance of two
areraft operating out of the Middle East using Sponsored Reserves

We successtully rebid our mult activity contract at RAF Cranwell home
to the Royal Air Force College, which selects and trains all new officers
and aircrew and where we support 3,000 simulator hours and 5,500 flying
hours per year The combined toial value of the expansicns and rebid,
which have twa to three-year terms, 1s approximately £30m A new
contract for RAF Valley, supporting their crucial role in training fast jet
pilots for both the RAF and the Royal Navy, also became operational

In the year
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For Defence Business Services (DBS), Serco was awarded a contract to
provide an executive leadership team DBS provides corporate services
for the MoD such as ciwvillan human resources, finance, nformation

and securily vetting Serco 1s working with DES staff to transform the
organisation into a lean and effeclive shared services centre, bullding
on private sector best practice The contract 1s valued at around £36m
over its initial four-year duration

At the National Physical Laboratory (NPL), which has been managed

and operated by Serco since 1995, the Centre for Carbon Measurement
was launched, ensunng the UK 1s a leading force in chmate modelling,
global carbon markets and green technelogy Business and government
welcomed the project, highlighting its potential to reduce emissions and
stimulate the economy The government has, however, announced that
our current ten-year contract (with an onginal value totalling approxamatety
£500m) will not be extended beyond March 2014, as they will look instead
at alternative structures for operation, investment and ownership of the
facilites Serco1s proud of its record at NPL and its contribution toats
development over the past 17 years

Serco i1s overseeing and delivenng the Defence Science & Technology
Laboratary's (Dstl} Helios programme, which will see the relocation of
all of Dstl s actmbies from Fort Halstead to Porton Down and Portsdown
West The programme will help to support Dstl's future strategic goals,
protect therr capabilities and provide additional cost benefits, building
on an already strong total faciliies management partnership between
Serco and Dstl
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UK & Europe - growth opportunities

The UK, which accounts for the vast majonty of the dmsion’s operations,
shows signs of ncreasing activity and good growth potential Competiive
outsourcing supports the UK government’s aim of achieving savings while
improving services and secial outcomes The reform of public services
provision 1s an ongoing process, but the Cabinet Office and spending
departments appear increasngly focused on bnnging new oppartunites
10 marke!

The 2012 reorganisation into a single division places Serco in a better
position to target future growth opportunities across the wider pubhic
secior, Including where customers are looking for more end-to-end
senvices that combine frontine capability with middie and back office
operatons In such nstances the UK & Europe division, as the
relationship lead, will draw upon the skills and capabiities of the new
Global Services dwision to deliver fully integrated services We continue
to strengthen our brand and account relationships at all levets, including
central government, the devolved authanties in Scotland and London,
in local government and in public service frontine organisations such
as the police and NHS

Home Affairs

As part of opening up to compettion exsting public sector prison
operations, Serco was short-sted for two groups consisting of five
pnsons in total Thisis in excess of the maximum of four prisons that can
be won under the competition struciure Serco Is therefore pleased 1o be
proceeding to the next stage as the single remaiming bidder for the South




Yorkshire group, comprsing three HM Pnisons (Moorland, Hatfield and
Lindholme), and looks forward te further developing its bid to produce
the compelling package of reforms for delivering cost reduction,
improvements o regimes and a working pnsons model in these prisons
Serco 1s also working with 1ts customer to expand HMP Thameside,
adding capacity under Serco’s more modern and efficient design

The Mirustry of Justice 1s proposing 1o open up ancillary and ‘through-
the-gate’ resettlement services across the whole public sector prison
estate by spring 2015, rather than further pnson-by-prison competiions
This includes recommendations to transform offender rehabilitation
opemng up the approximate £600m per annum probation market to
competiion and rapidly expanding the payment by results approach

to improve rehabilitation outcomes This 1s expected 1o provide
significant opportunities for Serco

The growing use of court fines 1s also expected to generate opportunities
for our collection services business, as well as a larger opportunity for
the overarching management of comphance and enforcement that would
draw upon skills and capabtlities from within the Global Services division
Serco 1s currently in the process of rebidding its electronic menitoiing
contracts in England and Wales, with preterred bidder appointments
expected later in 2013

Heatlth

The UK health market 1s being dnven by the impact of fiiscal pressure
and the proposed structural reforms which require increased introduction
of competiive forces In climical services, we are developing opportunities
to operate both hospita! and community-based serices For example,
our new innovation partnership with South Warmickshire Foundation

Trust will seek to use the expertise and skills of both organisations to
improve the care delivered to patients, while delivening best value

This partnership approach will enabte the Trust to deliver benefits more
quickly to patients, bullding on existing arrangements such as the Angha
Support Partnership Inmal discussions between the organisations started
following a shared vision and mterest in working with George Eliot NHS
Hospital Trust on thewr plans for the future

Qur frontline health services business has already had success In warking
closely with the Angha Support Parinership shared services operations,
led by the Global Services dmsion This has seen growth by providing
addmonal occupational health and counselling services and a separate
clirucal strategic procurement contract Further growth through this
strategic partnership framework is being pursued

The Department of Health currently spends £12bn per annum on
community-based services, and this is anticipated to grow given the
changing nature of care and patient demographics The Department’'s
national ‘Transtorming Community Services’ guidance stipulates that

all pnmary care trusts will no longer directly provide community services
and will instead commission them Serco therefore anticipates bullding
on its Suffolk contract award

There 1s a growing market for enabling senvices — both in the UK and
elsewhere around the world - that combine facilities management,
support services and patient administration to improve service quality
and productmty In hospitals and other health establishments

At our GSTS patholegy joint venture, the management team has been
further strengthened in the year with the appointment of an independent
Chairman This role 1s integral in helping GSTS take forward its strategy
for modernising NHS patholagy and implementing its plans io deliver
growth of the business GSTS has recently been succassful in bidding
to provide pathology services to the NHS Midlands & East Strategic
Health Authonty cluster

Transport & Local Direct Semvices

Serca's excellent credentials in transportation systems will support
selected future growth opportunities in the UK and other countnes

For example, Serco has signed a cooperation agreement with Stromma
Tounsm & Marntime to make a jont bid to manage and operate the ferry
services In Stockholm's archipelage and harbour from 2014 As well as
transfernng skdls and capabilittes 10 new markets, we are pursuing further
existing contract expansion, as has been demonstrated in our support

of the growth of the Barclays Cycle Hrre scheme in London We will also
be progressing with the rebid processes for our DLR contract, which runs
to 14 September 2014, and our Northern Rail contract, which runs to

1 Apnl 2014, while other potential opportunities may emerge as part

of governments' future structuning of transport networks and services

In local government ironthne semices, growth In environmental services
and other areas of integrated faciities management such as leisure
services are expected to emerge Reductions in funding and increased
service demands from citizens are diving more interest in strategic
parinenng, service shanng and personalisation of services

Defence & Science

The defence market 15 expected to develop further opportunities for
support In areas such as infrastructure manageament business process
and whole enterpnse outsouraing, and techmical and engineenng
services Serco will also seek similar opportunities in the science market
and emerging markeis for energy management

Developing from Serco's operation of Defence Business Services and
supported by the skills and capabiities of the Global Services dvision,
we will be pursuing opporturities for strategic partnerships such as the
Defence Infrastruciure Orgarusation (DIO) The DIO 1s responsible for
managing and mantaning land and property for the MaD in the UK and
abroad, with the potental for further efficiencies to be actieved across its
operations A similar opportunity 1s for the Detence Equipment & Support
dvision, which 1s currently going through further review as to how a
competitive process could be run

Serco has formed a parinership with two other leading nuclear companies,
CH2M HILL and AREVA, to participate in the Nuclear Decommissioning
Authonty’s competiton to oversee management of decommissioning
actmvities at 12 UK nuclear sites The CAS Restoration Partnership brings
together the unparalleled UK and interational expertise of its three
partners across nuclear operabons, site management decommissioning
and waste management

Serco has successfully expanded the scope of existing contract
relationships to broaden its services For example, within the scope

of the onginal Dstl caontract, options ¢an be exercised for additional
Target Services and in 2012 Serco added the prowvision of an end-to-end
procurement service for laboratory assets across Dsti's three core sites
Serco will pursue further contract expansions in the future to continue
driving additionat value for our defence and science customers
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Americas

Our Americas segment provides professional, technology

and management services focused pnmarily on the US federal
government, including every branch of the military, a broad range
of civilan agencies and the National Inteligence community.

We also provide services to the Canadian government,

selected US state governments and municipal governments

Americas - operating review Sigmificant cost reduction was undertaken in 2011, allowing margins
Revenue on a constant curiency as well as on an arganic basis declined to be held at the time While cost actions have continued, the challenging
by 14% Revenue on a reported currency basis given the marginal market conditions have led inewvitably to lower margins in 2012, with this
strengthening of the US dollar, fell by 13% to £753m (2011 £868m) and likely to continue while the difficult and uncertain environment persists

represented 16% of Group ongoing revenue {2011 19%) Adusted

operating profit reduced by 24% on a reported currency basis to £556 2m While revenues have reduced due to the market conditions, new task

(2011 £73 0m), with the margin decreasing to 7 3% (2011 8 4%) orders, contract awards and rebids continue to be secured in numerous
areas that are less affected by the general budgetary challenges

The US federal contracting market has remained very difficult The decline

in revenues reflects challenges that have faced the US government's Serco's US Army Career and Alumni Program (ACAP) contract secured

fiscal 2012 and 2013 annual federal budgeting processes, with a senes of  two expansions dusing the year ACAP services mnclude transitron and

Continuing Resolutions agan being necessary due to political difficulties employment assistance counselling for military personnel at 54 ACAP

in reaching agreement on budget funding Both the Depariment of Defense  locations across the United States, Korea, ltaly Kuwait and Germany

and cvillian agencies have been facing cuts, with the threat of these being  Under the program, Serco has served more than 2 3 million active

on an automatic basis via a mechanism known as 'sequestration’ These personnei, therr families and members of the Guard and Reserves for over

factors have severely disrupted the industry with government agencies two decades with this now expanding to extend support to Guard and

further postponing contract award anncuncements, delaying work under Reserve members who are not able to wisit an ACAP Center for services

existing contracts and cancelling or reducing the scope of many contracts ~ Serco’s second expansion includes the addition of financtal planring

and task orders The Bureau of Economic Analysis reported that, with the counsellors at ACAP Centers areund the world The two expansions

threat of sequestration looming, in the final quarter of 2012 the Federal over the two remaining option years are valued in total at US$54m
government's defence spending was down 22%, the biggest reduction

for 40 years Further pressures have included an increase in ‘small In the area of mission cnbcal logistical support services, Serco began
business set asides' Iin Serco's served markets that restnct our ability to a new contract valued n total at US$57m over a maximum thiee years
be prime contractor m some cases, and the Federal government shifting This supports the United States Forces Afghanistan (USFOR-A) base
to awarding pnmarily on a methodology of ‘Lowest Price Technically clasure and transition intiative through the coordination of logistics and
Acceptable’ rather than ‘Best Value’ deconstruction of bases throughout Afghamstan Similar to the services
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we provided it lraq, Serco’s Base Closure Assistance Teams (BCATs)

are assisting military units with the key aspects of redeployment Serco
also provides logistics expertise to the US Aimy under the Logistics

Cavil Augmentation Program (LOGCAP), where we provide programme
management, cost analysis, logistics planning and administrative senices
around the world in support of the United States and alled forces duning
operations Additional task orders awarded in the year were valued n
total at US$12m

Also for the US Army, we have been awarded a new contract for a full
range of techmical support services to assist in forecasts that reflect the
changes in the political and miltary cimate The contract has a total value
of US$8m over a maximum of five years Under an IDIQ vehicle with the
US Navy Serco has been awarded a US$11m task order for similar work
to provide forecasting models to support Navy personnel readiness
Under the same IDIQ, a further US$4m task order has been awarded

to provide counsellors in support of wounded Saillors and

Coast Guardsmen

Serco was awarded a new production and engineering services contract
for the US Navy to support Automated Digital Network Systems (ADNS})
Serco will perform hardware integration and testing to deliver the Navy's
newest ADNS configuration on shore, ships and submannes The contract
has a total value of US$68m over a maximum of five years

Serco was awarded a new contract 1o upgrade Command Control,
Communications, Computers, Inteligence, Technology, Surveillance and
Reconnaissance (C4ITSR) equipment ang systems on Mine Resistant
Ambush Protected (MRAP) vehicles for the US Air Force US Army, US
Marine Corp and US Navy The installation i1s being carned out on-site

in Afghamistan, Kuwart and Qatar, enabling immediate deployment

with Serco also providing In-country maintenance suppor semvces

The 15-month contract, awarded under the Sea Enterpnse IDIQ contract
vehicle, has a nine-month base penod and a sx-month option period with
a total value of US$73m Serco provided additional seraces under this
IDIQ contract vehicle to the US Navy's Space and Naval Warfare Systems
Command {SPAWARY), with task orders awarded in the year valued

at US$19m

Serce provides a range of other mission-critical engineenng and IT
services to the Department of Defense under the C4ITSR contract vehicle
These services include engineering, systems integration, hardware
procurement, software develapment, technical support, installation testing
operations and mantenance Addiional task orders awarded in the year
were valued in total at US$59m Dunng the peniod Serco was also
officially granted ISG/IEC 20000 certification, which measures our
approach and capability in delivenng world-class IT managed services

Serco also secured important rebids and extensions for defence and
secunty customers Serco sighed a one-year extension valued at
approximately LUS$100m for its contract with a US inteligence agency,
where we prowde IT architecture, systems and systems engineering
financial management and procurement support, nsk management
performance assessment and reporting Our contract to support
undersea surveillance for the US Navy was successiully retnd at

a total value of US$19m over a maximum of five years

Beyond our defence and securnity work, Serco has also rebid and
extended other important relanonships  For the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency, under a five-year US$43m contract Serco will
continue 1o provide a range of parking related services, infrastructure and
systems support Including deploying GPS vehicle tracking technology
For Semincle County Flonda, Serco has rebid its management and
maintenance services contract for a 2,200 vehicle and equipment fleet,
worth US320m over five years For the Federal Retirement Thnft
Investment Board, Serco will conbinue to support the US government
retirement plan delivenng records management and processing sofutions
n an extension vatlued at US$26m over a maximum two years For the US
Patent and Trademark Office, where Serco will now classify approxmately
1,500 patent applications a day, our contract has been extended and
expanded, valued in total over thiee years at LIS$43m Serco's long-
standing work with United States Citizenship and immigration Services
has been extended to manage and process an additional two million
records as a result of an Executive Order 1ssued by President Obama

In support of Immigration Qualfications, Deferred Action for Childhood
Arrival This two-year extension 1s valued in total at US$25m
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Americas - growth opportunities

The federal contracting market 15 likely to face continued attntion due
to the ongoing budget uncertainty and the protracted challenges facing
Congress in dealing with the growing national debt The threat of
sequestration, as onginally included i 2011’s debt ceiling deal, was due
to take effect from 2 January 2013 unless some form of agreement was
reached by the government on tax and spending 1ssues, but received

a short-term postponement Current federal funding 1s also continuing
to operate under short-term Continuing Resoltutions, which often himit
commitments to new programs As a result, the outlook for spending
on government services remams both unclear and severely challenged
Industry studies suggest the total budget addressable by government
contractors could decline by approximately 10% or more annuatly

In 2013 and potentially beyond untid the cycle {uins

As 1s normal for our Americas division, there1s a hugher frequency of
retxdds than s typical for our operations elsewhera around the world
The development of our business will also be shaped by the successtul
outcome of rebids within a chaltenging market ervironment Important
short-term extensions have been secured as noted, while other
significant rebids are due over the next 12 months such as Ontanie
Drnver Examination Services the National Visa Center the Federal
Retirement Thrift Investment Board and the Department of

Veteran Affars
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Serco continues to focus on markets that we expect will receve ongoing
funding support, and on assisting government customers to achieve
greater efficiencies and hugher productiwty with constrained resources
Our key areas are Logistics & Program Management, Communication

& Informanon Systemns, Natonal Intelhgence, Human Capital Management,
Bustness Process Qutsourcing, and Transportahon & Asset Management
US government agencies are increasingly using mutti-award contract
vehicles to 1ssue task orders on a rapid-cycle, competitive basis
Continuing to qualfy for and win business under such IDIQ contract
vehicles will be a key contributor to Serco's growth

in IT services and solutions, Serco 1s one of 54 awardees on a
government-wide acquisition contract {(GWAC) with a ceiling value

of US$20bn over aten-year penod  Serco will bid on a range of task
orders for all {fedetal evilian and Department of Defense agencies that
require services and solutions Including biomedhcal IT systems, cloud
computing, cybersecunty, mobilty, telecommunications, and daia centre
consolidation Serco s one of seven recent awards on a new SPAWAR
Systems Center (35C) Atlantic Pillar Multiple Award Contract (MAC)

for Produchon, Installation and In-Semace (PIl) support This MAC

has a potential celing value of US$900m over a maximum of five years,
and enables Serco to bid on lask orders to provide Pll suppon, Iie-cycle
logistics traing and large scale integration to deliver engineenng
equipment and systems support




Serco 1s also one of eight awards on a new MAC supporting SSC with
integrated Command and Control (C2) engineenng and technical support
services for command centres This MAC has a potenlial ceihing value

of US$145m over a maximum of three years

Serco has been awarded a place on the new Consultant, Advisory,

and Techmcal Services {CATS) contract vehucle that will provide support
services to the US Air Force Medical Service (AFMS) at 69 Ar Force
Medical Treatment Faciliies in the United States and its terntones
Serco s among 13 award winners on the [DIQ contract, which 1s valued
at US$985m over a five-year period Serco will compete for task orders
for Advisory & Assistance Services (ABAS) that will help reduce eritical
workload demands being placed on the AFMS Services will nclude
support in the areas of healthcare admirustration, executive assistance,
financial analysis, business process consulting, policy analysis,
engineernng and technical services

Serco Amercas’ pipeline includes numerous further areas of longer
term opporturity For our Navy customers we expect growth through
modernisalion work to extend the seriice life of the existing lleet

The Department of Defense 15 expected to increase its focus on areas
such as Inteligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance {ISR), unmanned
fight, space and cybersecunty Human capital management and
transformation programmes are widenung in scope to support future

changes to the size and shape of the armed forces As a result of the
LS government's Affordable Care Act, we see opporturities to defiver
solutions supporting patient satisfaction requirements and health
Insurance enrolment iniatives BPO opponunities with federal and
other customers will be pursued to deliver enhanced service and more
cost-effective solutrons We plan to leverage our strong capabilities in
economic cost analysis and programme management to support the
Department of Defense’s drve for cost savings The transportation
market i1s expected to provide opportunities for our arr traffic control,
traffic management systems and other transport infrastructure and
operational management skills and capabilities We will aflso continue
to review markets in both North Amernrca and South Amenca for potential
to transfer more of Serco’s skills and capabiliies
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Our AMEAA segment consists of Australasia, Middle East, Asia and
Afnca, in which we provide a range of frontline services including
transport, Justice, Immugration, health, defence and other direct

services such as facilities management.

AMEAA - operating review

Revenue on a reperted currency basis grew 31% to £883m (2011 £672m),
and represented 18% of Group ongoing revenue, up from 15% in 2011
Revenue on a constant currency basis grew by 30% Excluding the
contnbution from acquisibons, revenue on an organic basis grew by 22%
Adusted operating profit grew by 25% on a reported currency basis to
£64 3m (2011 £51 4m), with the margin decreasing to 7 3% (2011 7 6%}

The very strong organic growth reflects revenue from new contracts
begun Iin 2012 and those that had started but were not fully operational
throughout 2011, as well as the expanston of existing contracts,
particularly an increase in the amount of work undertaken for the
Austrahan Department of Immigratton and Citizenship (DIAC) The
reduction in margin principally reflects the returm to a more normal level
of margin on the DIAC contract

In Imrmigration Services in Austrahia, the level of cregular martime armvals
has increased in 2012, leading to a growth 1n the number of people In

our care in response, we successfully managed the opening of new
detention centres in the Northern Terrtory and Weslern Australia The level
of our future activity i1s still hkely to fluctuate based on country conditions
in the Middle East and Asia, where most people in our care onginate,

and the prevalling government policy, speed of wsa pracessing and the
application of the Australian government's recent off-shore processing
legistation Serco has a very strong customer retationship with DIAC,
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with both parties working closely to mantain a safe and stable network
of centres, responding with humanity and respect in the operation
of this sensitive contract

A number of other contract awards in Austraha generated incremental
revenues Serco's operation of Court Secunty and Custodial Services

for the Western Austrahan Department of Corrective Services was fully
operational, achieving over 30,000 client movements in the year A new
contract valued at A350m over five years (with potential to extend to 15
years In total) for the new Wandoo Integration Facility 1in Western Austraha
became fully operational In November 2012 Serco also expanded the
scope of its contracts at Acacia Prison in Western Austraha and for the
new South Queensland Correctional Centre, which replaced the previous
{acility al Borallon In New Zealand, Serco’s operation of the Mount Eden
Corrections facility In Auckland successfully completed its first full year

The pre-operational phase of the new-build Fiona Stantey Hospital in
Perth has continued to see Serco’s involvement grow Flans are on track
for the opening in 2014 at which point Serco’s full faciiies management
and support serces contract tc ensure the smooth running of the whole
hospital will begin The first phase of recruitng over 1,000 non-clintcal
staff required 1o operate the hospital has already begun In our transport
operations Great Southern Rall i adverse conditions for the Australian
tounsm markel, has continued to hoid revenue broadly stable through
additional operating nvestment The business was presented with the




Serwvice Excellence award at the 2012 Australian Business Awards, while
The Ghan was voted ‘best luxury rail journey’ worldwide in Luxury Travel
Magazine for the third year running

DMS Mantime, our defence and marne semces business, has continued
to show good organic growth As one of Australia’s largest manume
service operators, It has faciliies in every major port and a technical
support network that extends a wide range of engineering and technical
services across Asia Pacific DMS Mantime manages, operates and
maintains over 600 vessels in the region, with commercial, defence and
government agency customers including the Royal Australian Navy and
the Austraban Customs & Border Protection Service Towards the end

of the year, Serco completed the purchase of the remaining 50% equity
stake In the business from its joint venture partner, P&O Mantme Services

In the Middle East service on the Dubar Metro has continued to see
world class operational standards, with 99 9% of all trans on ime and
the Roads and Transport Authority reporting a record number of Metro
passengers in 2012 up by 58% on 2011 Duning the year Serco also
added engineenng and maintenance responsibiliies required to support
network expansion Our logistics and base support operations i the
region for the Australian Defence Force successfully completed therr first
year of operations, whilst our integrated faciliies management operations
in the region have also delivered strong growth
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AMEAA - growth opportunities

The AMEAA region has expenenced the fastest growth of our portfoho for
a number of years and we continue to see good opportunities for further
strong growth Our exishing operations in Australasia, the Middle East and
Indta each present prospects In addition, there 1s further growth potental
from expanding INto new regions as emerging market governments take
steps to adopt international best practice in procurement processes,

to suppeort their social infrastruclure improvement programmes

In the justice sector, we see further opportunities in the operaton of
new-build and existing prisons as governments deal with capacity and
efficiency challenges For example, Serco’s consorttum signed a contract
dunng the year to provide and operate the new Win pnson in Auckland
Under the design, construct, manage and finance contract, Serco will
manage the new 960-place male prniscn for 25 years once it becomes
operational n 2015 The contract will deliver revenues of approximately
£15m a year Related services such as court escorting also

represent opportunities

In transpon, Serco 13 seeking to leverage 1ts international expertise,
particularly in urban transportation and metro systems In India, Serco has
been awarded its first fronthine services contract to operate and mantan
the new Bus Rapid Transut Services, a dedicated 11 3km bus cortidor in
the ity of Indore in central Incha Further expanding our services with the

B2 | Serco Group ple | Annual report and accounts 2012

Dubai Airports Company, Serce will be prowding the operations and
mamntenance for the new Automated People Mover at the arport
Numerous bidding opporturities throughout the AMEAA regicn are
expected to support other road and raill operation and maintenance
contracts, as well as traffic management systems

Serco 1s also a global leader in air navigation, and sees opportunities

to expand services both wathin the region and into new geographies

For example, In 2012 Serco's management of Irag arspace at Baghdad
International Airport was expanded to deliver arr traffic control services
at Erbil in Iraq Kurdistan  Qur ability to mobilise tughly skilled awation
teams quickly 1s well established, and we are in discussions with a
number of potential customers seeking a step change in air navigatton
safety, capacity and performance

Integrated faciiies management contracts in the commercial and other
sectors are expecied to grow, particularly given ongoing completion of
major construction projects n the UAE Last year's acquisiion of a small
regional specialist 1s delivering strong results Serco has also capitalised
on its new business development presence In the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia Two new consultancy agreements will provide asset management
strategies to implement operational efficiency processes for building
mamtenance and infrasteuctuse




QOur defence business in Australia has a strong base from which to
expand services, Including garnson and mantime support, training,
engineering and maintenance In the growing manne services market,
our presence has been strengthened by our full ownership of DMS
Mantime Serco will now be well placed to pursue more complex
opportunities that may emerge from new capabilily requirements for the
Australian Defence Force, to be detailed in its forthcoming White Paper
2013 It will allow Serco to fully leverage DMS Mantime's defence systems
integration, supply chain management and through-lite support
capabiities across the marnbme, land systems and ultimately aerospace
domains DMS Mantme additienally provides Serco with a platform to
further expand the breadth of our manne services to the commercial
mantime market This includes port infrastructure and related services to
the resources sector, dnven by the ongoing high demand for commodities
and energy

In the emerging and rapidly growing health markets in the region,
governments are increasingly tooking to invalve private sector provision
Across the region, Serco will be pursuing potential opportunities for the
operation of hospitals and related services bullding on the strength of our
UK operauons and the Fiona Stanley Hospital in Australia For example,
Serco was also awarded a new support services contract for the Prince

of Wales Hospital, one of the busiest in Hong Kong wath over 1 000 beds
and complex facilities

The AMEAA division will also be supperted by the Global Services diviston
in joint growth opportunities for its customers Relationships, skills and
capabilites will be pooled for opportuniies such as prowding shared
services 1o government departments
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In 2012, Serco created a new global BPO division, bringing together all
of Serco’s middle and back office skills and capabilittes across customer
contact, transaction and financial processing, and related consuiting

and technology services

Global Services - operating review

The new Global Sernices division improves the services we provide o
customers and addresses a wider range of opportunities in both the
private and public sectors Customers around the world are increasingly
looking for end-to-end senaces that combine frontline capabiity with
rmiddle and back office operations, helping them to drive more efficiency
and better qualty services In addition to seeling specihic BPO
opportunities the dvisicn will also work alongside the regional dwisions
to delwer fully integrated services for ther customers The estabhishment
and growth of Serco Globat Services with global annual revenues in
excess of $1 1 bilion places Serco as a top ter international

BPO crganisahon

Revenue on a reported currency basis grew 40% to £716m (2011 £511m)
This represented 15% of Group ongoing revenue, up from 11% in 2011
Revenue on a constant currency basis grew by 45% Excluding the
contribution from acquisiions, principally Infelenet and Vertex, revenue
on an orgamic basis grew by 12% In the previous year there were
revenues from the Bradford education cantract which transterred back
to the Council in September 2011, and from our Business Link services,
the majonty of which have now closed due to the government funding
cuts borne by the Regional Development Agencies Excluding these two
areas, underlying revenue growth for our new global BPO dwsion has
been over 30%
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Adjusted operating profit grew by 83% on a reported currency basis to
£62 1m (2011 £34 Om), with the margin increasing 1o 8 7% (2011 6 7%)
The margin Increase was dnven principally by the contnbution from the
higher margn Intelenet operations and significant pnvate sector wins

Over the course of 2012, we concluded the significant programme of
tntegrating the acquisitions made in 2011, combining them with Serco's
existing strengthin |T-enabled service delivery Tools such as Workiorce
Management have been rolled out, as well as standardising and
strengthening al management and compliance procedures Significant
mvestment has been made in IT integration, and thts will continue to be
a feature to place the business in the strongest posttion for future growth
In 2013 there will also be further additicnal investment costs for new
delivery centres and business development inibatives around the world,
supporting the strong pipeline of growth opportunities

In s first full year of Serco ownership, the former Intelenet operations
have met our expectations as sei out al the time of acquisition Intelenet
has been a key part of the strong underlying revenue growth for the
whole of Serco Global Services As well as incremental revenues already
achieved, numercus mayjor strategic wins made part way through 2012
will also support expected strong revenue growth into 2013




tn July 2012, Serco began operating a new ten-year contract for Shop
Direct Group, the UK's leading online and home shopping retaiter, valued
n total at approximately £430m Serco has taken aver responstbility for
providing all customer contact senaces across Shop Direct's brands The
partnership will work together o significantly enhance senice levels and
efficiency through investment in the latest technclogy, such as web chat
and mobile digital services, which are designed 10 seamlessly integrate
online and mobile customer contact management Qur sclution combines
capabiliies from the Intelenet and The Listering Company acquisiions as
well as the additional scale advantage from Serco's other BPO operations

In November 2012, Serco began a new outsourcing partnership to
provide customer contact and suppont services for AEGON the leading
Iife and pensions company, marking Serco's entry into this impartant
sagment of the financial services market The inihal ten-year contract 1s
valued In total at around £170m Deliverning a wide range of services for
AEGON's UK-based protection business, Serco 1s managing all aspects
of the customer journey from initial underwniing through to clams
processing, as well as servcing a small nurber of closed-book policies
Serco 1s responsible for the administration of approximately 500,000
current and closed-book policies in total

Many other new private sector BPO operations began dunng 2012

In retail, a €55m ten-year contract with Freemans Grattan Holdings

sees Serco delivenng all aspects of customer contact services, including
custorner enquines, inbound and outbound sales credit applications,
payments, order processing white mail and e-mail handling Serco also
secured new retationships with two of the UK's most prestigious retailers,
to provide services including order ine and customer management,
while for a leading European media company Serco Is providing fronthne
customer contact, back office and specialist support from an expanded
service centre n Teltow near Berlin, Germany These three contracts,
which have three to five-year terms, have a total combined value of
approximately £50m

Serco was awarded a new contract to provide multi-ingual customer
contact services for leading European arline easyJet Serco has
responsitility for the operation, administratton and management of
easyJet's mulb-channel customer contact, delvered through a blend of
near-shore and off-shore provision from Poland and India This initial
three-year contract has a total value of approxmately £18m Serco also
began a wide range of customer sales services for Bnbish Gas in the UK
delivering customer acquisition activities for energy domestic appliance
and drain care services In a new three-year contract, valued in total at
approximately £16m
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Other new contract awards include support to a UK general insurance
provider to reduce therr backlog of Financiat Services Authonty regulatec
complaints, providing 1,800 customer contact employees and mutti-
channel services for a large banking and financial services company in
India supporting the booking processes for travel and hospitality services
for an award-winning loyalty program on behalf of a leading US-based
global onhine travel company, and establishing off-shore delivery centres
to provide back office services such as indexing, Invoice processing,
ctaims adjudication and pelicy maintenance for a leading UK-based
healthcare insurance provider

In the public sector, The Anglia Support Partnership (ASP) which has

an imtial value of £120m over four years, began operating in April 2012
This 1s Serco's first shared services proposition in the emerging market
for middle and back office support to the UK health sector Current
support senices mnclude operational and speciahst IT, inance operatons,
employment services, contracts management, procurement, primary
care support services, occupational health, sk management, catering,
and estates and property The framework agreemen! also permits the
call-oft ot additional services and allows other NHS orgamsations to
access services
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The Peterborough City Council strategic partnership which had an initial
value of £100m over ten years saw the transfer of the in-house shared
service centre to Serco in late 2011 Serco s already successfully growing
this contract, with further sernces such as procurement baing brought
Into scope as part of the Council’s transiermation  The Hertfordshire
County Council operations which commenced in April 2011 have atso
widened therr scope, with staff numbers more than doubling and new
ocperations such as the Adult Social Care Access Service now being
provided Additionally, Serco’s property and T joint venture with Glasgow
City Councill, known as ACCESS, has seen informatron, communications
and technology (ICT) support for the authonty’s schools added to

its responsibilities

Other strategically important existing relationships were also developed
in the penod Serco has extended and expanded 1ts relationship with a
leading telecom provider tn India for a further three-year term Providing
contact services and transaction support, the contract which began in
2006 from three delivery centres has expanded to ten today and handles
an average of 14 millon calls and transactions per month Our expertise
in thes relationship also supported the award of a new contract with
another ieading telecom prowder, where five delivery centres will provide
contact services under this new refatonshep These three-year contracts
on a combined basis have a total value of approximately £60m




Serco successfully renewed its contract wath the Australian Tax Ofiice
(ATO) to provide contact centre servces 1o Australian taxpayers,
busmnesses and tax professionals across a diverse range of taxation and
superannuaton-related issues Serco m partnership with the ATO and
other suppliers, 1s responsible for providing advice and responding to
enguirnes relating to tax numbers refunds, business activity statements
debt management return submissions and tax information packs

The renewed contract has an irstal five-year term with a total value of
approximately £90m Serco also successiully renewed 1ts contract to
provide a comprehensive range of customer senices tor the Nahonal Rail
Enquirtes service in the UK The contract which has been operated by
Serco and the former Intelenet business since 2004 includes Help Point
support customer care, enquines and complaint handiing across a range
of channels including voice, email and web chal Responding to changing
patterns of consumer engagement, this innovative five-year contract s
valued in total at approximately £10rn

Recogrusing the substantial amount of new business won dunng the year,
Serco was identified as one of the top three global BPO seriice providers
by the leading BPO industry analyst firm NelsonHall in its 2012 BPO
Index This index measures the performance of leading BPO service
prowiders based on the tota!l contract value of wins achieved in 2012
Recognising the overall scale of our operations, we were also named

as one of the top 15 BPO providers within leading technology insights
and adwisory services firm ISG's TPl Index

Duning 2012 our operations have continued to wan varicus accolades

in the crucial area of employee development According to NASSCOM's
ranking of I-BPC employers in India, Serco Global Services 1 now the
largest pure-play BPO business Awards in 2012 include recognition
within ‘Asia’s Best Employer Brand Awards’ and ‘India’s Best Companies
to Work For', the latter being for ‘Best Company in Career Growth'

Global Services - growth opportunities

Serco has built significant capability i the fast growing, higher margin
BPO market, broadening Serco's customer and geographic reach
This has added scale and depth to provide private and public sector
customers with a range of end-to-end, ntegrated business services
as they seek to reduce costs and improve efficiencies by transforming
therr operations

Serco's approach is increasingly recognised for leadership in
transtorming a customer's operations as opposed to simpte 'Iift and shift'
solutions Serco's bids benefit from our substantial scale and global
reach, in particular from the ability to provids a blend of on-shore
near-shore and off-shore service provision We are also a clear leader

in areas such as mult-channel customer contact services Significant
contract wins In 2012 such as Shop Duect and AEGON have
demonstrated these factors and prowide excellent short-term growth

into 2013 as these annualise, but importantly also provide strong
referenceability for similar work in the future

We are addressing a large number of private sector opportunities

The significant pipeline of prospects continues {o be spread across large
and dwerse industry groups Banking, Financial Services & Insurance,
Travel, Hosprality & Transportation, Retal, Healthcare, Utilities &
Manufactunng, and Telecom, Technology, Cnhne Services & Media

Our geographic reach both for custorners and service centre locations has
expanded to support future growth This has included new ogerations I
Germany, South Afnca and Saudi Arabia The latter, following our first
centre launch in Dubal in 2011, supports further expansion in the largest
economy in the Middle East Global Services also expanded its India-
based Agra facility, further strengthening its dominant position in the Indran
dormestic BPO market The management team in the Amencas region
has also been strengthened to target significant growth opportunities

In the public sector, the Global Services division 1s working alongside
the regional dvisions to bid and defiver fully integrated sotutions for thetr
customers Significant revenue synergias have already been achieved
where the Group's combined capabilities are able 1o transform public
services, and we expect more to emerge in the future

in June 2012, Serco acquired Verlex's UK public sector BPO operations,
bringing additionat expertise and strategic partnerships to support
expansion Into new areas of middle and back office support, and at

the same time increase Serco's operational scale This will help develop
future opporiunities in beth the central and local government markets,
with Vertex bringing significant customer referenceability and specific
skills in HR and payroll, revenues and benefits, complex case
management and adrministration services Its 3,000 employees

handle approximately 4 5 million ¢ihizen interactions a year

In the UK, the government has recently set out how it intends to achieve
effictencies in shared service centres and has also set out the transaction
costs Involved in providing services for ciizens The Global Services
division would provide support In bidding for operations such as contact
centre services, case management, identity verification, transaction
processing, ICT, human resources and payroll, hnance and accounting,
and any other middle or back office support function that s required

For example, for the Ministry of Justice, Global Services 1s prowding
support to the UK & Europe division for court fines and compliance and
enforcement, electronic monitonng and prison management The future
development of the Ministry of Defence's DIO opportunity similar in
nalture to the DBS contract already led by the UK & Europe division,
would also see Global Services support, as would tenders expected

for the Home Office in areas such as visa services

The ASP contract 1s expected to be a key enabler to growing Serco's
combunation ¢t health support services and BPO cperations We are
already seeing growth i areas such as procurement senvices, and expect
the framework agreement to support significant further growth Other
opportunities in pronding business services to NHS organisations are
also being pursued

We recently signed a new contract to provide multi-channel contact

centre services to the Department of Heatth 1o cover a range of public
health programimes Other cential government shared senice centre
opportunities are expected to be developed For example, the Department
for Work and Pensions 1s assessing the case for a shared services centre
to process claims and payments There 1S also the potenhal to expand

the scope of support for existing customers such as Job Centre Plus

and emerging BPO opportunities for other agencies and departments

Our work with local authonties to transform therr services continues

to show a good pipeline of opportunities Local authorihes are further
developing therr strategies based on a smaller proportion of services that
they deem to be core, thereby increasing the potential to outsource other
non-core supporting operations Existing Serco strategic partnerships

at Hertfordshire, Glasgow and Peterborough have all demonstrated the
potental for expansion, and the addition of the Thurrock and Westrminster
contracts previously operated by Vertex adds to our ability to increase
the scope of services Research by YouGov supports the view that iocat
authonties are looking for further outsourcing, with this increasingly
tocused on transformational change
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Overview

Our business delivered a strong financial performance in 2012, with revenue growing 5 7% and Adjusted
operating proht increasing by 8.5% to £314 8m Excluding currency effects, revenue growth was 6 2%

(3 3% organic) and Adjusted operating profit growth was 9.9%. Our Adjusted operating margin increased
by 17 basis points {22 basis points excluding currency effects) Adjusted profit before tax grew by 6 1%
(7.3% excluding currency effects) Group free cash flow increased by 7.7% to £181.2m, prnincipally as a
result of the increase in profits and an exceptionally high leve! of dvidends received from joint ventures.

For 2013, we are forecasting a modest improvement in the rate of organic revenue growth The impact
of acquisitions and disposals to date s likely to have a broadly neutral impact on total revenue growth.
We are forecasting our Adjusted operating margin to be broadly maintained at the level achieved in 2012,

1. Income statement

Serco's ncome statement for the year 1s summansed in Figure 1 below This includes the results of joint ventures which are proportionately
consolidated The table shows separately the revenue and Adjusted operating profit of ongoing actvities, which exclude the financial results of
subsidianes and operations disposed of dunng the year Measures of Adjusted operating proft, Adjusted profit before tax and Adjusted earnings
per share are presented, which are calculated before amorntisaton of intangibtes ansing on acquisittons, acquisition-related costs and exceptional
items (being profit or losses on disposal of subsidiaries and operations, the donation to the Serco Foundation and the gain ansing irom step
acquisition accounting on the DMS joint venture)
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Figure 1 Income statement

2012 2012 2012 2011
Before oxceptional Items Exceptional items Totel
Year ended 31 December £m £m £€m £m
Revenue ongoing activities 48322 - 48322 44718 81%
Revenue disposed activities 808 - 808 1746
Total revenue 49130 - 49130 4,646 4 57%
Gross profit 7435 - 7435 700 4 62%
Administrative expenses {428 7) - {428 7) (410 3} 4 5%
Adjusted operating prohit ongoing actvities 3091 3091 276 4 11 8%
Ad|usted operating profit disposed activities 57 57 137
Adjusted operating piofit 3148 - 3148 2901 85%
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition 24 1) - {24 1) (200)
Acquisition-related costs 37 - (37) {39)
Exceptional net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations - 56 56 -
Exceptional donation to Serco Foundation - (50) (50) -
Operating profit 2870 06 2876 266 2 80%
Exceptional other gain - 511 511 -
Investment revenue and finance costs (36 7) - {387 (27 9)
Profit before tax 2503 517 3020 2383 26 7%
Tax (62 &) 85 (56 1) {63 1}
Profit for the year 1877 58 2 2459 1752 40 4%
Effective tax rate 25 0% 186% 26 5%
Ad)justed operating margin 64% 64% 62%
Adjusted profit before tax £278 1m - £2781m £262 2m 61%
Adjusted earnings per share 42 55p - 42 55p 39 59p 75%
Earnings per share 38 09p 11 85p 45 Mp 35 70p 39 9%
Dividend per share 10 10p 8 40p 20 2%

1 1 Revenue

Revenue grew by 5 7% to £4,913 Om (6 2% excluding currency effects) Organic revenue growth, excluding currency effects and acquisitions,
was 3 3% reflecting the growth of existing contracts and the contnbution of new contracts started in 2011 and 2012

1 2 Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit increased by B 5% to £314 8m, representing an Adjusted operating profit margin of 6 4% Adjusted operating profit margin
increased by 17 basis points (22 basis points excluding currency effects)
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1 3 Reportable segments and ongoing activities

The table below shows the segmental results split between ongoing activiies being the part of the business which will continue into 2013
and disposed activities, being the part of the business which contributed to the 2012 and 2011 results but was disposed of dunng the year

Figure 2 Reportable segments

UK & Europe Americas AMEAA Global Services Total
Year ended 31 Decernber 2012 £m £m £m £m £€m
Segment revenue
Ongoing actvities 2,434 0 7534 8830 7018 4,8322
Disposed activities 671 - - 137 808
Revenue 2,561 1 7534 883 0 71656 4,913 0
Segment Adjusted operating profit
Ongoing activibies 1729 562 643 613 3537
Disposed activities 49 - - o8 57
Segmemt Adjusied operating profit 1778 552 643 62 1 3594
Corporate expenses {44 6)
Adjusted operating profit 3148
UK & Europe Amencas AMEAA Gilobal Semvices Total
Year ended 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Segment revenue
Ongoing achiviies 2434 1 8682 6721 497 4 44718
Disposed actwties 1611 - - 135 174 6
Revenue 25852 8682 6721 5108 4,646 4
Segment Adjusted operating profit
Ongoing actvities 1650 730 514 329 3223
Disposed activities 126 - - 11 137
Segment Adjusted cperating profit 177 6 730 514 340 3360
Corporate expenses (a5 9)
2001

Adjusted operating profit

1 4 Acquisition-related costs

These represent Incremental costs ansing from acquisition activity dunng the year The £3 7m of costs principally related to the acquistions of Vertex
Public Services Limited (Vertex} and the remaiming 50% share of DMS Manume Pty Limied (DMS) that are descrnbed in more detail in Section 4 below

15 Excephional net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations

The £5 6m exceplional item represents net profit on disposal of the four subsidianes and apérations dunng the year, which are desenbed 1In move detaill

in Section 5 below

1 6 Exceptional donation to Serco Foundation

To mark Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated to service excellence, we have established the Serco Foundatien as an independent
charitable foundation An exceptional one-off payment of £6 Orn has been made in the year to estabhsh the chantable foundation

1 7 Operating profit

Operating profit after exceptional items was £287 6m, an increase of 8 0%
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1 8 Exceptional other gain

The exceptional other gain represents the gain ansing from step acquisition accounting of the DMS joint venture This requires that, before accounting
for the purchase of the remaining 50%, the onginal 50% shareholding held at book value in Serco's accounts is restated to far value The revaluation
of this onginal 50% 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement, which resulted in a2 £51 1m non-gash exceptional gain

1 8 [nvestment revenue and finance costs |
Investment revenue and finance costs {otalled a net cost of £36 7m (2011 £27 9m), an increase of £8 8m The increase excluding currency effects
was £9 6m The pnncipal driver of the cost Increase was the fulf year effect of addiional loans raised in the prior year to finance acquisition activity

For 2013, net finance costs are anticipated to be approximately £45-50m including the impact from the forthcoming revision to 1AS 19, this would
represent a shght increase on the equivalent 2012 restated net finance cost

110 Tax

The tax charge of £56 1m (2011 £63 1m) iepresents an effective rate of 18 6% (2011 26 5%) Excluding exceptional kems the effective rate was
25 0% {2011 26 5%} Excluding exceptional and other adjusting items, the effective rate was 24 6% (2011 259%) The decrease Iin the effective
tax rate 1s pnmanly due to changes in the mix of taxable profits and the impact of the reduction in the UK headiine tax rate from 26% to 24% on

1 Apnl 2012

1 11 Earnings per share (EPS)
Adjusted EPS rose by 7 5% 1o 42 55p (8 7% excluding currency effects) EPS grew 39 9% to 49 94p while EPS excluding exceptional items grew
by 6 7% to 38 09p EPS and Adjusted EPS are calculated on an average share base of 481 2m during the year {2011 490 5m)

1 12 Expected impact of changes to accounting standards

In 2013 there will be two significant changes to accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS’} wiich will affect Serco's 2013
results and require the restatement of 2012 comparative figures These relate to changes in the joint venture accounting rules (IFRS 11} and to the
penston accounting rules (IAS 19 revised)

The change to joint venture accounting rules {IFRS 11) will remove the option for proportional consolidation of joint ventures and require equity
accounting for joint ventures instead The estimated effect on the 2012 results for this change would be to reduce statutory reported revenue by
£852 8 and profit before tax by £15 1m There 1s no impact on post tax profits, earnings per share, or net assets from this change In addiion
to the statutory measures, the 2013 income staterment will also disclose revenus and Adjusted operating profit nctuding the proportional share
of joint venture results, to provide consistency in the presentation of the results

The change to the pansion accounting rules (IAS 18 revised) will principally require pension interest return to be calculated using the value of scheme
assets mulliphed by the discount rate rather than the expected rate of asset return After accounting for IFRS11, the addihional estimated efiect on the
2012 results for this change reduces Adjusted pre lax profits by £6 Sm

2 Dividend

The Boeard s confident in the future growth prospects for the Group and of the strong financial posiion that we have We therefore intend progressively
to increase the payout ratic and thereby reduce our dividend cover over the next three years Beyond that point we anticipate a policy of mantaning
dividend cover of between 2 5 and 3 times and therefore reverting to increasing the total dvidend each year broadly in ine with the ncrease in
underlying earnings The Board has proposed a final dvidend for 2012 of 7 45p per share, bringing the total dvidend for the year to 10 10p, up 20%
compared with the previcus year This represents a payout of 24% based on 42 55p of Adjusted earnings per share, or dividend cover of 4 2 times
The final dnadend will be paid, subject to shareholder approval, on 22 May 2013 to shareholders on the register on 15 March 2013
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3. Cash flow
The Group generated a free cash inflow of £181 2m (2011 £168 3m), with the increase anging principally from the increase 1n profits and the
exceptionally high level of dividends received from joint ventures

For 2013, it1s anticipated that there will be further incremental working capital investment 1o supporst growth in our BPO business and lower dvidends
from joint ventures, which may result in free cash flow being lower than the level achieved in 2012

Figure 3 provides cash flow analysis As in previous years, we have designed the analysis to show the underlying cash performance of the Group -
the cash flows generated by subsidianes plus the dividends recewved from Joint ventures It therefore differs from the consolidated cash flow on page
119, which proporticnately consolidates the cash flows of joint ventures  The adjustment line In Frgure 3 reconciles the movement in Group cash to
the consolidated cash flow

Figure 3 Cash flow

2012 2011

Year ended 31 December £€m £m
Adjusted operating profit excluding joint ventures 2374 2085
Non cash items 56 0 642
Adjusted EBITDA excluding joint ventures 2934 2727
Working capital movement (a7 8) {32 3)
Operating cash flow excluding joint ventures 2458 2404
Interest 44 7) 327
Tax {33 B8) (322)
Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets {66 9) (715
Dwndends from joint ventures 806 643
Group free cash flow 1812 168 3
Acquisiion of subsidianes net of cash acquired {141 8) (325 3)
Disposal of subsidianes and operations net of cash disposed 1310 -
Acquisihon-related costs {(39) 37)
Purchase of own shares and 1ssue proceeds of share capital (10 3) {67)
Financing (152 0) 2360
Exceptional donation to Serco Foundation (50) -
Special pension contnbution - (40 0)
Dradends pad {21 9) (37 3)
Group net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8427) 87
Ad|ustment to include jomnt venture cash impacts (4 5) (15 1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents before exchange loss (47 2) (23 8)
Exchange loss (90) 07)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents (56 2) (24 5)
Notes

Adjusted EBITDA excluding joint ventures 15 eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, intangible amaortisation, profit on disposal of subsidranes and operations, chantable
donation, other exceptional gains and other non cash tems

Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets excludes assets funded under finance lease amangements Financing 1s stated net of directly resmbursed

capital expenditure

31 Operating cash flow excluding joint ventures

Operating cash flow excluding joint ventures of £245 Bm (2011 £240 4m) reflects a conversion of Adjusied EBITDA into cash of 83 8% {2011 88 2%)
The increase in working capital movement to £47 6m (2011 £32 3m) principally reflects the tming of transition and mobilisation of new contract awards
and an increased level of investment in supporting growth of our BPQ business

32 Interest
Net interest paid increased to £44 7m {2011 £32 7m), principally reflecting higher average Group recourse net debt following acquisitions durnng the
current and prior year

33 Tax

Tax paid was £33 6m (2011 £32 2m) The increase Iin cash tax s pnncipally as a result of higher overseas taxable profits ansing in the year Cash tax
remams below the equivalent charge in the income statement principally as a result of the avalability of accelerated capital allowances and other
timing differences
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3 4 Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets

Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets was £66 9m {2011 £71 5m) The spend principally compnises required contract capital investrment
This expenditure represents 1 6% of Group revenue excluding jont ventures (2011 1 9%) The expenditure in 2011 included additional (nvestment

in SAP systems

3 5 Dmdends from |oint ventures
Dividends received from joint ventures totalled £80 6m (2011 £64 3m), reflecting a higher than normal conversion rate of joint ventures profit after
tax into dividends of 125% We expect the conversion rate to return to a more normal rate of approximately 90% in 2013

3 6 Purchase of own shares and issue proceeds of share capital

This represents £16 Om (2011 £24 0m) for the purchase of own shares faor the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) 1n order to satisty options

granted under the Group's share option schemes net of cash inflows of £5 7m (2011 £17 3m) relating to proceeds from the issue of share capital |
and exercise of share options

4. Acquisitions

On 13 Apnl 2012, Serco entered Into an agreement to acquire the trade and assets of Anghia Support Partnership (ASP) ASP provides support services |
1o the Cambndge and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust, together with a further five partnenng NHS organisations The initial cash consideration in ,
respect of the business combination was £5 2m and deferred consideration of £3 5m was paid in the year |

On 1 June 2012, Serco acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Pnonty Properties North West Limited (PPNW) PPNW 1s a property management
company specialising in the provision of short and long term housing The cash cost of the acquisiion in the penod was £2 7m In addition, deferred
consideration of up to £1 1m 15 payable contingent on financial performance in the period to 31 January 2013

On 11 June 2012, Serco acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Vertex Public Services Limited (Vertex), a provider of high quality business
process outsourcing services to UK local and central government The cash cost of the acquisition was £55 5n Vertex brings addiional expertise
and strategic partnerships to support expansion into new areas of middle and back office support  This acquisition considerably increases Serco's
rmarket presence and further improves Serco’s position for large scale outsourcing opportunities

On 16 November 2012, Serco acquired the remaining 50% stake in DMS Maritime Pty Limited from our joint venture partner P&O Mantime Services
The transaction strengthens Serco’s position as a leading defence services provider in Australia and 10 the growing marine services market The cash
cost of the acquisition was £69 1m (A$106 3m) DMS was formerly accounted for as a jomt venture and follomng the acquisiion of further shares

It became a wholly owned subsidiary In accordance with IFRS 3 (Rewsed 2008} — Business Combinations which requires that before accounting for
the purchase of the remaning 50% the value of the previously held 50% shareholding was restated to far value on the acquisiion date This resuited
n a gan of £31 1m being recognised in the income statement

£3 7m of acquisthon-related costs incurred on the above acquisitons have been expensed to the income statement The cash flow impact of these
costs included in the cash flow statement was £3 9m, which includes £0 2m of acquisttion-related costs from pnor year acquisitions

A deterred payment of £6 6m has also been made m relation to the pnor year acquisition of Serco Listening Company Limited {formerly The Listering
Company Limited)

5. Disposals

On 29 June 2012, the Group disposed of its Techrical Services bustness wiich provides consulting and project solutions primartdy to the UK cwvil
and nuclear defence markets for net consideration of £135 3m Net assets disposed amounted to £70 3m, gwvng a gamn of £57 6m, after accounting
for disposal costs of £7 4m

On 28 June 2012, the Group disposed of its interest in Serco GmbH The farr value of consideration receivable was £nil The business provides support
services for the German ar defence radar systems, engmneerng and administrative support services for the defence sector, as well as training services,
facilities management, field installation and maintenance services and IT consulting and related services Net assets disposed amounted to £21 8m,
gwing aloss of £27 7m, after accounting for disposal costs of €5 8m

On 21 December 2012, the Group agreed to dispose of iis UK data hosting operations There was €nil cash consideration and the net assets disposed
amounted to £7 8m, gving a loss of £11 5m, after accounting for disposal costs of £3 7m

On 31 December 2012, the Group disposed of its education software business There was £6 3m of consideration recewed and the net assets
disposed amounted to £17 7m, gvng a loss of £12 Bm, after accounting for disposal costs of £1 4m
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6. Net debt
Figure 4 Net debt

2012 2011
At 31 December £m £m
Group — cash and cash equivalents 1428 194 6
Group - loans (699 5) (819 4)
Group — obligations under finance leases {50 2) (45 0)
Group recourse net debt (606 9) (669 B)
Joint venture — cash and cash equivalents 558 602
Joint venture - loans (39) (7 9)
Joint venture — obligations under finance leases (0e) (09)
Total recourse net debt {555 6) (618 4)
Group non recourse debt (25 1) {15 5)
Total net debt (580 7) (833 9)

6 1 Group recourse net debt
Group recourse net debt reduced by £62 9m to £606 9m Sources of funding are described in Section 8 below

Cash and cash equivalents includes encumbered cash of £7 5m {2011 €5 5m) This Is cashrelating to customer advance payments

6 2 Group non recourse debt

The Group’s debt is non recourse 1If no Group company other than the relevant borrower has an obligation to repay the debt under a guarantee or other
arrangement The debt 1s excluded from all of our credit agreements and other covenant calculations, and theretore has no impact on the Group's
ability to borrow

Group non recourse debt increased by £9 6m to £25 1m The increase 1s manly due to addiicnal asset financing on the National Physical
Laboratery contract

7. Pensions

The Group 1s a sponsor of a number of defined benefit schemes and defined contribution schemes At 31 December 2012, the net retirement benefit
asset included in the balance sheet ansing from our defined benefit pension scheme obligations was €14 1m (2011 £16 8m), on a pension scheme
asset base of £1 9bn

Figure 5 Defined benefit pension schemes

2012 2011

At 31 December £m £m
Group schemes - non contract specific 456 588
Contract specific schemes

— reimbursable (214 7) {188 7)
- not certan to be rembursable (32 2) {26 5)
Net retirement benefit habilities (201 3) {156 4)
Intangible assets ansing from nghts to operate franchises and contracts 62 63
Retmbursable rights debtor 2147 1887
Deferred tax Labiites (5 5) {21 8)
Net balance sheet assets 141 168

The total pension charge included in operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2012, including the proportionate share of joint ventures,
increased to £112 5m (2011 £112 3m) Within this charge, the Group's contnbutions to UK and other defined contribution pension schemes increased
to £85 1m (2011 £80 4rm) The service charge relating to the Group's defined benefit schemes decreased to €27 4m (2011 £31 8m) prncipally as a
result of a £6 1m curtalment gan relating to the disposal of the Technical Services business This curtaitment gain resulted from active members of the
Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS) becoming deferred members, creating a reduction in scheme kabilihes The gain 1s recognised in
the incorne statement within the gain on disposal of the Technical Services business

Serco has three main types of scheme which are accounted for as defined benefit pension schemes Each type has its own accounting treatment under
IFRS These are

® Non-contract specific — schemes which do not relate to speciic contracts of franctises For these schemes we charge the actuarial gain or loss for
the year to the consohdated statement of comprehensive income (the SOCI),

o Reimbursabile - schemes where we have a right of full cost reimbursement and therefore include both the pension scheme deticit and offsetting
reimbursable rights debtor in the balance sheet, and

& Not certain to be reimbursable — schemes relating to specific contracts or franchises, where the deficit will pass back to the customer or to the next
contractor at the end of the contract For these schemes, we charge the actuanal gain or loss on our share of the deficit for the year to the SOCI,
recognise a recoverable intangible asset on the balance sheet al the start of the contract or franchuse and amortise the intangible asset to the income
statemnent over the contract or franchise life
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Serco has imited commercial nsk in relation to the contract specific schemes, due either to the nght of cost reimbursement or because the deficit will,
in general, pass back to the customer or on to the next contractor at the end of the contract Among our non contract specific schemes, the largest is
SPLAS Al 31 December 2012, SPLAS had a surplus of £69 7m (2011 surplus of £122 3m) This is calculated under IAS 19 using market-denved rates
at 31 December 2012 It therefore reflects the effect of the market conditions through the actual investment sefurns in the year and the impact of an
Increase in inflation assumptions and a decrease in the applicable discount rate

The estimated actuanal deficit of SPLAS as at 31 December 2012 was approximately £10 9m (2011 £27 3m) The value calculated in the latest tnennral
review was a deficit of £141m at & Apnl 2009 Wa continue to review the level of benefits and contributions under the scheme in the light of our business
needs and changes to pension legislation

Retirement benefit obligations reduced by £50 5m as a result of the disposal of Serco GmbH The acquisition of Vertex Public Services Limited included
the acquisthon of £13 4m of net retirement benefit obligations as at 11 June 2012 -

Figure 6 shows the sensitwity of the lrabilities of our penston schemes to changes in discount rates and to adjustiments in the actuanal assumptions
for the rate of inftaton, members’ salary increases and e expectancies

Figure 6 Pension assumption sensitivities

Change In Change in

Assumption assumption liability

Discount rate 43% +05% (9%

(0 5)% +10%

Pace inflation 3 00% (RP) +05% +9%

and 2 20% (CP) {0 5)% (8)%

Salary 340% +05% +1%

(0 5)% (1)%

Longewvity 21 0-24 6* Increase by +2%
one year

* Post retirement mortality range for male and temale current and future pensioners

8. Treasury

The Group's commulted bank credit facilities total £730 Qm {2011 £726 7m) As at 31 December 2012, £177 6m had been drawn down on bank
facihties (2011 £241 3m) The bank facihity 1s solely compnsed of a £730 Om syndicated revalving credit facility, which matures in March 2017

It was signed in March 2012 and replaced all existing commutied bank credit facities

In additton to the bank credit faciity, Serco has US private placements totalling £460 8m which will be repaid between 2013 and 2023 All of the Group's
crecht facilkties detalled above are unsecured

9. Going concern

The Directors have acknowledged the guidance 'Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of UK Caompanies 2009° and 'An update for
Directars of Usted Companies Responding to Increased Country and Currency Risk in Financial Reports’, published by the Financial Reporting Council
n October 2008 and January 2012 respectively Whilst the current economic environment remains uncertain, the broad base of our contract portfolio
and with over 80% of our customers betng government bodies the Group 1s well placed to manage s business nsks successfully and has adequate
resources to continue In operational exsstence for the foreseeable future

The Group's revenues are largely denved from long-term contracts with governments Historically, these contracts have been relatively resilient to
changes in the general economy The contract portfolio 1s diverse and a downturn in any parlicutar market, sector or geography has a more lmited
effect on the Group as awhole In addition, with an order book of £19 1bn and ligh visibility of future revenue streams (92% in 2013, 79% in 2014
and 70% in 2015), the Group 1s well placed to manage its business nsks despite the current uncertain economic climate

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's principal financing Is through a revolving credit facility and US private placements  The Group has approxmately
£1,191m of committed credit faciities The headroom on the facilities was approximately £552m as at 31 December 2012 Scheduled repayments

N 2013 m respect of US private placement maturities are £23 4m in August The revoving credit facility matures in March 2017 whilst repayments

of the US private placements occur between 2013 and 2023 The Group fully expects to meet these repayments through operational cash flows

Based on the information set out above, the Directors beheve that it 1s appropnate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

Andrew Jenner
Finance Director
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Section 3 | Our performance

Corporate responsibility

Achieving our vision to be the world's greatest
service company requires us to work in the nght
way and to meet our responsibilihes to customers,
the public, our employees, partners and suppliers.
As a result, corporate responsibility (CR) is part

of who we are and how we behave

Further informabion available online www serco com

Managing corporate responsibility

Our approach to CR has fve elements — our people, heatth and safety,
the communities we serve, the environment and our marketplace, where
we carefully manage our relationships with our customers, suppliers and
other parties

The Serco Group plc board has ultimate responstbility for our Group
business sirategy and therefore approves the elements that make up
our Group CR strategy The Chief Executive Is the board sponsor for
all etements of CR and the board receives formal progress reports

at every board meeting

The Executive Commitiee 15 responsible for delivening our Group
CR objectives Each element of our CR approach has its own strategy,
which 1s developed as follows

o the Group HR Director sponsors our people strategy, which 1s
developed through the HR Directors Forum The forum i1s made up of
divisional HR directors and other senior corporate function members,
and meets regularly under the Group HR Direclor's charmanship
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Our approach to managing our responstbilities
1Is summarised below We also publish

a CR report each year, which 1s avalable

at www.serco.com/cr2012

e the Group Director of Risk and Acquisitions sponsors our health, safety
and environment (HSE) strategy This 1s based on the four divisional
strategies plus a group perspective which considers emerging HSE
nsks and the Group's evolvwng HSE nsk profile The HSE QOversight
Group which s made up of senior corporate function members and
HSE leads fiom the four divisions, agrees the HSE strategy before
11 i1s submitted to the Group Risk Management and Safety Commuttee
(GRMSC) The GRMSC reviews the HSE strategy and monitars our
performance at s guarterly meetings The chair of the GRMSC reports
and presents the HSE strategy to the Executive Committee

o our Chiet of Staff s the Executrve Committee sponsor for our community
strategy This strategy 1s developed through a CR Oversight Group
The community strategy 1s then reviewed and monitored by the
Executive Committee

@ our approach to the marketplace falls withen our overall business
strategy, for which the Chief of Staff 1s responsible The business
strategy consolidates the dwisions' business sirategies mto an
overall Group strategy, as descnbed on pages 14 and 156




Each drision has a CR sirategy, which describes the core themeas and
appropnate targets This strategy 1s monitored by the dvisicnal board and
owned by the division’s CEQ Contracts are responsible for developing
CR initiatives that are in line with therr divisional strategies and approprate
to ther business and the communities in which they operate The contract
director 1s responsible for delivering these iniiatives Our CR actvities
also reflect the passionate Involvement of our people in tocal causes,
which often involve them volunteenng significant amounts of ther own
ime to raise money or provicde drect help to causes that matter to them
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Saection 3 | Our performance
Corporate responsibility

People
The number of people we employ s continually Increasing so we
need a clear framework for managing and developing them

Qur people strategy has three components We want 1o

o develop leaders who are fit for the tuture and who will thrive
as Serco grows

¢ employ people who bring service to Irfe, who aré fully ntegrated
and engaged with Serco and who we can develop to achieve ther
full patenhal and

® make it easier to manage our people by continually enhancing
our systems and processes

Developing leaders who are fit for the future

As a devolved and fast-growing organisation, Serco needs capable
and motivated leaders who have the potential to grow with us They are
responsible for managing operations, securing our growth and creating
the environment in which our people can best serve our customers

Durning the year, we undertock a detailed evatuation of the leaders
who joined us through the 2011 acquisition of Intelenet This used our
leadership evaluation tool, which considers the size of a leader's 1ole
and its complexity The output from this exercise allows us to position
people approprately in our leadership structure, 50 we can

» include them in succession planning
@ ensure therr base and vanable pay properly reftects the market, and

& where appropriate, iInclude them in the Global Management Team,
which compnses Serco's top 180 leaders

As a result of the evaluation work, the composition of our top 500 leaders
now property reflects the international nature of our business

Serco's leadership model 1s known as H* — Heart, Head and Hands
These components describe how great leaders in Serco behave
with an emphasis on our Governing Principles and our customers

o Heart covers our leaders’ motives and demonstration of our
Governing Principles

# Head selates to intellectual and personal capacity

o Hands covers skills, knowledge and expenence

We have used assessment tools based on H° to creale development
plans for hundreds of leaders across the Group tn 2012, we also used

those tools, along with our leadership evaluation tool, to ensure we
had the nght leaders in place as we reorganised our UK and European
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businesses fom three dwvisions into one This was a Ngorous process,
which we ran with the assistance of external consultants

Our leadership evaluation tool 1s also importani as we enter new
geographical markets 1 gives us a tried and tested method for analysing
leadership roles in that market and ensuning we can create reward
packages that will attract and retain the nght people for those roles

Transferring knowtedge and skills from cne market to another s a

key part of our business model (see page 12) We therelore need to
effectively support our leaders as they move around the world During
2012, we employed Ernst & Young to help us improve our global mobility
processes, enabling us to offer first-class support to our people when
they relocate

In 2012, we remamned committed to developing our Executive and have
built relatronships with a number of leading business schools

Employing people who bring service to life

We are dependent on the skill and enthusiasm of our people They enable
us to delver great service to our customers and contribute to our reputation
and ability o grow

Employee engagement was a major focus for Serco in 2012, recognising
that engagement 1s fundamental to employee wellbeing the quality of owr
services and our ability to deliver organic growth

Duning the yea, we worked with Aon Hewtt to better understand the link
between customer advocacy and employee engagement Thes showed
a strong correlation, with more engaged employees leading directly to
higher customer satistaction, which in turn inks to contract retention and
organic growth We have since produced a set of case studies selting
out key lessons from contracis wath the highest levels of engagement,
helping us to spread best practices around the business

We also once again undertook our annual globat employee suivey,

called Viewpomt This gives us important insights into how we can
mprove the working expenence at Serco, resulting in greater engagement
with our people and enhanced service for customers Results from the
survey show trends and areas on which to focus An online tool gives
matenals to cascade and enables managers to prepare action plans

to drive improvement

In addition, we continued to support the UK government's Engage for
Success taskiorce This 1s an independent and voluntary group of leaders,
managers, trade uniorusts, engagement practitioners and experts, who all
want 1o highlight the iImportance of employee engagement In November
2012, the taskforce launched evidence that showed the UK was missing
out on £26bn of GDP because workers were not actively engaged The
group also launched a free-to-use website {www engageforsuccess org)
which contains case studies, tools and techmiques for engaging employees




Our global Pulse Awards are designed 10 celebrate the very best

qualtes and achievements of Serco people our customers and partners
The awards are closely hnked to our Governing Principtes  They recogrise
people who excei at inngvation, nspie through thew leadership
demaonstrate outstanding commitment and make an exceptional impact on
communities, the environment of in areas such as safely and ethics More
than 40 individuals and teams wili receive an award for therr work in 2012

Making it easier to manage our people

QOur aim 1s to have easy-to-use tools, processes and systems that make
It easier to manage our growing workforce and deliver even higher levels
of preductty and service

We have therefore developed a target operating modet for HR whuch wall
support our growth The model gives us commeoen HR processes around
the world and allows us to centralise important aspects of our HR support,
while decentralising the 10ols that our managers need to effectively run
therr teams

As part of this, we have created a shared service centre n Birmingham,
UK This includes a centralised recruiment service, which s already
delivering savings One particular achievement has been our use of
LinkedIn 1o identify candidates By bullding Serco's presence on the site,
we now have access to around one millon people

We have also created a transaction management centre in Delhi India
Our teamn there ensures that our HR tsansactions are processed smoathly,
for example by ensunng that new joiners have access to our systems,

the nght computers or other equipment, and an identity card The Delhi
centre consistently achieves high accuracy rates, making an important
contribution to our HR efficiency

Dunng 2012, we also cornpleted Serco’s first ever global software
implementation MyHR 1S now live across the business and provides

a range of self-service toots for both managers and employees MyHR
gives managers better wisibiity and control of their team information,
the ability to carry out people management actmities online, and access
1o reporis to support planning and decision making The system also
makes HR processes easier for employees, for example by allowing
them to mantain their personal information or bock annual leave online

Over the next few years, we will be able 10 build on the work we have
done in 2012 to further enhance our HR tools This could include adding
learning management systems and performance management, as well
as allowing indiidual employees to monitar ther compensation and how
it has changed over time

Objectives and performance

2012 objective Result Comment
To make it easier to manage Achieved We successfully introduced our target operating model and completed the first
people by implementing a single phase of mplementing MyHR
HR programme and common
cole processes
To develop leaders who are Achieved We incorporated the leaders who joined us as a resutt of the acquisition of Intelenet
fit for the future by embedding
the talent review and succession In earty 2012, we undertock a tharough review of our leadership talent, which
planning process across a included applying ngorous leadership selection processes As aresult we are
wider proportion of our priontising the strengthening of our pipeline of leaderstup talent through the
management population promotion, mobility and acquisition of indnaduals with skills and expenences

required to delver our goals

To motvate and engage Ongoing We have begun to analyse the link between employee engagement and

employees to bring service
ta ife by inking engagement
to performance

customer advecacy and to commumicate the best practices identified to further
dnive engagement

2013 objectives
# To continue to implermnent MyHR - the single HR programme
and common core processes — throughout the business

* To continue to develop leaders who are fi for the future by embedding
the talent review and success planning process across a wider
proportton of our management population

« To improve our overall engagement levels by focusing on the top four
engagement drivers for each dwsion or funclion

Seico Group pic | Annual report and accounts 2012 | 89




Section 3 | Qur performance

Corporate responsibility

Health and safety

Cur aspiration is zero harm Nothing we do1s so urgent or important that
we cannot do it safely A strong HSE performance ensures the safety of
our staff, helps to distinguish us 1n the market and enhances our reputation

This means that wherever they work and whatever their role our people
must adhere to stringent health and safety procedures These procedures
are embedded in the Serco Management System and are the minimum
standards that must be applied To maintain these standards, we audit
ourselves aganst them, looking for best practices that we can apply
more widely within our business We address any inadequate
performance and put in place new, better practices

Serco operates in a number of heavily regulated safety-critical areas,
which places sinngent requirements upon us We have the systems

In place to deliver these requirements, as reflected in the regulatory
approvals and icences we operate under This also means that we have
regular regulatory oversight Together these factors give us a strong
controls framework for managing our HSE responsibilities

A key development dunng the year was the creation of the new UK &
Europe division, which required us 1o review the way we manage MSE in
the region As aresult, we created a Safety, Risk and Comphiance (SRC})
department for the UK & Europe under the control of a Director of SRC
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This new department has adopted a regional service model, with three
teams of SRC professionals supported by subject matter experts covenng
our mam safety-cntical areas Thrs follows a proven modet deployed by
one of our farmer UK dwisions and aligns with the UK Health & Safety
Executive's new model The model will help to ensure consistent
apphcation of best practice across the UK & Europe

in addition to the rearganisation, we undertook a wide range of intiatives
dunng the year to drive continuous impravement and better manage our
HSE nsks Among the many examples were

o detalled audts of businesses and contracts around the world

o working wilh regutators in the UK the United States, the Middle East
and Australia to develop deeper relationships

e |OSH training programmes for managers in the Middle East

o improvements to incident reporting, Injury management and
return-to-work processes in Australia

@ safety meetings, fraining and an update to the Engineenng Business
Unit safety management system in the Amencas




Objectives and performance

2012 objective Result

To achieve a lost ime incident Achieved
rate (LTIR) of 796 per 100,000

employees, a 50% reduction

against the 2008 baseline

Comment

The LTIR continued to improve in 2012, to 603 This was a reduction of 33%
compared with 2011 and 24% ahead of our target This performance was helped
by the growth in Serce Global Services, which operates in a low nsk environment

Our performance also reflects our focus on continuous iImprovement and the
matunty of our health and safety systems, particularty in our fugher nsk custodial,
immigration and transportatron business This 1s reflected in our LTIR excluding
Global Services, which improved by 11%1n 2012

To achieve a 40% reduction in Achieved
the staft reportable incident rate

(RIR) per 100,000 employees

against the 2008 baselne

The RIR was 399, a reduction of 22% compared with 2011 and a 60% reduction
since 2008, compared with our target of 40% As with the LTIR, this benefited
from the performance of Serco Global Services Excluding Global Semvices,

the RIR was flat year on year We have a number of ongoing initiatives aimed

at )mproving performance

To establish a baseline of Ongaing
near-miss events agamnst
which performance can

Given the scale and diversity of our business, capturing near-miss events 1s
challenging All divisions have centinued to try to establish consistent reporting
through ASSURE our system for captunng and analysing H3E performance data

be tracked

In 2012, the Royal Socety for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSFA)
presented Serco with 26 awards for contracts in the UK & Europe

Of particular note was our contract at RAF Fylingdales, which won an
Order of Distinction for receving 17 consecutive Gold awards from
RoSPA Our Arr Survelllance and Control Systems contract and Serco
Energy receved President’s Awards for 11 consecutive Golds, while our
contract at Norfolk & Norwich University Hospital obtained a Gold Medal
Award, lo recogrise six consecutive Golds The National Physical
Laboratory won the Research and Development sector award In addition,
the Bntish Satety Council presented International Safety Awards to our
HMP & YOI Doncaster and Prisoner Escort & Custody Services contracts

Wae were particularly saddened by the deaths of four of our colleagues
during the year A colleague at our environmental services contract in the
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham was fatally injured when
he tned to prevent a burglary In Pondicherry, India, two colleagues were
fatally injured in a road traffic accident when travelling home at the end
of therr shift In Australa, a colleague also died n a car accident when
returning from a regional meeting

Although Serco could not have prevented these incidents, we have
taken action to try to avoid arecurrence  This includes conflict resolution
training, the recogrition of risk in induction traning and special guidance
on driving and faligue

2013 objectives

Our previous HSE strategy established our objectives for the penod
2008 1o 2012 We have therefore set a new HSE strategy and objectives
through to 2016 As part of this, we will publish annual targets

QOur objectives for 2013 are as follows

® A Lost Time Incident Rate of 573 per 100,000 employees, representing
a 5% reduction against the 2012 basehne

o A Major Reportable Incident Rate per 100,000 employees of §7,
representing a 15% reduction against the 2012 baselne

& A Physical Assault Rate of 528 per 100,000 employees, representing
a 15% reduction aganst the 2012 baseline
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Section 3 | Our performance
Corporate responsibility

Community

Engaging with our communities 1s fundamental to achieving our vision to
be the world's greatest service company (see page 2) QOur communities
are prnmanly the people who live and work around our contracts but our
definition extends to include the third-sector organisations we partner
with, to deliver a number of our contracts

Qur commitment Is reftected in our target to reinvest 1% of our pre-tax
profits into society Last year, we invested £2,560,084 through donations
of money, assets and time to community projects and charities,
representing 1% of our pre-tax profit

Working with communmities contributes directly to our business success

It helps to enhance our reputation and build trust with our customers

and the public, by demonstrating that Serco 1s a values-led organisation
Engaging also gives us a better understanding of communities' needs
which can help us to win bids and to operate axisting contracts successfully
particularly where we are delivenng services directly to the public

At the same time, we aim to have a positive and lasting impact on our
communities and to be welcomed by them as a partner who can help

10 solve the problems they face Serco’s devolved structure helps us

to achieve this Across the Group, our people engage in many different
activities, as individuals or as teams These activities allow them to get
involved in actnities they are passionate about ranging from local commurity
projects to raising money to help international disaster relief efforts

Examples include the AMEAA division's Walkabout Week The event,
which was held across the Asia Pacific region, raised money for Red Dust,
a charty that supports the heglth of Indigenous communities Staff raised
A$47 830 and Serco donated an additional A$40 000 The total amount
raised exceeded the target by A$17,830 Serco Amencas supported the
American Diabetes Association's Tour de Cure bike nde, with 38 nders
rarsing over $20,000, making them the second highest grossing corperate
team Among the many activities undertaken by Serco Global Services’
employees were partnering with Swiss Emmaus Leprosy Relief Work
(India) to create awareness and rarse funds for people affected by
leprosy, and wisiing orphanages in Mumbar to donate food, clothes

and toys

We also support organisations whose work touches our own, such as
the Military Child Education Coalition (MCEC) in the US, which helps
children affected by thenr parents’ relacation and deployment As well
as making donations, we have seconded a senior employee from aur
Amernicas dmsion who prowides invaluable support to MCEC
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Serco celebrates its 25th anniversary as a listed company in 2013
To mark this occasion we have set up the Serco Foundation
an independent charity

The Serce Foundation will work with chanities and NGOs, within the
regions where Serco operates, to capitalise on the passion of our people
o do good and to make donations that will significantly benefit the
campaigns ¢f the charities it chooses to work with It will also seek

to work with large foundatwans and NGOs to help them consider how

to improve the delivery outcomes they seek to achieve

The Foundation will be independent of Serco and will operate on a
not-for-profit basis  To ensure that the Foundation will have a long-term
future it will be established with a one-off endowment of £56m from Serca
In addition we are planning to make small regular donattons to the
Foundation, comprising cash donatons and secondments

Empicyability has been an important theme in our community work

We were proud to second a senior member of our Group HR team to
work for the UK government as the CEQ and founding partner of Plotr,

a new, Industry-led not-for-profit venture, aimed at tnspinng young people
about their future career and preparing them to be more competitive

in the {abour market A Serco team also helped the UK government

to advance its National Citizenship Service programme, by developing

a well-received online tool o engage with 16 year olds and encourage
them to improve their skills by taking part in local community projects

Working with third-sector partners 1s an important part of cur approach
in a number of markets, including the Work Programme in the UK and
mn our pnson contracts  Thus allows our customers to benefit from the
expertise of these organtsations in their particular helds, while enabling
the organisations to become involved in government programimes that
they lack the scale to compete for on thetr own Our approach includes
agreeing a payment mechanism with our third-sector partners, which
smooths ther cash flows and helps to keep them on a stable fooking

Recognising the mportance of the third sector we are represented

in the working group for a UK government review into leadership and
skills in the secior, led by Dame Mary Marsh The review will consider
how businesses and professionals can share their expertise with charities
and social enterpnses, and recommend ways in which the sector can
upgrade and maintan 1ts skills to meet the challenges of the future

Sercao's commitment to its communities and corporate responsibility was

recognised once again by Business in the Community, which awarded us
Gold status in its 2012 Corporate Responsibility Index This is the seventh
year running that Serco has achieved a Gold award Equally pleasing was
the increase in our score, from 80% to 93%




Objectives and performance

2012 objective Result Comment
To continue to Invest 1% Achieved We invested £2,560 084 into society through donations of money, assets and time
of pre-tax profits back into This represented 1% of our pre-tax profits [n addition, we contributed £5m to the
wider sogiety Serco Foundation
To continue to promote the Ongoing Employability has been a key theme for Serco for the past ten years We focus

theme of employability

on our own employees, long-term unemployed people and youth employment

In the UK, we are committed to making avaiable 1,000 work placements and

te working closety with the Prince’s Trust to help young unemployed people gan
work expenence We recently reached a miestone at Norfolk & Norwich University
Hospital, where the 100th young person from the Prince's Trust programmes
gained work experience through Serco

In the US, the Sercoe Scholars programme has continued to help famihes
of employees In 2012, ten scholarships of $5,000 were awarded

In the Middle East, our technical apprenticeship programme on the Dubal Metro
15 designed to address skill shortages withun railway engineering in the region
and o atiract apprentices who are interested i raifway engineenng as a long
term career

To continue to develop Ongoing
our relationshups with
third-sector partners

We continue to commission work from a range of third-sector providers including
the national chanties Catch22 and Turming Point in our prison contracts Third-sector
orgamisations also deliver 35% of Serco's Work Programme contracts and 43% of
our.Job Deal contracts

In addition the Serco-led NCS Network consortiurn has successfully bid to deliver
the Naticnal Citizen Service programme in 2013

We are also represented in the working group for a UK government review into
leadership and skills In the third sector

We encourage volunteenng within local communities and organisations In Australa
we have implemented an employee volunteenng poticy, gving employees up to two
days a year pad ttme to volunteer

To promote Ongoing
employee volunteenng
To promote payroll giving Ongoing

Employee giving continues to be a high prionty tor our businesses across the globe

2013 objectives
# To continue to invest 1% of pre-tax profits into wider society

e To promote and support the Serco Foundation

e To use the Serco25 campaign tc encourage our people
to raise money for chanties
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Section 3 | Our performance

Corporate responsibility

Environment

Serco's aspiration for zero harm apphes as much 1o the environment

as it does to health and safety It makes good busingss sense ta protect
our reputation and reduce our energy consumption and environmental
impact Qur envirenmental policy 1s also driven by the desire to do what
15 nght for the world we live in

Although Serco's activities are typically managed at a local level

we are united in our strategy of measunng our impact and reducing our
environmental footpnnt This supports many intiatives in our operations
around the world We also have contracts that help our customers to
improve therr environmental performance For example, Serco provides
erwironmental services to UK local authorniies which help our custemers
to reduce the volumes of waste sent to landfil sites

As with our health and safety efforts, our businesses around the world
underiook a wade range of initratives 1o improve ther environmenta
performance The following are st some of the examples

» reducing electnicity use in our UK pnisons by instaling LED hghting
in cells

e cutting water use in our UK ieisure contracts, for example by using
swimming pool backwashes to rmgate golf courses
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e developing a formal environmental traiming package and improved
environmental data capture in Australa

® assisting Amencas contracts with a range of projects including
fuel storage, Spil Prevention Control and Countermeasure regulations,
hazardous matenals/waste handing, disposal advisory development
and ar quality regulation compliance

Qur environmental efforts are reflected in the recogmtion we receve

in the UK, we were ranked fifth in the Carbon Disclosure Project's

FTSE 350 report, with a score of 92% placing us in the Carbon Disclosure
Leadership Index We also achieved a rating of B in the Carbon
Performance Leadership Index These indices highhight good practices

in reporting, govetnance, nsk management, verification and emissions
reduction activities that drive climate change adaptation and mitigation




Objectives and performance

2012 objective Result

To achieve an 18% reduction Revised
in our UK business's CO,

tonnes/Em revenue aganst

the 2008 benchmark

Comment

Histoncally we have normalised our environmental data by revenue for comparative
purposes We do not beheve that this corfinues to be mearingiul, given the
changing risk profile of the business and growth in employee numbers, parhcularly
within our BPO business We have therefore revised this KPI and extended It to
cover our global footpnint so that we normalise on a per head basis Based on this
we have shown a 42% improvement in Carbon Emissions Headcount Intensity rate
(tCOpe per 1,000 employees) since 2008 (2008 = 3 489 2012 = 2,028)

To retain the Carbon Achieved
Trust Standard

We have retained our Carbon Trust Standard

2013 objectives

As part of our updated HSE strategy, we have set the following

environmental objectves for 2013

e Carbon Emissions Headcount Intensity rate of 1,967 tonnes of CO,
equivalent per 1,000 employees which represents a 3% reduction

e Zero environmental prosecutions, hnes and enforcement notices
from our activities
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Section 3 | Our performance

Corporate responsibility

Marketplace

Customers

Developing long-term relationships with our customers i1s central to our
business Day-to-day responsibility for meeling our customers’ needs lies
with our contract directors Qur approach to working with our customers
1s set out in our Governing Principles (see pages 18 and 19), which am
to empower our contract directors and ensure that we deliver
mgh-quality service

We maintamn relationships at all levels with our customers, so they are
aware of how we can help them and we can anticipate their changing
needs and identify opportunities at an early stage These relationships
lie with our divisional and Group leaders

Cur reputation with our existing customers 1s also vital In wainning
new work Many factors influence our reputation, including

® the quality of our service
& our values and service ethos
® our capacity to innovate, and

* our engagement with our employees and other stakeholders,
such as local communities
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Supplers

Effective procurement helps us to achieve our vision and deliver
high-quality service to customers We aim to be professional in all our
dealings with supphers and to establish mutually beneficial relationshups

We have a Procurement and Supply Chain function, which is responsible
for putting this approach into practice During 2012 we reahigned the
procurement team to reflect the new structure of the business Each
division now has its own dedicated procurement business partner
embedded within the divisional management team

Our businesses have many common purchasing needs whuch we strive
to futtl with preferred suppliers, enabhng us to achieve better terms and
condittons and make the most of our scale We have also bolstered our
category teams and refocused on specific areas where we can deliver
significant benefit to our frontline customer service delivery




Serco works with thousands of small- and medium-sized (SME) suppliers
and we continue to improve our interaction with them Qur Small Business
Adwisory Body in the UK 1s made up of representatives of SMEs from
across the business The Body guides us on our communications with
and support 10 SMEs In the US we have a supplier mentor programme
which provides guidance to small businesses on key matters such as
growing therr businesses and creating budgets

We further enhanced our systems in 2012, to upgrade the procurement
funchonality of SAP This makes the process more efficient for us and
our supplers In particular, it enables suppliers to upload electronic
catalogues, which can then be accessed through a single portal for

our people to buy from These upgraded systems allow us to streamline
our precesses, Improve comphance and enable our suppliers to work
with us Iin a simple and consistent way

In the UK we also signed up to the Prompt Payment Code Code
signatories undertake to pay suppliers on ime 1o give them clear
guidance (for example on payment procedures and how to make
complaints) and promote good practice by requesting leading
supphers to encourage adoption in ther own supply chains

Joint venture partners

Serco has many joint ventures with commercial partners and customers
Strong relationships, based on mutual trust and respect and clanty

of roles, are essential ngredients If a joint venture is to deliver excellent
custoemer service Our dwisional management teams are responsible
for relationships with our joint venture partners, supported by members
of the Group Executive Committee and Board as appropniate This
includes holding regular strategy and review meetings with our partners

Strategic partners

We often defiver services as par of a consorium, either as pnme
contractor or as a subcontractor This allows us to bring together
companies with the skills to meet the precise requirements of a tnd

Qur values and the open and honest way in which we work also make
us an attractive partner for voluntary sector orgarsations, who often
lack the scale and expenence to access major government programmes
Responsibility for relationshrps with our strategic partners lies with the
relevant contract and divisional management
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Section 3 | Our performance

Principal risks and uncertainties

Serco has a well-estabhished and embedded system of internal control, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and sk management, designed to safeguard shareholders’ investments,

our assets and our reputation

The Board has overall responsibility for our internal control system
and for reviewing its effectiveness and has delegated to management
the implementation of policies on nsk and control

Risk management s fundamental (o how we manage the business,

it nforms decision making and aligns to the organisation’s strategic
objectives We have developed robust systems and processes to identify
and manage the key risks facing each of our businesses and the Group
as a whole, and all parts of the business have approprate nsk and cnsis
management plans that meet defined policy standards

Whilst Divisional Boards review quarterly the nsks they face the Group
Risk Management and Safety Committee (GRMSC), a formal committee
of the Executive Committee, meets quarterly to provide governance and
oversight of nsk across the Group The Beard receves a quarterly report
on the GRMSC's assessment of the pnncipal risks facing the Group and
the action being taken by management to mitigate risks that are outside
of the Group's nsk appetite

Our nisk management policies systems and processes conform to
the requirements of the Combined Code and form part of the Serco
Management System (SMS)

Such systems and processes, however can only be designed to mitigate,
rather than eliminate the nsk of falure io achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance, agamnst
misstatement or loss The Board contirms that this process has been

In place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts

Our approach to risk within the Serco

Management System

The SMS sets out policy standards, systems and processes that identify,
review and report nsks at all levels of our busingss and in the Group as a
whole, that impact upon strategic cbjectives, with the aim of safeguarding
our shareholders’ investments, our assets and our reputation At each
level within our business, nsk management processes reflect the nature
of the activities being undertaken and the business and operational nsks
inherent in them, and therefore the level of control considered necessary
{o protect our interests and those of our stakeholders

These controls and processes fall into four main areas Identification,
Assessment Planning and Control and Monitoring, so that we

o Identity business objectives that reflect the interests of all stakeholders
and the rnisks associated with the achievement of these objectives

@ Regularly assess our exposure to nsk, including through the regular
measurement of Key nsk indicators

e Control and reduce nsk as far as reasonably practicable or achievable
through cost-effective nsk treatment options, and

@ ldenhfy new nsks as they anse and remove those risks that are no
longer relevant
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Risk identfication

In identifying the potential nsks associated wth the achievement

of our business objectives, we consider both external factors arsing
from the enviionment within which we aperate, and internal nisks ansing
from the nature of our business, Its controls and processes, and our
management decisions

Once identified, we document risks in Risk Registers which are
maintained al a contract, programme, Business Unit, Divisional and
Group level These Risk Registers change as new nsks emerge and
existing nsks dminish, so that the registers reflect the current threats
to the relevant strategic objectives We review the Group and Divisional
Risk Registers at least quarterly and more frequently as required

The GRMSC reviews the Group Risk Register quarterly ahead of
tormal review by the Board

Risk assessment

We assess the potential eftect of each identified nsk on the achievement
of our business objectives and wider stakeholder interests To do so,

we use a nsk sconng system based on our assessment of the probability
of a sk matenalising and the impact if it does This 15 assessed from
three perspectives

e The nsk's significance to the achievement of our business objectves

o The nisk’s significance to society, including its impact on public safety
and the environment, and

e Qur ability to mfluence, controd and mitigate the nsk

Analysis of our key nisks allows us to assess the impact of disruption
to our business objectives, the probability of this occurnng and highlighit
cntical areas thal require management attention

Risk planning and control

We assign eachdent/fied and assessed risk to a nsk owner who s
responsible for controlling, managing, and developing a robust and
effective plan to reduce or mitigate the nsk Risk owners are required
to report to the GRMSC or, as approprnate, the Board on specific nisks
Either may ask for addibonal information or request an audit to provide
additional assurance

Risk reduction involves taking early management action to remove

or reduce identified nsks before they can aftect the bid, programme,
project or confract We consider options to eliminate, reduce or control
the nisks as part of the nsk identification and analysis process

Risk mitigation involves us identifytng appropniate measures, ncluding
contingency plans, to reduce the severty of the impact of the nisks,
should they occur This includes developing crisis management plans
In response to nsks whose potentral impact warrants a specific
management process

The SMS requires every contract to develop a risk management plan
reflecting assessed nsks and supported by appropnate measures
and contingency plans to mitigate the impact of the nsks




Risk monitoring

Changes in our external environment, internal structures and management
decistons may all affect the nature and extent of the nsks to which the
Group is exposed

Our nsk maonitenng process therefore regularly monitors changes to
our business and the external environment 1o ensure that we have sight
of and respond appropniately to reduce the impact of emerging nsks

Managing and mitigating risk

Cur nsk management process enables us to understand our operatonal
nsk profle Operational risk can never be eliminated, risks are necessary
to achieve targeted benefits {nsk management informs decisions)
However, while nsk 1s necessary, we minimise the prabability and impact
of threats through the consistent implementation of the SMS, ensurng
that approprate infrastructure controls, systems, staff and processes
are in place

Some of our key management and control techmiques defined in the
SMS are set out below

@ Our operating processes tully reflect the principles of clear delegation
of authority and segregation of duties

o Cur GRMSC meets quarterly to ensure that risks, internal control
and business assurance are effectively managed and reviewed

o Comprehensive business review processes ensure we meel customer
expectations, regulatory requirements and performance catena,
including operational effectiveness, investment retumns, cash flow
requirements and profitability

® We monitor and regularty review key performance indicators
These include analysis of business performance and vanances
from plan, occupatonal health and safety incidents, and error
and excephion reporting

* Selective recruitment, succession planmng and other human resource
policies and practices ensure that staff skills are aligned with Serco's
current and future needs

¢ We mantain insurance policies aganst losses ansing from
circumstances such as damage or destruction of physical assets,
theft, legal lability for third-party loss and professional adwice
We review the adequacy of our insurance cover at regular intervals

e Our Investment and Ethics Committee meets regularly to ensure
appropriate governance and the management of nsk associated
with larger or higher nsk bids, acquisitions, disposals and areas
of significant capital expenditure

» We apply robust project management and change implementation
disciplines to all major projects including new contract transhons,
acguisittons, new technology applications, change programmes
and other major initatives

o The Drrectors' Report describes our approach to health, safety and
environmental protection Qualfied and expenenced staff in each
business unit provide adwice and support on health, safety and
environmental 1ssues and undertake regular audits

# We have safety specialists i our aviation, rail defence, nuclear and
manne businesses that report to the Board, and maintain and further
develop the very high standards expected in these industnies

e The Chief Information Officer 1s responsible for ensunng that systems
and processes are In place 10 ensure the confidentiality, imtegrity and
avallability of sensitive nformation and the associated infermation
systems that support our business activities

& Our Investment and Ethics Committee has responsibility for the review
of ethical issues that may anse from our current and future activities

® The Company Secretary manages a confidential reporting senace,
to which staff can repont illegal, dangerous, dishonest or unethical
actmities This process was enhanced and re-launched at the end
of 2010

® We have crists and business continuity plans in place to manage
cnsis events, both within Divisions and the Group

All Divisional CECs are required to self certify their Division's
compliance to the SMS at half and end of year points, and

As mandated by the SMS, throughout the business lifecycle of all
our bids and contracts independent reviews (such as Black Hats
and Gate Reviews) are required to provicde a mimmum standard
of assurance and governance across the business

Independent risk function

While ine managers are responsible for identifying and managing all nsks
within ther nsk appetite and tolerance hmits, in ine with the policies and
standards set within the SMS the Group Risk and Programmes team
{(reporting to the Group Dwrector, Risk and Acquisitions) 1s responsible tar
the development and implementation of nsk management policy, strategy
and governance In addition to this the team manages the Group rnisk
profile and provides nsk management oversight, assurance and challenge
ta the busness

Internal audit

An integral part of nsk management 1s assurance that the contrels
identified to manage nsks are operating and effective Internal audit 1s
responsible for revewing the design and operation of nsk management
processes and conftrols operated across the Group, prowviding objective
assurance around the eflectiveness of the Group's system of

iniernal controls

The Group Head of Internal Audit 1s responsible tor delivery of the internal
audit programme, ensuring that it 1s nsk based and aligned with the
overall strategy of the Group Internal audit 1s delivered at Group and
Dmsional levels using a mix of outsourced and in-house resources,

with each Division holding an Audit and Risk Committee which reviews
the results of relevant internal audits three times a year The findngs

of the overall internal audit programme are reported directly to the Group
Audit Committee

In addition to internal audit, many parts of our business are subject
to other rewiews of their controls by third parties, including industry
reguiators, 150 Standards, customers and other external audits
This third-party scrutiny significantty increases the scope of
independent assurance conducted across the Group each year

The Board confirms that the actions it considers necessary are being
taken to remedy the fallings and weaknesses which It has determined

to be sigruficant from its review of the internal contrals across the Group
The Board confirms thatit has not been advised of maternal weaknesses
n financial reporting as part of the review of the internal conlrol system
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Section 3 | Our performance
Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

The Group Risk Register identifies the principal nsks facing the business
as a whole, Including those that are managed directly at Group level
They are managed through a formal process

The Group's key stakeholders include but are not irmited to,
shareholders customers, suppliers, staff, trade urmions, government,
regulators banks and insurers The way we operate as a responsible
company recognises the interests of the community in areas such as
social, environmental and ethical impact, as descnibed under Corporate
Responsibilty on pages 66 t0 77

The most significant nsks relate to our reputation, and to operationat

and financial performance, which are all direct threats to the actnevement
of our strategic objectives Summansed on the following pages are the
key risks we have identified that could have a matenal impact on our
reputation, our operations or our financial performance A number of

our other rsks reflect social and ethical 1ssues

Group risks and mitigating actions overview

Market nisks

We also have matenal investrments in a number of joint ventures, where
we have joint control over management practices Our representatives
within these companies ensure that therr processes and procedures for
identifying and managing nsk are appropniate and that internal controls
exist and are regularly monitored

We keep reputational and emerging nsks under active review and inform
the Board of changes Emerging risks cover langer-term nsks that could
represent a threat to our actvities but which are not yet sufficiently defined
to be included as active nsks

Risk | Significant change in political environment

{e.g. government policies, expenditure levels and budgetary constraints)

Descnption

As a major proportion of Serco s customers are governments and govemnmental
agencies, a substantial part of the business 1s dependent on gavernment policies
budget pronties and regulatory or poliical constrants In particular those
regarding matntaining and smproving public infrastructure which could have a
significant impact on the sze scope timing and duration of contracts and orders
under them and therefore on the level of business that we may win As such,
these businesses are susceptible to changes In government, government policy
budget allocations and the poliical environmant pnmarily in the UK, Australia
and the US Any reduction i such government expenditure and funding coud
result In a suspension canceltation, termination or non-renewal of contracts
Revenues may also be adversely affected by changes to the UK government's

Impact Mitigation

e Reduction in market opportunities ¢ Business sirategy
e Changes o terms of existing or o Dwverse business across
new contracts geographies and markets
¢ Failure to meet growth or ¢ Dedicated teams regularly monitor
profit expectations the political landscape and
govemnment actvities reporting
on govemnment policy changes
and the politcal environments
where we are operating
We continue to develop expertise
and capability n new markets

US gavernment s or Australian government’s policy n respect of outsourcing and geographies
Risk | Failure to win a strategic or significant bld or rebid
Description Impact Mitigation

Failure to win matenal bids or renew matenal contracts could restnct growth
opportunities for the future or have an adverse impact on Serco s business,
financtal condion and results of operations  Further, a significant number of
Serco s contracts with the UK government, the US government and other public
sector customers ncluding renewals and extensions of previous contracls

are awarded through formal competitive brdding processes Competitive brdding

processes present a number of nsks, including substantial cost and management

time and eiffort to prepare bids and proposals for contracts that may not be won
In addibon, there 1s often a long penod between a successful competition tender
ofter and entenng into definiive contractual documentation and financial close
and in some cases financial close may not occur

e Failure to meet growth or @ Business Ldecycle governance
profit expactations process embedded in SMS
» Significant financial loss or & Goveinance structure managed
cos! overrun through Investment and Ethics
o Negatve reputational mpact, Committee Programme and
potentally resulting in loss of existing Project Boards, Divisional and
of new business Contract Boards
« [mpact on strategc objectives o Business strategy and targets
managed through internal boards
& Regular review and monitoning
of Risk Regtsters
» Gate reviews of bids and formal
sign-off process
« Robust idding and contract
review process including financeal
technical and commercial reviews
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Operational risks

Risk | Any harm to the Group’s reputation could adversely impact business

Description

The Group Is dependent on mamtaining tts reputation in each junsdiction in which
tt operates n order to maintain and grow its business It s exposed 1o the nsk
that ktigation misconduct, operatonal fadures and negative publicity coukd harm
its reputation In addition, the Group’s reputation could also be adversely affected
if Its sernices or the services performed by its subcontractors, do not perform as
expected Any harm to (s reputation coukd have a matenal adverse effect on its
business, financial condiion and results of operatons

Impact

Failure to meet growth or

profit expectations

Significant inanceal loss or

COSt overtun

Loss of contract revenue related
to operations and senvice charges
Could wmpact share price

Inability to attract the human and
financial capital necessary to grow
or expand into new markets
Damage 1o reputation resulting in
loss of existing or new business
Impact on strategic abjectives

Mitigation

e Governance structure managed

through Investment and Ethics
Committee Programme and
Project Boards, and Dmwsional
and Contract Boards

® An effectve nsk I1ssues and

controls structure identifies
potential reputational impacts
allowing effective management
and oversight

® Customer engagement and

employee engagement strateges

« Relationship management

and communicaton with
external stakeholders

Risk | Fallure of significant programmes, including operating within agreed fixed costs

Descrniption

Serco has a number of complex programmes which 1t 1s contracted to deliver for
the customer These are often let on a fixed pnce basis imespective of the actual
costs incurred and therefore if costs exceed the contract celling the Group

may not be able to obtam full rermbursement Further, some programmes require
delvery In accordance with specified milestones on agreed dates Signdicant
adverse financial consequences can be impoased where milestones ara not met
or a programme 1s not delvered ontime The length and complexity of such
programmes mean that management estimates can be particularly difficult to
make and could turn out to be inaccurate

Impact

-

Faillure to meet growth or

profit expectations

Sigruficant financial loss or

cost overrun

Loss of contract revenue related

to operations and service charges
Damage 1o chient refations and wder
reputabon resultng in loss of exsting
or new business

Impact on strategic objectives

Mitigation

® Robust tidding and contract

review process including financial
techmcal and commercial reviews

o Govemance structure managed

through Investment and Ethics
Committee Programme and
Project Boards and Divisional
and Contract Boards

#» Robust cost accouniing

Business strategy and targets

» Regular review and monitoring

of Risk Registers

o Gate reviews and formal

sign-off process

e Quallty management systems
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OCperational nsks continued

Risk | Major accident or incident

Description

It 15 possible that a major calastrophic event such as a magor train derallment
of arr traffic accident, could ocour at one of the projects m relation to which Serco
has prowded professional design construction engineenng or suppaort services
Such a catastrophic event could result in the personal injury or death of one

or more employees of the Group employees of other subcontractors working
on the project or members of the public, significant, actionable environmantal
harm and / or extensive damage to third-party property In the event that such
a catastrophic event i1s found or perceved to be caused by the negligence of
Serco, It could subject the Group to claims for personal Injury, wrongful death,
or property damage by customers subcontractors, governments, employees or
members of the public, which could lead to the payment of extensve damages
and resuft in significant adverse publicity and reputational harm Such adverse
publicity and reputational harm could iead 10 a loss of business

Impact

o Deaths or serious injunes to
employees or third parties

e Major envionmental damage

e Severe financial impact (fine
by regulators, suspension of
operating licence compensation
clean up, ete)

o Loss of business {disqualification

from future tenders, contract

termunation, eic )

Contract and busingss extemnal

accrediatons withdrawn

Significant media attention and

future scrutiny

® Cnminal and cvl action against
the Group or indmiduals

Mitigation

o Robust management systems

subject to external and regulatory
scrutiny and oversight

e Systemn certification and

regulatory approval

& Formal oversight theough GRMSC

Health Safety and Environment
Cversight Group Dmisional and
internal boards

+ Cnsis management and business

conttnuity plans in place

e Insurance
e A clear and comprehensve HSSE

Strategy mcluding annual and fong
term objectves regularty repored
and governed, dives a proactive
safety management culture across
the business

& Formal assurance structure

operating within
defined competencies

o Sttt nduction and training
& Effectve Qualty Management

Systems embedded within
the business

Risk | Major information security loss or breach

Descnption

Serco must comply with restrictions on the handling of sensitive information
(ncluding personal and customer) and provide tor secure transnmission of such
information This 1s a heightened nsk, particularly with respect to government
contracts due to the sensitive and confidential nature of government data
Despite controls to ensure the confidentrality of such information, Serco may
breach restnctions or De subject to cyber attacks (e g from computer programs
or hacktmist groups) that may atternpt to penetrate its network secunty and
misappropriate confidential information

Impact

& Loss of service to our customers
« Damage to reputaton resuling
n loss of existing or new business

{disqualification from future tenders

contract termination, etc )
& Impact on strategic objectrves
Costly 1o rectly and potential for
dilution of shareholder retums
Crimanal and civit acton
Contract and busmness external
acereditations withdrawn
Sigrificant media attention and
future scrutiny

Mritigation

e Secunty and information systems

policres systems and embedded
governance structure

o Think Privacy campaign to raise

staff awareness, provide framing,
promote incident reporting and
sirengthen control processes

e Cyber Secunity Contract

Risk Assessments

» Cyber Resllience of

Enterpnse Apphcations

& User Management, Multifactor

Authenticaiilon User Awareness

o Regular nsk reviews
e (SO 27000 certification
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Operational risks continued

Risk | Major IT failure or prolonged loss of critical IT systems

Description

The IT Strategy Is focused on standardising common processes establishing
common business systems and enabling ways of working by praviding and
embedding tools that support what we de Within this the Group has defined
enterprnse applications These are key informatien technolegy based business
systerns within Serco  They include SAP for Finance Procurement and Human
Resocurces Payroll Risk Management Safety Assurance, email, intranet and

Nimbus Contro? for Process Excellence systems Therefore failings in the systems

have the potential to senously impact the management of the business

Impact

o Damage to reputaton resulting
nloss of existing or new business

o Impact on strategic objectives

» Inability to meel contract
requirements of perform core
bustness processes

o Costincurred to recttly and potental
for dilution of shareholder returns

o Sgnificant medma attention and
future scrutiny

Mitigation

& Information systems policy

systerns and embedded
governance structure

e Data recovery capability

designed into systems and
penodically tested

# Design out single points of falure
e Server and system performance

momitonng and reporting

» Capacity management
o Data back-up and busmess

continuity plans n place

Governance nsks

Risk | Significant incident of bribery or corrupt practice

Description

Serco operates i Infernational markets which brnngs with it inherent nsks
including bribery and corruption, particulady in certain developing nations
Serco operates in a number of countnes which are recognised as having a
higher bnbery and comuption nsk Increasing legislation sigraficantly increases
the consequences of bnbes and other corrupt practices

Impact

& Legal action and fines against
the Group

& Debarment from tender lists

e Damage 10 reputation resuling
I loss of existing of new business

® Significant media attention and
future scrutiny

Mitigation

® Policies and systems

embedded in SMS
Cede of Conduct

Ethics Committee
Speak Up process
Ethics and comphance
programme and training
Risk assessment

» Third-party contracts

People rnisks

Risk | Failure to build depth & capability of leaders ‘Fit for Future’

Description

The success of tha Group depends on the efforts, abilities, expenence

and expertise of the senior management teams and on recruting, retaining,
maotivaiing, effectively commurcating with and developtng highly sialled

and competent people at all levels of the organisation There can be intense
competion for personnel irom other compames and orgamsatons and there
may at any ime be shortages in the avallabiiity of appropnately skilled people
at all levels withen Serco Further, the Group cannot guarantee the retention

of such key executives and techrical personnel The faslure of the Group

to retain and / of recruit additional or substtute Senier managers and / or other
key employees could have a matenal adverse effect on its business

Impact

e Fisk of not achieving levet
of planned growth

» Increased costin recrutment
actrvity and tme taken to il roles

e Instabiity and loss of

business contnurty

Diunion of brand and values

® Reduced employee engagement
through loss of compeliing leadership

e Strengthen competitors {loss of
leaders to them)

Mitigation

# People policies and systems,

strategy and targets supported
by governance structure, including
Remuneration Commitiee

e Succession planning
® Leadership model
o Annual external (ndependent)

remunerahbon review

& Job structure and grading system
e Talent database and leaderstup

development programme

e Employment engagement strategy,

including annual staff survey
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Finance rnisks

Risk | The impairment of goodwill could adversely impact reported resuits

Description

Goodwill accounts for just over one-third of Serce Group's recorded total assets
as at 31 December 2012 Serco evaluates goodwill for impairment annually

or more frequently when evidence of polential impairment exists Any decrease
in expected cash flows or detenorabon in market conditions could require Serco
to record imparrment charges that could have a material impact on the financial
postion and results of operations

Impact

#» Inability to mest profit expectations

e Breach of finantial covenants

& Damage to reputation and
shareholder confidence

» Impact on sirategic objectives

Mitigation

# Internat board and
governance structure

® Stategic plans

* Busmness plans

® Business Lfecycle
Govemance process

& Financial review and reporting

Risk | Negative fluctuations in forelgn currency exchange rates that are not effectively hedged

Descnption

The intemational nature of Serco s business means 11 1s exposed to fluctuations
In forewgn currency exchange rates in relation to vanous cumencies pnmarily

the US Dollar, the Austraian Dollar and the Euro, ansing from the transtation

of earmings In addition some of Serco'’s bank debt 1s denominated in currencies
other than pound Stering

Impact

o Material effect on the Group s
future results of operations and
financial posttion

Mmigation

& The Group hedges short term
transaction nsks that are matenal
n value

& Management of translatnonal risk
by the part currency matching
of borrowings with the net assets
of overseas subs:dianes

Risk | Negative fluctuations in interest rates

Descnption

Historically, Serco has financed tts operations partly through draw down of
funding taciibes Adverse movements in interest rates could therefore impact
profitability and net assets

Impact

« Inability to mes! profit expectations
and associated impact on net assets
® Impact on competiveness

Mitigation

e Fred rate debt instruments and
interest rate derivatives that swap
floaung for fixed rates
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

In managing the affairs of the Group, the Board of Serco Group plc 1s committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance, integrity and
business ethics for all its activiies around the world A fundamental part of the Group's corporate governance is the Business Conduct and Ethics
Standard that the Group has adopted

Throughout 2012 Serco Group plc complied fully with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Councll (the Code} with the exception of membership of the Audit Committee as explained on page 88 below The paragraphs below, together
with the 'Our performance’ section on pages 18 to 84 and the Remuneration Report on pages 98 to 114 provide details as to how the Company
has applied the pnnciples and complies wath the prowisions of the Code

The Board of Directors
Board composttion |
Currently the Board has seven members the Charman two Executive Directors and four Non-Executive Directors Malcolm Wyman was appointed
to the Board on 1 January 2013 Leonard V Broese van Groenou served on the Board dunng 2012 until hus retrement on 14 May 2012

Dawid Richardson will be retiring fram the Board at the end of the Company's Annual General Meeting, being held on 15 May 2013 and hence will not .
stand for re-election As anncunced on 6 December 2012, Malcoim Wyman will succeed Dawid as Chairman of the Audit Committee Malcolm wil also
succeed Dawd as Senior Independent Director

No indvidual or group of individuals dominates the Board's decision-making The Board considers all of the Non-Executrve Directors to be
independent In cormng to this conclusion the Board has determined that each Director 1s independent in character and judgement and there
are no refationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, the Directors’ judgements

Each Director brings a valuable range of experience and expertise to the Board The profites of all Directors can be found on pages 96 and 97

Diversity

With reference to the report by Lord Davies of Abersoch entitled "Women on Boards', Serco strongly supports the principle of boardroom diversity, of

which gender 1s one, but not the only, key aspect Diversity of thought, expenence, and approach are all important and we will always seek to appoint

on ment against cbjective crtena, including diversity The Board aims to achieve an appropnate diversity across all elements of Serco's management \
Asg, over time, we recruit new members we would, therefore, expect to address the 1ssue of diversity in general, and to increase the proporticn

{currently 14%) that women constiute of our plc Board

The role of the Board

The Board has responsibxlity for the overall management and perfarmance of the Group, the approval of its long-term objectives and cormmercial
strategy and for ensunng that any necessary cormective actron 1s taken promptly Reporting to the Board the Governance function ts tasked by the
Group to develop and oversee corporate processes for the identification and management of business nsks and the appropnate application of the
Serco Management System (SMS) and corporate responsibility activities throughout the Group The ‘Our performance’ section on pages 18 to 84
details the internal control and nsk policies, procedures and management framework adopted by the Group The Corporate Responstbiity Report 1s
available online at www serco com/cr2012 and illustrates how Serco's approach to corporate assurance and responsibility translates from the Board
Into everyday working practices

Conflicts of interest

The Company's Articles of Association, as approved by shareholders at the Company's 2010 annual general meeting, include prowistons reflecting
racommended practice concerning conflicts of interest The Board has in place procedures for Directors to report any potential or actual conflicts

to the other members of the Board for therr authonsation where appropnate In deciding whether to authonse a conflict or potential conflict of interest
only non-interested Directors (1 e those that have no interest in the matter under consideration) will be able to take the relevant decision, in taking
such a decision the Directors must act in a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the Company's success In addihon,

the Directors may impose conditions or limitatrons when giving authonisation If they think this 1s appropriate

The process of reviewing conflicts disclosed, and authonisations given, 1s repeated at least annually Any conflicts or potential conflicts considered

by the Board and any authorisations given are recorded in the Board minutes and n a register of directors’ conflicts which 1s maintained by the
Company Secretary
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Reserved and delegated authonties
There 1s a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board This schedule, which 1s reviewed annually, ncludes approval of

e Group strategy

e Annual inancial and operating plans

o Major capital expenditure, acquistions or divestrments

® Annual and half-year financtal results

@ Satisfying itself as to the integnty of financial information

o Dividend policy

@ Ensunng adequate succession planning for the Board and senior management and appointing and remowing Directors, the Company Secretary
and Committee members

o Treasury policy

@ Review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control and risk management process

& Traming and development of the Board and the Company Secretary

Other specific responsibilities are delegated to Board Committees which operate within clearty defined terms of reference Detatls of the responsibilites
delegated to the Commiitees are given on pages 88 to 90 Each Committee has an appropriate balance of skills expenence, independence and
knowtedge of the Group

Information flow
Senior executives below Board level attend certain Board meetings at which they make presentations on the results and sirategies of their divisional
units and functional areas of the Group Board members are given approprate documents in advance of each Board meeting and each Committee

meeting, as approprate

Board meetings are scheduled six times a year, four over two days at a ime, and two meetings held for one day each Board meetings are structured
to allow open discussion of the strategy, frading and financial performance and nsk management of the Group Board and Committee meetings are
held at varying locations and the opportunity 1s used to combine the formal business of the Board with site wsits and divisional presentations and
discussions Additional Board meetings are scheduled as reguired

The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held durng the year 1s shown in the table on page 87

Company Secretary and independent advice

The Company Secretary 1s respensible for advising the Board on all corporate governance matters, ensuring that all Board procedures are followed and
there are good information flows, together with facilitating induction programmes for newly appointed Directors All Directars have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary

The Board has approved a procedure for Direclors to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense

Chairman and Chuef Executive
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are separately held and the division of ther responsibilities 1s clearly established, set out in writing,

and agreed by the Board
As Charrman, Alastarr Lyons 1s responsible for

® Ensuring the effective operation of the Board, its agenda and processes

# Promoting the highest standards of corporate governance and ensuring approprate communication with shareholders on the Group's
overall performance

& Ensuring appropriate Director traming and development takes place

@ Board succession planning

The Chief Executive, Chnstopher Hyman, 1s responsible for

@ The formation and implementation of the Group's global strategy

o Delvery of the Group's business plan

e Providing motivation and leadership to the operating divisions, chairing the Executive Committee and setting its style and tone

e Setiing the overall pohcy and direction of Serco’s business operations Investments and other activities within a framework of prudent and effective
nsk management and ensuring that divisions and funchions control those nisks satisfactorily

® Prowiding leadership and representation of the Group with major customers, shareholders and industry organisations

Senior Independent Director

Dawid Richardsoen was appointed to the role of Sentor Independent Director in January 2011 As part of this role, David 1s available to shareholders
if they have any 1ssues or wish to discuss any aspects of the Company’s business without the Executive Directors or Charman present Addiionally,
n accordance with the provisions of the Code, Dawvid 1s available to prowide a sounding board for the Chairman and to act as an intermediary for
non-executive directors when necessary Following David's retirement from the Board at the end of the Company's 2013 Annual General Meeting,
Malcolm Wyman will succeed David as Senior Independent Director with the same role and responsibilities
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External directorships for Executive Directors

The Board considers that Executive Directors can gain valuable expenence and krowledge through appropnate and hmited non-executive
appointrments 1n other listed companies or independent sector organisations The Board 1s careful to ensure that any such appointments do not
compromise the effective management of the Group and that these are approved in advance of any apponiments being taken up Detalls of the
fees received by Executive Directors for external appointments can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 103

Significant other commitments of the Chairman
Alagiar Lyons s non-executive Chairman of Admiral Group ple and of the Towergate Insurance Group, Deputy Charman of Bowis Homes Group PLC,
and Senior Independent Director and Audit Commuttee Chair of Phoenix Group Holdings

The Board belleves that Alastar holds a balanced portfolio of positions which atlow him to perform his duties as Chairman appropnately

Re-etection of Directors

The Company's Articles of Association stipulate that each Director shall retire {but be eligible for re-election) at the annual general meeting held in the
third calendar year following the year in which he or she was elected or last re-elected by the Company Any Directors appomnted by the Board since
the last annual general meeting must stand for re-election at the next annual general meeting  Any Non-Execulive Directors, excluding the Chairman,
who have served for more than nine years will be subject to annual re-election

Notwthstanding the above, In accordance with provistons contained within the Code, all Directors retired and stood for re-election at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting and will do so on an annual basis at each Annual General Meeting Therr names are set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting

The Non-Executive Directors

Independence

All the Non-Executive Directors are independent of management and have no cross-directorships or significant inks which could materally interfere
with the exercise of Independent judgement

Term of appointment

All Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years Thereatter, subject to satisfactory performance, they may serve one or two
additional three-year terms The terms and conditions of the appaintment of the Directors are summarised in the Remuneration Report on pages 98
and 106 and are avalable on request from the Company Secretary

Meetings of Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors meet separately (without the Chairman or Executive Directors being present) at least once a year principally to appraise
the Chairman's performance This meeting is chaired by the Senior Independent Director

Board meetings and attendance
Board meetings were held on a bi-monihly basis with ad hoc meetings in between as required The frequency and content of Board meetings are
reviewed by the Board annually

The attendance of the individual Directors at Board and Committee meetings of which they were members dunng 2012 was as follows

Executive Director Board Audrnt Remuneration Nomination
(8 meetings) {3 meetings) (8 meetings) (3 meetings)
Alastar Lyons 8 n/a 8 3
Christopher Hyman 8 n/a n/a 3
Andrew Jenner 8 na n/a n/a
Leonard V Broese van Groenou 33 1(1) 5(5) nfa
Dawd Richardson 8 3 8 3
Ange Risley 8 2(2) 8 3
Ralph D Crosby Jr 8 nfa n/a n/a
Notas

1 n/a means that the specified Director 1s not a member of that Committee, although he or she may attand meetings at the invitation of tha Chairman of the Committee
2 Where a number 1s given in brackets agamnst a Director's attendance, this 1s the number of meetings which ook place dunng thew tenure
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Board effectiveness

Induction

On joining the Board, Directors are given background information describing the Company and its activiies They receve an induction pack which
includes information on all the governance processes of the Group, the roles and responshilities of the Board Commuttees and other management
teamns and a range of other appropnate information about the Group, rts activiies and s advisors Meetings are also arranged with a range of
relevant senior managers from across the Group on a structured basis tc assist with a Director's induchon Visits are also arranged, where possible,
1o a number of contracts An induction programme for Malcolm Wyman, who joined the Board on 1 January 2013, 1s already underway and includes
site wisits and meetings with senior executives of, and adwisers to, the Group The Chairman continues to undertake an extensive programme

of contract visits

Continued professional development

The Board considers the training needs of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors plus the Company Secretary All Board members are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense The development needs of the Directors and the Company Secretary fall within the remit
of the Charrman who reviews and agrees these individually

Performance evaluation
The Group recognises the importance of a comprehensive evaluation process for the Board and the Chairman ensures that comments and
recommendations are considered carefully and implemented where appropnate to ensure s continued development

In 2011, the Board commissicned an external review completed by an independent consultant The Board intends to comply with the requirements
of the UK Corporate Governance Code and carry out such an external evaluation at least once every three years In 2012, an internal evaluation of
the Board and Committees was undenaken, which consisted of each Director completing a detailed questtonnaire, followed by an interview with
the Charrman

A presentation to the Board was given of the results of the evaluation

The evaluation concluded that the Board operates effectively under strong leadership from the Chairman and makes good use of the indwmidual
competencies of the Board's membershup The Board 1s felt to have a strong understanding of the wiews of magor imvestors and stakehoiders and

a good understanding of the markets in which the business operates Changes to some of the reports presented to the Board in response to previous
evaluation feedback had been very well received and there ts felt to be a good and transparent relationshtp between Non-Executive Directors and
semor management The Board was felt to be effective at manageng nsk and to have an approprately conservative attitude to nsk whilst equally

being prepared to take well considered and appropnately evaluated matenal nsk judgements The Commuttee structure and effectiveness were also
highly rated

It was acknowledged that the profile of the Board would be enhanced through greater diversity, both of expertise in areas such as brand and
marketing as weill as expenence of new geographical markets under consideration by the Group Whilst the Board recogrised the importance of well
developed succession plans, it acknowledged that there should be continued focus on emerging tatent as succession to key senior management
roles These, along with more adminstrative recommendations, have been given due consideration by the Board and actions for each have been
agreed accordingly

In addition an evaluation of the Chairman’s performance led by the Senior Independent Director (taking into account the views of both the
Non-Executive and Executive Directors) was carried out dunng the year it1s considered that the Chairman continues to provide strong leadership of
the Board, and there 1s a good level of trust between hum and the Chief Executive The Chairman's commitment to contract and site wisits and the value
derved from these by the business was also acknowledged Hrs very weall nformed view of the Group’s operations also enables him 1o provide a strong
sounding board for the Executive Directors

Board committees
The Board has delegated authonty to a number of permanent Committees to dea! with matters n accordance wath written terms of reference The terms

of reference for all Committees are reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to ensure they are still appropnate and reflect any changes in good
pracuce and governance, these are avarlable online at www serco com

Committees are authorised to obtain outside lega! or other independent professional adwvice If they consider it necessary

The Audit Committee and Audit Committee Report

Membership The Audit Committee consists solely of independent Non-Executive Directors Itis compnsed of David Richardson, who Chairs the
Committee, and Angie Risley, who replaced Leonard V Broese van Groenou when he retired from the Board and Commitiees on 14 May 2012
Following the sad and untimely passing of Paul Brooks in January 2012, membershsp of the Committee was rectuced below the level required by the
Code The Board considered it appropriate to pend increasing membership of the Committee until a new non-executive director with the right balance
of skills, 1s appointed to the Board The Company Charman, who 1s himself a quahfied accountant and a isted Audit Committee Chairman, attended
all meetings in the year and the Board considers that approprate representation was maintained as a consequence Malcolm Wyman, who jotned the
Commitiee on his appointment 1o the Board on 1 January 2013, will take over as Chairman of the Commitiee on the retirement of David Richardson

at the close of the Company's 2013 Annual General Meeting

The Chairman of the Committee has recent and relevant expenence for this role The Audit Committee met three times durmng the year At the inwitation
of the Commitiee, the Finance Director, the Group Head of Internal Audit, KPMG LLP {the Group s internal audit proweders), and Defonte LLP (the
external auditors) attend meetings The Committee meets with each of the internal audit prowiders, external auditors and the Group Head of Internal
Audit separately at least once a year All Directors have access to the minutes of the Audt Committee meetings
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Responsibilites The main responsibilites of the Audit Committee are

® To momtor the integnty of the financial statements of the Company, including intenm management statements, and any formal announcements
relating to the Company’s financial performance, rewewing significant financial reporting judgements contained in them

« To monitor and review the internal audit programme and ensure that the internal audit function 1s adequately resourced and has appropnate standing
with the Company

# To review management's and the internal audhtors' reports on the effectiveness of syslems for internal inancial control, financral reporting and
nsk management

& To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and assess independence and objectmty of the external auditors,
ensunng that key partners are rotated at appropriate intervals and relevant UK professional and regulatory requrements are taken into account

& To recornmend the audi fee 1o the Board and pre-approve any fees in respect of non-audit services provided by the external auditars and to ensure
that the prowision of non-audit services does not impan the external auditors’ ndependence or objectivity

® To discuss with the external auditors, before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit and to review the auditors' quality control
procedures and steps taken by the auditors to respond to changes in regulatory and other requirements

* To oversee the process for selecting the external auditors and make appropnate recommendations through the Board o the sharehalders to consider
at the annual general meeting

e To review the Company's procedures for detecting fraud and its systems and controls for the prevention of bribery and receive reports on
non-comphance

Additionally, in accordance with the Code, the Committee Is responsible for a formal whistle-blowing policy and procedure which applies throughout
the Group Responsibility for the operation of this policy has been delegated 1o the Company Secretary

Members of the Audit Committee have receved updates on accounting standards and generally accepied accounting practice on a quarterly basis
as part of the Finance Drrector’s repart to the Board, and also on a hali-yearly basis from the external auditors

During 2612 the Audit Committee discharged fully its responsibilities listed above and, in doing so, constdered the following

e Corporate Governance Report and statement of Directors’ Responsibiliies for inclusion in the 2011 Annual Report and Accounts
® 2012 Half Year Report and Auditors' report thereon

® 2012 external audit fees

o Review of the whistle-blowing process and significant reports from that process

e Evaluation of the Audit Commuittee and the achievement of s Terms of Reference

® 2012 nternal audit programme and the proposed 2013 programme

® The continuing independence of the external auditors

In cansidening the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December 2012, the Committee discussed with the auditors and management all areas
of nsk it tdentfied dunng both the audit planning process and year end audit In the Commuttee’s jJudgement these areas are usual for a company ot
Serco's size and business model

A small, but significant, number of Serco’s contracts are Long Term Contracts for accounting purposes and calculations around Revenue and Profit
recogniion require management judgement We have considered carefully the judgements made and therr impact on all aspecis of the financial
statements We have had detailed input from management on the forecasts and valdity of the estimates made histoncally and have discussed and
reviewed these with the auditors at our meetings

Profit Before Tax (PBT) In 2012 includes an exceptional gain which anses on the step purchase of a former Jont Venture We have confirmed that the
accounting for this acguisition is i accordance with the accounting standards

Goodwill 1s a significant asset for the Group It 1s supported for accounting purposes by management's cash flow forecasts al agreed cash generating
unit level We carefully considered the reascnableness of these forecasts

Finally, cash accounting, pension provisions, charges for taxahon, and accounting for acquisitions and disposals are all mayor items which we consider
in detaill in order to satisfy oursebves that the financial statements are reasonable We satisfied ourselves, as required, that Serco 1s a Going Concern

Non-audit services The Committee has reconfirmed its policy on the provision of audit and non-audit services by Defoitte LLP It deterrmined three
categones of services Approved (e g audit and related assurance services), Permitted {e g ax compliance and due diligence) and Not Permitted
{e g design/implementation of financral iInformation systems and quast management services) The Committee, the Company, and Deloitte LLF all
monitor comphance with the policy and rewiew at each meeting the fees earned and the esttmates for the year

The Committee acknowledges that the Group's external audit firm will have a significant understanding of the Group's business and this knowledge
and experience can be utihsed to the Group's advantage in many areas thus ensuring efficiency in costs to the Group They also operate to
professional codes of conduct including the management of conflicts of nterest Accordingly, It considers that the external auditors may be engaged
for the following non-audit services

a) assistance In tax compliance activities (including the preparation of tax returns)

b} tax adwvisory services

¢) accountants’ reports for any Stock Exchange purposes

d) ad hoc reporing on historic financial iInformation for any other purpose and ad hoc accounting adwvisory services
e) due diligence actvties associated with potential acquisitions or disposals of businesses
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f} other corporate finance adwisory services required in support of potential transactions o bkds including the review of financial models for internal
consistency and complance with Group finanaial accounting policies, and
g} any other serwices which are not protubited and are authonsed by the Finance Director of Group Company Secretary

Where such senaces are considered to be recurring in nature, approval of the Committee may be sought for the full inancial year at the beginning of
that year Approval for other permitted non-audit services has to be sought on an ad hoc basts where no Audit Committee meeting 1s scheduled within
an appropnate tme frame approval is to be sought from the Chairman of the Committee (or his nomenated alternate) The Committee may establish fee
thresholds for pre-approved services and similar approvals are required for work awarded lo accounting firms other than the Company's auditors where
fees are expected 0 exceed pre-approved imits The Group Company Secretary 15 nominated by the Audit Committee as the point of review and
approval for the engagement of non-audit services

The Group has comphed with the policy throughout the year Where appropnate non-audil services have been provided by comparies other than
Deloitte LLP to sateguard auditor objectivity and independence The fees patd to Deloitte LLP for audit, audit-related and non-audit services for 2012
can be found In note 6 to the Consohdated Finanoial Statements The principal areas of engagement of Deloitte LLP for audit-retated and non-audit
services were commissioned in full compliance with the above policy and a formal tender exercise was undertaken where appropnate The serices
principally related to taxaton adwvice, IT adwisory work and due diligence and other corporate finance advisory services

Auditor's independence The independence, obiectivity and effectiveness of the external auditor have been examined by the Committee and
discussions were held regarding their terms of engagement and remuneration The Semior Statutory Auditor 1s Richard Knights who was appointed to
the role at the beginning of 2011 There are no contractual obhgations that restnict the Company's current choice of external auditor and consideration
was given to the merits of appeointing an alternative external audit firm Following an assessment of the relative strengths and weaknesses of an
alternative provider agamst the continued engagement of the incumbent provider, the Committee recommended o the Board that Deloitte LLP be
proposed for reappontment at the forthcoming 2013 Annual General Meeting This recommendation has been accepted and will be proposed to
shareholders The Commuttee further noted the requirement within the FRC's September 2012 *Guidance on Audit Committees”, applying to the
Company’s next reporting penod, requinng FTSE350 companies to put therr external audit services out to tender at least once in every ten years

The Nomination Committee
Membership The Nominatton Committee 1s chaired by Alastar Lyons and throughout 2012 comprised David Richardson, Angie Risley and Chnistopher
Hyman The Committee met three times dunng 2012 Malcolm Wyman joined the Commuittee in his appeintment to the Board on 1 January 2013

Responsibithes Matters considered duning the year included succession and contingency planning, Board structure and composition and the
recruitment of a successor to David Richardson as Charr of Audit

The Commuttee has responsibility for the identihcation and nomination of candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they anse, engaging external
search consultants as and when necessary Approval of appomntment 1s a responsibility of the Board

The Nomination Committee has engaged the Zygos Partnership, an independent external executive search consultancy for the appointment of new
Non-Executive Directors The Board confirms the Zygos Partnership 1s not connected with the Company in any way In consuitaticn with the chosen
search consultants, speciiications are drawn up for the roles and atinibutes that are felt to be essential for the effective performance of any new
Non-Executive Director including what would be considered acceptabte in terms of ime commitment

The Remuneration Committee
Details of the Remuneration Commuttee and its policies together with the Directors' remuneratien, emoluments and inierests in the Company's share

capital are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 98 1o 114

Executive Committees

Throughout 2012, an Executive Commitiee has operated which 1s chared by the Chief Executive and comprises eight other members, including the
Group Finance Director Regional Chief Executives and other selected Corporate function heads The Committee has delegated responsibility from

the Board to ensure the effective direction and control of the bustness and to defiver the Group's long-term strategy and goals The Commitiee met
nine imes duning the year to review the Group's activiies and discuss management and opesaional 1ssues Representatives from across the Serco
business were invited to the meetings, as appropnate, to discuss aspects of ther business or gve presentations on specific topics

Relationship with shareholders
The Company's relatonship with shareholders 1s given a hugh prionty The Annual Report and Accounts 1s avallable to all shareholders both in hard

copy and onling at www serco com

We no longer produce a printed repornt of our half-year results Instead, a letter summansing those results 1s 1ssued to shareholders and a copy of the
full stock exchange announcement 1s available on request

Regular trading updates are published ahead of close periods and before the annual general meeting by press release In addition, press releases and
stock exchange announcements are made 1egarding significant contracts or transactions Al rading announcements are also posted on the Group's
wabsile www Serco com
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Annual General Meeting

Inddual shareholders have the opporturuty at the annual general meeting (AGM) to question the Chairman and, through lim the Chaurs of the vanious
Board Committees and other Directors Detaits of the meeting are set out in the notice of AGM which is sent to sharehalders and which contains the
text of the resolutions to be proposed and explanatory notes Shareholders attending the AGM are invited to vete by means of a poll A poll reflects the
number of voling nghts exercsable by each member and ts considered by the Board to be a more democratic method of voting Shareholders are
adwvised of the total number of votes lodged for each resolution, in the categones “for” and “aganst” together with the number of "votes withheld”

This iInformation (s also posted on the Group's website www serco com

Institutional investors

The Chief Executive and Finance Director have regular dialogue with nsttutional investors The Chairman atso each year offers to meet with the
Company's largest institutional investors The Company's Investor relations programme and day-to-day activities are managed by the Head of
Investor Relations As part of the role of Senior Independent Director, David Richardson 1s also avalable to meet shareholders, should it be required

The Board receives an investor relations report on a quarterly basis This reviews share price movements and valuation, changes in the share register, |
the Campany's recent and planned investor relations activies, commumication with shareholders, analysi recommendations and significant news \
from the market and specifically the support services sector The report ensures that the Board has a clear understanding of the Company's investor |
relanons performance and enables alf directors to develop an understanding of the views of major shareholders |
|
|

Group website

The Group website www serco com s a primary source of information on the Group The site includes an area talored far investors, including
information such as an archwe of all reports, announcements, presentations and webcasts, share price tools, the terms of reference for all Board
Committees, the Corporate Responsibility Report, and information on voting at the annual general meeting It also has a link directly to the Company's
registrars allowing shareholders to view therr shareholding online and to vote on the resolutions set out it the notice of annual general mesting

Business conduct

Serco Group operates within a Management System that defines the policies, standards and processes to be applied wherever we operate Integral to
this ts our palicy on Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all business dvsions, operating companies and business units throughout the world
This policy outlines the Group's position on a wide range of ethical and legal rssues including confircts of interest, financial nducements, human nghts
and legal and regulatory compliance It applies to Drrectors and to all employees regardiess of ther position or location Recogrising that ethical
dilemmas may anse in a growmng company the Group has an Ethics Consultation Process that is to be followed 10 determine the Group's position

on particular issues  To support this process an Investment and Ethics Committee, compnsing members of the Executive Team with a quorum of

three and chared by the Chief of Staff, meets as required As the leadership of the Company, the Executive Team will make judgements about what

it considers acceptable

Serco's outsourced Ethics Hotline operated throughout the year, which enabled employess to report any concerns, or report any wrongdoing that they
did not feel able to raise with therr ine manager, human resources colleagues or through other reporting channels In addison to the Hotine, which 1s
avaitable toll-free worldwide in several languages, employees can also make reports via email or the intermet The Company Secretary investigates
independently any 1ssues raised and reports back to the Audit Committee and, as required, the Board

The Group maintains a position of impartiahity with respect to party politics Accordingly 1t does not contribule funds to any political party It does,
however, contribute to the public debate of policy issues that may affect it in the countnes in which it operates

Internal control and risk management

Further to the comments above regarding Governance, detalls of the Group's internal control and nsk management processes are contaned in pages
78 to 84 of the "Our performance’ secton The Board confirms that the actions it considers necessary have been taken to remedy any failings and
weaknesses which it has determined to be significant from its review of the Group's internal controls and nsk management processes

Going concern

The Drrectors have acknowledged the guidance ‘Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of UK Companies 2009' and 'An update

for Directors of Listed Companies Responding to increased country and currency nsk in financial reports’, pubhshed by the Financial Reporting Council
n October 2009 and January 2012 respectively This 1s discussed in the Finance Review starting on page 58

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

J-b

John Hickey
Secretary
4 March 2013
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Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 Comparative figures
used in this report are for the year ended 31 December 2011 The Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 85 to 91 forms part of the Statutory
Directors’ Report

Activities

Serco Group plc s a holding company which operates via its subsidianes and iis joint ventures to improve services by managing people, processes,
technology and assets more effectively Serco supports governments agencies and companies who seek a trusted partner with a solid track record
of providing assured semce excellence Our people offer operational management and consulting expertise in the awation, BPO defence, education,
environmental services, faciities management, health, home affars, information and communications technology, knowledge sernices, local
government, science and nuclear, transport, welfare to work and commercial sectors

The Charman’s Statement and the remainder of the 'Our performance’ section on pages 18 to B4 report on the activiies during the year, post balance
sheet events, and likely fiiture developments The information in these reports which 1s required 1o fulfil the requirements of the Business Review s
incorporated in this Directors’ Report by reterence

Share capital
The 1ssued share capital of the Company, together with the details of shares 1ssued during the year 1s shown in note 32 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The powers of the Directors 1o 1ssue or buy back shares are restricted to those approved at the Company's annual general meeting

The rules relating to the appointment and replacement of Directors are contained in the Company’s Articles of Association Changes to the Articles
of Association must be approved by the shareholders in accordance with the legisfation in force from time to time

Dividends

An intenm dmdend of 2 65p {2011 2 50p) per ordinary share was paid on 19 October 2012 The Directors recommend a final dividend of 7 45p

(2011 5 90p) per ordinary share which, if approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 22 May 2013 to those shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 15 March 2013

Interests in voting rights
As at 4 March 2013* the Company had been nohfied under Rule 5 of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules of the Financal Services Authonty of
the: following hotdings of voting nghts in its shares

Number of shares

{mullions) % held
Invesco Lirmited 601 1205
Capital Research and Management Company 303 607
UBS Investrment Bank 291 590
Marstan Nominees imited 251 511
AXAS A 24 4 495
Fidelity International Limited 239 493
Baillie Gifford & Co 240 492
Newton Investment Management Limited 236 485
BlackRock Inc 218 442
HBOS plc 205 422

The Directors are unaware of any restrictions on transfer of secunties in the Company or on voing nghts There are alse no known agreements
between holders of the Company’s secunties which may result in such restnctions
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Directors
The current members of the Board together with biographical details of each Director are set out on pages 96 and 97

©On 6 December 2012, the Company announced the appontment of Malcolm Wyman as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
1 January 2013 Malcolm will stand for election at the Company’s AGM on 15 May 2013

At the conclusion of the Company's 2013 AGM Dawd Richardson will retire as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and, accordingly, will not be
standing for re-election Malcolm Wyman will take over as Audit Committee Chairman and Sentor Independent Director on David’s retrement All other
Cirectors will stand for re-etection at the AGM

Directors’ interests
With the exceplion of the Executive Directors' service contracts and the Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment, there are no contracts in which
any Director has an interest

Certain change m control conditions are included in the servce contracts of Directors which provide compensation or reduction of notice periods
in the event of a change in control of the Company

Details of the Cwrectors' interests in the ordinary shares and options over the ordinary shares of the Company are set out in the Remuneration Report
on pages98to 114

Annual general meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of Linklaters LLP One Silk Street, London EC2Y BHQ on 15 May 2013 at 11 60am

The Notice of Annual General Meeting together with explanatory notes is sent to sharehotders with this Annual Report

Financial risk policles
A summary of the Group's treasury policies and objectives relating to financial nsk management, ncluding exposure to associated risks, 1s on pages
15310 158

Employment policies

The Board 1s committed to maintaining a working envirenment where staff are individually valued and recogmsed Group companies and divisions
operate within a framework of human resources policies, practices and regulations appropriate to their own market sector and country of operation,
whilst subject to Group-wide principles

The Group 1s commitied to ensunng equal opportunity, honouring the nghts of the individual, and fosternng partnership and trust in every working
relationship Policies and procedures for recruitment, traming and career development promote equality of opportunity regardiess of gender, sexual
onentahon, age, martal status disability, race, religion or other beliefs and ethnic or natonal ongm

The Group gives full consideration to apphcations for employment, career development and promotion recerved from the disabled and offers
empioyment when sutable opportunities anse |f employees become disabled dunng ther service with the Group arrangements are made wherever
practicable 10 continue thew employment and training

The Group remains proud of its record of managing employee relations and continues to believe that the stiucture of individual and collective
consultation and negotation 1s best developed at a local level

Over the years, the Group has demonstrated that working with trade unions and creating effective partnerships allows improvements to be delivered
in business performance as well as in terms and cenditions of employment Where employees choose not to belong to a trade urion, employee
communication forumns such as works councils exist 10 ensure involvement of staff within the business

Partcipation by staft in the success of the Group 1s encouraged by the availability of sharesave schemes, a share gption scheme, and long term

incentive arrangements for senior management, which effectively ahgn therr interests with those of shareholders by requinng that performance crterna
are achieved prior to exercise
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Corporate responsibihity

The Group mantains a focus on corporate responsibility through a model that 1s applied across the business focusing on our people, safety, the
environment and the communities we serve This model forms an integral part of our Management System and 1s supported by defined policies
in all of the areas it covers These are apphed within the context of our policies on Business Conduct and Ethics Activities are reported quarterly
as part of our internal assurance reporting process

Further information on our approach to corporate responsibiity and how we have delvered aganst our commitments 1s contained 1n the Corporate
Responsibility Report which 15 available onbne at www serco com/cr2012 This site also provides an overview of our approach to corporate
responsibility, our management system and our policies

Creditor payment policies
The Group requires each of 11s business units to negotiate and agree terms and conditions for payment for the supply of capital and revenue items
just as keenly as they negotiate prices and other commercial matters

Supphers are made aware of the terms and the way 1n which disputes are to be settled Payment i1s then made in accordance with those terms
The Group's average creditor payment terms in 2012 were 26 days (2011 32 days)

Donations
The Group continues to encourage all staff to participate in their local communiies and has a process to assess both the vatue and type of nvestment
on a worldwide basis This measure s based upoen the Business in the Community (BITC) reporting format

The value of this investment In 2012 at £2,560,084 {2011 £2,532,175) represents 1 02% of the Group's pre-tax profit before exceptional tems

Duning the year neither the Company nor the Group made political donations and they intend to continue with this policy Within the US business
there exists a Political Action Commuittee (PAC) which 1s funded entirely by employees and therr spouses The Serco PAC and its contnbutions are
administered Iin stnct accordance with regulatory reguirements Employee contributtons are entirely voluntary and no pressure 1s placed on employees
to participate Under US law, an employee-funded PAC must bear the name of the employing company

As announced on 20 December 2012 Serco has set out plans to establish the Serco Foundation as an independent chantable foundation to mark 2013
as Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated to service excellence Serco has made a one-off endowment of £5m o the Foundation
and will provide angoing support for its mission to help chanties through the application of Serco's people skills and capabilities The Foundation will
be independent of Serco and will operate on a not-for-profit basis

Financial statements

At the date of this report, as far as each Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are unaware Each Director
has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken as a Director in order to make tumself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors
Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resclution fo reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcorming
Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on s behalf by

\J -
John Hickey
Secretary

4 March 2013

* As at 25 March 2013 the Compary had not been notified of any changes or addiions to these mterests
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directers are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Drrectors are required to prepare the
group financial statements in aceordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4
of the |1AS Regulation and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

® Select suitable accounting palicies and then apply them consistently,

® Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e State whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject ta any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned in the financial statements, and

@ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 11s iInappropniate to presume that the company will continue In business

In prepanng the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

o Properly select and apply accounting policies,

e Present information, inctuding accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

® Provide additonal disclosures when complhiance wath the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient {o enable users to understand the impact
of particular transachons, other events and conditions on the enlity’s financial position and financial performance, and

o Make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s fransactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Comparies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legisiation in the United Kingdom goverrung the preparation and dissermunation of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other junisdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowladge

® The financial statements, prepared In accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and far view of the assets, labilites,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakungs included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

» The management report, which 1s incorporated into the Directors” Report includes a far review of the development and performance of the business
and the posiion of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
nsks and uncentamnties that they face

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

J-b

John Hickey
Secretary
4 March 2013
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Alastair Lyons CBE (59)
Role Chairman

Appointment Alastarr was appointed a Non-Executve Director of Serco Group plc i March 2010 becoming
Charrman at the conclusion of the Company's AGM in May 2010

Responsibilities Alastar 1s responsible for the effective operation of the Board and oversight of corporate
governance He s Char of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee

Expenence In his executive career Alastarr was Group Finance Director and subseguentty Chief Executive
of the National & Provincial Bullding Scciety When the society was acquired in 1996 by Abbey National he
Jained the Abbey Nahbonal main Board as Managing Director of its Insurance Omsion

In 1997 he became Chief Executive of the pensions specialist NPl where he led its demutualisation and
acquisiion by AMP subsequent to which he joined NatWest in 1999 as Director of Corporate Projects

A chantered accountant with an MA in economics from Tnnity College Cambindge, Alastar has been a
non-executive director of, successively, the Department for Work & Pensions and the Department for Transport

External appointments Alastar has been Charrman of Admiral Group plc, the direct motor insurer since 2000
In 2008 he was appointed deputy Chairman of Bevis Homes Greup PLC, one of the UK's leading quoted
house-builders and in March 2010 he was appointed Senior Independent Director and Audit Charr of Phoenix
Group Holdings the UK's lasgest closed life and pension fund consohdator In February 2011 he was appointed
Chairman of the Towergate Insurance Group He was awarded the CBE n the 2001 Queen's Birthday Honours
for services to social security

Christopher Rajendran Hyman CBE (49)
Role Chief Executive

Appointment Chris was appomnted Chief Executive of Serco Group plc in 2002

Responsibilities Chris is responsible tor the formation and implementation of the Group s global strategy,
as well as the day to day management of the business operations and our relattonstup with the City and key
stakeholders He provides leadership and representation of the Group with major customers, sharsholders
and industry organisations Chns is a member of the Nomination Commutiee

Expenence Chns graduated from Natal Unuversity n Durban, South Afnca and qualfied as a chartered
accountant, serving with Arthur Andersen and Ernst & Young before joining Serco in 1994 as the European
Finance Director He was appomnted Group Company Secretary in 1996, Corporate Finance Director in 1997
and Group Finance Director in Apnl 1999

External appointments Chns is charrman of HRH ThePrince of Wales’ chanty In Kind Direct, and a Trustee of
the Afnca Foundation Chris 1s a Trustee Director of the Board for Business in the Community and 1s Charrman
of The Prince’s Seeng 1s Beliewing Programme In the 2010 Queen’s Birthday Honours Chns was awarded the
CBE for services to business and chanity

Andrew Mark Jenner (44)
Role Finance Director

Appomtment Andrew was appointed Group Finance Director in May 2002

Responsibilities Andrew 1s responsible for the Group’sfinancial strategy and management including treasury,
tax, reporting and control He alse has responsibility for our nsk management and assurance framework

He shares responsibility with the Chref Executive for our relabionship with shareholders and the City
Expernience Andrew, a chartered accountant, joined Serco in 1986 as Group Financial Controller, having
previously worked for Unitever and Deloitte & Touche LLP He became Corporate Finance Directar with
addional responsibility for treasury actvibies in 1999 before joining the Board in 2002

External appointments Andrew 1s a non-executive director of Gallford Try ple, one of the UK's leading
construction and house-building groups and 1s Chairman of its Audit Committee
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Ralph D. Crosby Jr (65)

Role Non-Executive Director
Appointment Ralph joined Serco as a Non-Executive Director in June 2011

Expenence Ralph was Charrman of EADS North America untif his retvement from that position at the end

of December 2011 He joined EADS in 2002 as Charrman and Chief Executive Officer of EADS North Amernca
and also served as a member of the EADS global Executive Committee until 2010 Prewviously, Ralph has held
numerous posiions with Northrop Grumman Corporation, concluding over 20 years of service as President of
their Integrated Systems Sector Prior ta his indusiry career, Ralph served as an Officer in the US Army Ralph
has an MA in Public Administration from Harvard, an MA in International Relations from the Graduate Institute
of Infernationat Studies, Switzerland, and a BSc from the United States Military Academy at West Point, NY

External appointments Ralph is a non-executive director of American Electnic Power Co Inc and Ducommun
Inc inthe United States

David Richardson (61)

Role Senior Independent Director
Appomtment Dawd joined Serco as a Non-Executive Director in June 2003

Responsibilities David 1s Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

Expenence David, a Chartered Accountant has previously held the position of Finance Director of Whitbread,
where his roles in a 22 year career have included eight years as Strategy Director David was mstrumental in
transforming Whitbread from a brewing and pub company into a market leader in hotels, restaurants and leisure
clubs Dawid has been Charman of De Vere Group plc, Forth Ports plc and a non-executive director of Tomkins
pic, Dairy Crest Group plc and The Restaurant Group plc

External Appointments Dawd 1s Charman of BBGI (sicav) SA and Four Pillars Hotels Lid He s also a director
of Assura Group Ltd and a member of the Supervisory Board of World Hotels AG

Angie Risley (54)

Role Non-Executive Director
Appointment Angie joined Serco as a Non-Executive Director in Apnl 2011

Responsibiliies Angie 1s Charr of the Remuneraton Committee and a member of the Audit and
Nomination Committees

Expenence As Group Human Resources Director of J Sainsbury ple, Angie serves on Sansbury's Operating
Board and has responsibility for corporate, retal and logistics HR for 150,000 colleagues

Previcusly, Angie was Group Human Resources Director of Lloyds Banking Group plc, serving as a member of
the Uoyds Banking Group Executive Committee with responsibility for developing group-wide people prachces
Until May 2007, she was an executive director of Whitbread PLC, having joined the Whitbread Group in 1989
She has also been a member of the Low Pay Commission and a non-executive director of Biffa plc and

Arrva plc

External appointments Angie 1s Group Hurnan Resources Director of J Sainsbury plc

Malcolm Wyman {66)
Role Non-Executive Director

Appointment Malcolm joined Serco as a Non-Executive Director in January 2013

Responsibilihes Malcolm 1s a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nemination Committees

Expenence Malcolm was previously an executive director and the Chref Financial Officer of SABMiller ple,

until his retirement in July 2011 Malcolm joined SAB in 1986 and joined the board as Group Corporate Finance
Director it 1990 He was appointed to the board of SABMiller upon its isting on the London Stock Exchange

in 1999 He was Chief Financial Officer from 2001 unt! his retirement in July 2011

External appointments Malcolm, a chartered accountant, 15 a non executive director and Audit Commiltee

Charman of Impenal Tobacco Group PLC, and a non-executive director of Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited
and Senior Independent Director and Audit Commuttee Charman of Nedbank Group bimited in South Africa
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Dear Shareholder
On behalf of your Board, | am pleased to mtroduce the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2012

In presenting my first report to shareholders, | would like to thank my predecessor, Leonard V Broese van Groenou, for his very valued coniribution
1o the Remuneration Commuitee over his six year tenure

The Remuneration Committee recognises the importance of the BIS consultation on Executive Remuneration and the need to ensure that companies’
remuneration reports include clear information about the ink between pay and performance This yeas's report includes addiional disclosures on cur
reward and on our remuneration decisions in line with the proposals put forward in the BIS consultation

This Report 1s in two parts

1 Remuneration policy report setting out all elements of a company’s remuneration pelicy and key factors that were taken into account in setting
that policy, and

2 Implomentation report showing how the policy was implemented, setting out actual payments to directors and details on the link between
company performance and pay for the financial year covered by the accounts

As reported in the Operating Review (pages 40 to 57), 2012 has been a year of significant ptogress operationally, financrally and strategically for Serco
In addition to a record level of contract wins, the breadth of our portfolio has enabled our strength in the AMEAA region and the successhul launch

of our Global Services BPO division to ofiset challenges in the US federal contracting markst We have made further significant strategic progress

in posittoring our business to delver strongly for the future

During the year, the Committee reviewed the existing remuneration arrangements and determined that the overall structure and shape of remuneration
should be retained for 2013 and no changes have therefore been made for the coming year As part of that process the Committee engaged with

our larger Shareholders and two key shareholder bodies and we found the process extremely helpful | would like to personally thank the Shareholders
for their ime, and for therr open and transparent dialogue

The Committee conducted its regular annual review of salanes of the Executive Directors, taking into account the current economic climate, the
challenges facing the business, their performance and the competitiveness of therr remuneraton agasnst the UK market The Committee also has regard
to the overall pay decisions for employees across the Group as a whole Against this backdrop, salanes were adjusted in line with our remuneration
principles to prowde market competitive reward opportunities for performance where appropnate With effect from 1 Apnl 2012, therr salanes increased
by 3% to £750,000 for the Chief Executive and £440 000 tor the Finance Director

On the basis of Serco’s performance in 2012, annual bonus awards of 108 3% and 93 9% have been determ:ned for the Chief Executive and the
Finance Director These outcomes reflect the performance achieved in the year against the financial and non-financial targets set Serco's financial
performance for the year 1s described in more detail in the ‘Our performance’ section startingon page 18 The personal objectives set for each of the
Directors covered areas such as active portfolio management (with capability driven acquisiions and non-core disposals), widening our exposure

to emerging markets and the securing of key strategic confracts to deliver long-term performance as well as specific activities around the ongong
developrment and execution of the Group's strategy

Awards made in 2010 were subject to two performance measures, EPS growth and retative TSR Under the 2010 PSE vesting of 30% of the shares
are subject to our EPS performance, and under the DBP 50% of the matching shares are subject to this measure We are pleased that our EPS
performance against the three-year measure was compound growth of 12 6% per annum which resulted in 79 5% vesting for the EPS element of the
2010 PSP and DBP It 1s however, disappointing that our TSR performance for the penod ended 31 December 2012 relative to the comparator group
was below median, therefore no shares vested under this element of either the PSP (70%) or the DBP (50%)

The voting outcome at the 14 May 2012 AGM in respect of the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2011 1s set out
on page 110 and reflected very strong Shareholder support of the Company’s remuneration policy, which remains unchanged for 2013

The Commuttee continues ta be mindful of the views of Shareholders and other stakeholders, and welcomes Shareholder feedback on any aspects
of Executive remuneration

ke

Angte Ristey
Remuneration Committee Chairman
4 March 2013
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Remuneration Policy Report

The following report details the remuneration policy and the decrstons on remuneration of the Directors of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 In prepanng this report, consideration has been given to the disclosure requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Companies
Act 2006, Schedule 8 of the Lasge and Medun-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the draft regulations
from BIS on the proposed content of the new style Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s anticipated to apply to accounting periods ending on

or after September 2013

The remuneration policy report is effective for the financial year ending 31 December 2013

Remuneration policy
Serco’s remuneration policy supports the achievement of the Company's long-term strategic objectives Serco’s approach to executive remuneration
1S designed to

® Support Serco’s long-term future growth, strategy and values

& Align the financial Interests of executives and shareholders

® Provide market competitive reward opportunities for performance i line with expectations and deliver significant financial rewards for sustained
out-performance

e Enable Serco 1o recruit and retain the best wath the required skills and experience in all our chosen markets

® Be based on a clear ratonale which partieipants, shareholders and other stakeholders are able to understand and support

Key elements of remuneration table
The remuneration package for Executive Directors consists of base salary, annual bonus, long-term share-based incentives, pension and other benefits
The Group's policy 1s to ensure thal a sigruficant proportion of the package 1s related to performance

Each element of reward and how it will support Serco's remuneration policy and the Group’s short- and long-term strategic objectives 1s summarsed
below Whilst the table 1s focused on Executive Directors the following section prowides further information of how pay policies are set for the broader
employee papulaticn

Element and purpose Approach and performance measurement Level Change
for 2013
Base salary e Pay levels are designed {o be competitive and farr and CEOQ £779,000 Increase 3 86%
® Help recruit and reflect the skills and performance of indviduals FD €457,000
retain executives o Base salanes are benchmarked annually and are set Increases reflect
® Recognise ndwidual's to ensure that total target remuneration 1s competitive performance
experience, responsibility @ Normally reviewed by the Committee annually and fixed achieved n the year
and performance for 12 months commencing 1 Apnl and are In-ne with
# The relative pay and employment conditions both within our performance
the Company and the comparator group are considered related approach
when determining satanes to salanes across
the Group
Benefits ® Benefits are reviewed annually against market practice 25 days' holiday No change
® To provide a competitive level and are designed to be competitive per year, car, private
of benefits medical insurance,

permanent health
insurance, hife cover,
annual allowance for
independent financial
advice, and voluntary
tealth checks every
two years

Pension ¢ The Executive Directors participated in the Serco Pension No change

and Ufe Assurance Scheme {SPLAS) — defined
benefits scheme

e Christopher Hyman opled to cease accruing benefits in
the pension scheme after 1 Apnl 2010 and Andrew Jenner
after 31 December 2010

® Since ceasing 1o accrue benehts both Executive Directors
have been in receipt of a cash allowance equal to 33%
of base salary in lieu of further pension provision

@ The Executive Directors remain entitted to lump sum and
widow's pension benefits should they die before retrement
and while still employed by Serco
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Element and purpose

Annual Bonus

® Incentivise executives
1o achieve specific,
predetermined goals
durnng a one-year penod

® Reward ongoing
stewardship and contnbution
to core values

Approach and performance measurement

& Bonus s earned on the basis of achievement of a mix of
financial and non-financial objectives which are weighted
80% and 20% respectively

e Financial measures are based on Serco Group’s Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) and the non-financial
measures are mdmwdually set and are based on key
strateqic objectives

o Bonus result 1s determined by the Commuittee after
year end, based on performance against targets

Level Change

for 2013

& Maximum bonus No change

opporunity 150%

of base salary for

the Chief Executive

and 130% for the

Finance Director
e On-target bonus

75% of base

salary for the

Chuef Executive

and 65% for the

Finance Director

Deferred Bonus

Plan (“DBP”)
Incentivise executive to
achieve supenor returns
for shareholders

@ Executive Directors can elect to defer, for three financial
years, up to 50% of their annual bonus by purchasing
invested shares

e If stretching performance targets, measured over thiee
years, are met each invested share which could have
been purchased with the gross equivalent of the amount
used to purchase invested shares will be matched by
a maxmum of two ‘matching’ shares

& EPS growth is the sole measure to determine the vesting
of matching shares

® Dividends are reinvested and distnbuted only in respect
of shares that vest at the end of the performance penod

® The Committee has discretion to vary the proportion of
awards that vest, to ensure that the outcomes are far
and appropriate and reflect the underlying financial
performance of the Group

Each individual No change
Investment share Is

matched with two

shares for maximum

performance

Performance Share

Plan ("PSP”)

Drnive achievement of longer
term objectives aligned closely
to shareholders’ interests

e Awards of nominal cost options/conditional shares made
annually, with vesting dependent on EPS growth and
relative TSR (compared to the companies m the FTSE 51
to 130 {excluding investment trusts)) measured over
three-year performance penod

& The two performance measures are independent

measured over a three-year performance penod and each

determines 50% of the award

e No awards vest for performance below Median/Threshold

EPS growth
o EPS growth 1s measured on a compound basis 25%
of the award will vest for threshold performance nsing

on a straight hne basis to 100% for maximum performance

Relative TSR

@ Threshold vesting for the relative TSR condition s at 50%
of the TSR achieved by the comparator group

® Maximum vesting 1s achieved if the Company's relative
TSR ranking 1s in the upper quartile

o Dividends are reinvested and distnbuted only in respect
of shares that vest at the end of the performance penod

& The Commuttee has discretion to vary the proportion of

awards that vest, to ensure that the outcomes are fair and

appropnate reflect the undertying financtal performance
of the Group

Face value on grant of
200% of base salary
for the Chief Executive
and 175% for the
Finance Director

No change
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Element and purpose Approach and perfarmance measurement Level Change

for 2013
Fees for hon-executive ® The fees of the Charman and the Non-Executive Directors ~ Base fee Charman's base
directors which are determined by the Board, are set at a level Chairman £270 000 fee increased by
Reflect the time commutrnent and which will attract individuals with the necessary expenence 3 8% with effect
responsibilities of the roles and ability to make a substantia! contribution to the NED base fee from 1 Apnl 2013
Group's affars £50,000
® The Charrman receves no fees in addition to the The Charman's fee
Charman's fee Additlonal fees increase reflects
& Each committee charmanship and SID fee are all SID fee £10,000 posiionng aganst
additional to the NEDs' basic fee market and the
® Fees are reviewed on an annual basis, taking into Chairman of audit contrbution made
consideration market practice and are approved committee £12 500 n his role
by the Board
® An allowance Is payable for attendance at Chairman of No change to
international meetings remuneration NED’s base or
# No bonuses are paid to Non-Executive Directors committee £10,000 additional fees
® NEDs are encouraged to hold shares in the Group
but are not subject o a shareholding requirement Allowance
o NED fees are not performance related £5,000 for attendance
at eachinternational
meeting

Remuneration policy for other employees

The remuneration policy descnbed in the previous table applies specifically to executives of the group The remuneration commuttee believes that the
struclure of management reward at Serco 15 also linked to Serco's strategy and performance The table below explains how the remuneration polcy
has been cascaded below Executive Directors to achieve alignment of policy across the organisation

Element Difference in remuneration policy for other employees

Base salary e The same principles and considerations that are applied Lo Executive Directors are, as far as possible,
applied to all employees

Benefits ® Serco also has provisions for market aligned benefits for all employees
Pension ¢ The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes and defined contnbution schemes
Annual bonus o Approxmately 500 members of the Global Leadership Team are eligible for a bonus award under

The Leadership Team Bonus Scheme

Deferred Bonus Plan ("DBP") ® Members of the Executive Committee are mvited to participate in the DBP on the same terms as the
Executive Directors

Performance Share Plan ("PSP") @ The PSP is awarded to approximately S00 employees in the Global Leaderstup Team

Sharesave ® An all-employee scheme Options are normally granted at a discount of 10% to the market value and have
no performance conditions The Executive Directors do not particpate in Sharesave
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Remuneration scenarios

The charts illustrate the composition and value of the different elements of remuneration that the Executive Directors will receive far below threshold,
target and maximum corporate periormance The chart indicates that a significant proportion of both target and stretch pay 1s performance-related
For ‘target’ performance - vanable pay accounts for two thirds of total pay

Notes

« Base salary comesponds to 2013 salary for CEQ and FD

» Pension represents 33% salary allowance for CEQ and FD

= Betow threshold no incentives vest (bonus and LTI)

+ Bonus pays out 75% and 65% of salary for on target performance for the CEO and FD respectively and 150% and 130% of salary for maximum performance
for the CEQ and FD respectvely

+ Deferred bonus provides a match of 1 2 for larget performance and 2 matching shares for maxumum performance

= The LT values reflect target and maximum vesting of the proposed 2013 award Share pnce movement has not been incomporated into the above figures
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Changes in key metrics
The chart below details the percentage change in profit, dividends and overall expenditure on pay compared wth the previous financial year

Serco considers overall expenditure on staff pay in the context of the general finances of the company, thus includes the determination of the
annual salary increase budget, the annual grant of shares and annual bonus funding for the business

'‘Operating Profit’ excludes exceptional items, ‘Owvdend’, and 'Overall
Expenditures on Staff Pay' shall have the same meaning as used in the
preparation of the accounts of the Company

Considerations of conditions elsewhere in the group
When making decisions on executive remuneration the Remuneration Committee considers the wider economic environment and conditiens within
the Company In particular the Committee considers pay across the company when reviewing base salanes for Executive Directors

Individual pay increases that range from zero to amounts in excess of those granted to the Executive Directors were awarded to various employees
for reasons including performance promotion, increased scope of role and market position

Service contracts
Executive Director Date joined the Company Date of appointment Date of contract
to the Board
Christopher Hyman 30 August 1994 1 Apnl 1999 10 June 2009
Andrew Jenner 4 November 1996 3 May 2002 10 June 2009

Each Executive Director has a rolling service contract and these contracts will be avallable for nspection prior to the start of and after the Company’s
annual general meeting

The sensce contracts have a notice peniod of 12 months The Company reserves the nght to make a payment in heu of nohce In addition, where

a Director leaves the Company following a change of control, whether or not he 1s dismissed or he elects (o leave on notice he will be entitled to
recewve a payment equivalent to up 1o one year’s remuneration  The service contracts do not provide for termination payments to be made in any
other crcumstances The Executive Directors are also entitled to a range of benefits which compnise 25 days hohday per year, a car, private medical
insurance, health cover, annual allowance for Independent financial advice and voluntary health checks every two years

There have been no payments made during the year in relation to compensation tor loss of office

External appointments

The Board believes that the Group can benefit from its Executive Directors holding appropniate non-executive chirectorships of companies

or iIndependent bodies Such appoiniments are subject to the approval of the Board Fees are retained by the Executive Director concerned

Andrew Jenner served as a non-executive director of Gallford Try ple dunng the year Fees payable in the year were £40,000

No other fee-paying external positions were held by either of the Executive Directors
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Implementation Report - Summary of 2012 remuneration outcomes

The Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines the overall remuneratton policy for semior management and the ndividual remuneration of the Executive Directors
This includes base salary, bonus, long-term incentives, pensions, benefits and terms of employment (including those terms on which service
may be terminated) The Committee also determines the remuneration of the Charman

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee, a copy of which can be found on the Group's website, are reviewed annually to ensure that they remain
appropnate Detalls of the Directors’ attendance at the Committee meetings can be found in the Cerporate Governance Report on page 87

Remuneration Committee members and attendees {the Committee met eight times dunng 2012)

Remuneration Committee members Position Comments
Angie Risley Chaiman of the Remuneration Commitiee Independent
(from 14 May 2012}
Alastar Lyons Member from 10 May 2011 Independent
Dawd Richardson Member from 2 June 2003 Independent

Leonard V Broese van Groenou

Chairman of the Committee untit 14 May 2012

Retired from the Board at the conclusion of
the Company's 2012 annual general meeting
on 14 May 2012

Remuneration Committee attendees
dunng the year

Chnstopher Hyman

Position

Chief Executive

Comments

Attends by invitaticn

Andrew Jenner

Finance Director

Attends by invitabon

Geoff Uoyd

Group HR Director

Altends as an executive responsible for
adwvising on the remuneration policy

Cathy Aldwinckle/Richard Hortop

Group Head of Reward

Atlends as an executive responstble for
adwising on the remuneration policy

John Hickey

Company Secretary

Attends as the secretary 1o the Commitiee

No person ts present dunng any discussion relatng to thesr own remuneration arrangements
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Adwvisors to the Remuneration Committee

During the year the Committee has been advised by Towers Watson who were onginally appointed by the Committee in May 2008 and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {“PwC") who were appointed as independent advisers following a competitive tendenng process by the Commitiee
in August 2012 Consulting services have also been provided to the Group by the advisors in relation to retirement benefits and pay data,
accounttng and taxation services

Towers Watson and PwC prowided adwee throughout the year mainty around the following key executive reward areas

® Advice on reviewing the existing PSP

& Support in shareholder consultation process

& Benchmarking the Charman and Non-Executive Director fees

e Benchmarking Board and Executive Committee total remuneration
« Support in reviewing the DRR

* Responding to general and technical reward queres

Both Towers Watson and PwC are members of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group which oversees the voluntary code of conduct in relaton
to executive consuling in the UK Fees paid to Towers Watson as adwisers to the Committee duning the year totalled £88,017 and fees paid to
PwC as adwisers to the Commiltee totalled £212,880

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The Group's policy Is that the fees of the Charman and the Non-Executive Directors, which are determined by the Board, are set at a fevel which will
attract individuals with the necessary expenence and ability to make a substantal contribution to the Group's affars

Non-Executive Directors of the Group are intially appointed for a three-year term, and that appointment may be termunated on three months’ writien
notice No compensation or other benehits are payable on early termination The renewal of appantments 1s not automatic, Non-Executive Directors
are required to retire and stand for re-election in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code and Company's Articles of Association
From 2011 directors are also required to stand for re-election annually in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

As at 31 December 2012, the Non-Executive Directors of the Group had no personal financtal interest in the matters determined by the Board, there are

no conflicts of interest ansing from cross-directorships and no involvement in the day-to-day running of the Group The Non-Executive Directors do not
participate in the Group's incentive or pension schemes, or receive other benefits except as descrbed
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Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors' remuneration consists of cash {ees paid monthly with increments for positions of additional responsibility In addition,
reasonable travel and related business expenses are paid No bonuses are paid to Non-Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors’ fees are

not performance related

Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Group but are not subject to a shareholding requirement

The fees and terms of engagement of Non-Executive Directors are reviewed on an annual basis, taking into consideration market practice and are
approved by the Board The standard annual fees payable for the Charman and Non-Executive Directors during the financral year under review

are shown in the table below

Fees
Alastarr Lyons David Richardson Angie Risley Ralph D Malcolm
Chairman, Member Chairman of Chairman of Crosby Jr Wyman
of Nomination and Audit Commuttee, Remuneration Member of Audi,
Remuneration SID, Member of Commuttee, Nomination and
Committees Nomination and Member of Audit Remuneration
Remuneration and Nominglion Committees
Committees Commuttees
Date of 16 March 2010 2 June 2003 1 April 2011 30 June 2011 1 January 2013
appointment
to the Board
Date of letter 15 March 2010 29 May 2003 23 March 2011 30 June 2011 26 November 2012
of appointment
Base £270,00012 £50,000 £50,000 £50,000 £50,000
SID £10,000 €10 0C0
Audit Committee £12,500 £12,500
Chasrmanship
Remuneration £10,000
Committee
Charrmanship
Total fee £270,000 £72,500 £60,000 £50,000 £72,500
Comments Will retire from Assumed role of Will assume the iole
the Beard at the Charir of Remuneration of Chair of the Audit
conclusion of the Committee with effect Commuttee and SID
Company's 2013 from 14 May 2012 on reirement of
annual general Dawvid Richardson
meeting on
15 May 2013
Notes

1 Fees for the Chairman have increased from £260,000 to £270,000 with effect from 1 Apni 2013
2 Alastarr Lyons' remuneration consists of cash fees pad monthly Inaddibon reasonable travel and related business expenses are paxd No bonuses are payable

3 £5,000 15 payable for travel to international meetings
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Directors’ remuneration
This section has been audited by Deloitte LLP

Directors' remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

Total

Total Sub-total Sub-total estmated

estimated remuneration rermuneraben Single

value of excluding excluding LTIP value figure

non cash pensions pensons vesting remunerabon

Note Remuneration Fees Borus benefits  Allowance 2012 2011 n 2012 1n 2012 year

£ £ € £ € £ £ £ £

Alastar Lyons 16 Nil 257,500 NIl Nil 5000 262,500 255,000 Nil Nil

Chnstopher Hyman 2,3,4,58 744,500 Nil 812,250 2,989 319950 1,879,68% 1,916,843 632,620 2512,309

Andrew Jenner 23458 436,750 NIl 412,984 2,989 218894 1,071,617 1,089,008 324 462 1 396,079
Leonard V Broese

van Groenou 167 Nil 30,000 Nil Nil Nit 30,000 65,000 Nil Ni

Dawid Richardson 16 Nil 72 500 Nil Nil 5,000 77,500 77,500 Nil Nil

Angie Risley 1.6 Nil 56,666 Nil Nil 5,000 61,666 42,500 Nil Nil

Ralph D Crosby Jr 16 Nil 50,000 Nil Nl 25,000 75,000 45,189 Nit Nij

Total 1,181,250 466,666 1,225,234 58978 578,844 3,457,972 3,491,040 957,082 3,908,388

Notes

1 In addition, reasonable travel and related business expenses are paid bt are not subject to UK income tax

2 The value of the non cash benefils relates to private healthcare

3 The bonuses shown include performance bonuses eamed in the penod under review but not paid until the Tollowing financial year

4 Remuneration 1s shown gross of satary sacnficed under the SMART scheme See paga 99

5 The allowances include payments made in heu of pension calculated as a percentage of base safary from which he makes his own pension arrangements and does
not include the value of accrued penston under the D8 scheme - see page 99 for further details, and the prowision of a car allowance (fully inclusive of all scheme
costs including msurance and maintenance)

6 The allowance compnses payment for travel to infernational meetings

7 Leonard V Broese van Groenou retired from the Board at the conclusion of the Company's 2012 annual general meeting on 14 May 2012

8 The value of shares vested In the year based on an average market value over the last quarter of the financal year

9 Pror to the sad and untimely passing of Paul Brooks in January 2012 he recerved £4 167 in fees

Variable pay outcomes

Performance-related annual bonus

For 2012, bonus was earmed on the basis of achieving a mix of financial and non-financial objectives which were weighted B0% and 20% respechvely
Payment for target was sel at 75% of Chief Executive's base satary and at 65% of the Finance Director's base salary The maximum annual bonus
opportunity was set 150% of the Chief Executive's base salary and at 130% of the Finance Director's base salary Annual bonuses are not pensionable

Financial measures were based on Serco Group's Key Performance Indicators (KPls) and the non-financial measures were indmdually set and are
based on key strategic goals The three financial measures for 2012 were based on revenue, profit before tax and cash conversion These measures
reflect the growth and margin improvement strategies of the business The standards of performance set are designed to be stretching The non-
financial goals set for 2012 assessed performance aganst a number of strategically important cbjectives for each individual linked to key strategic
areas such as active portfolio management (with capability driven acquistions and non-core disposals) widening our exposure to emerging markets
and the secunng of key strategic contracts to deliver long-term performance as well as specific actrabes around the ongoing development and
execution of the Group's strategy

On the basis of Sercao's performance in 2012, annual awards of 108 3% and 93 9% of salary have been determined for the Chief Executive and
Finance Director respectively
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Performance-related long term incentives

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Executive Birectors can elect to defer, for three financal years, up to 50% of therr annual bonus by purchasing invested shares Under the 2010 DBFR,
50% of the matching shares were subject to EPS growth and 50% subject to relative TSR 10 2012 both the Chief Executive and the Finance Director
elected to defer 50% of ther earned bonus into the DBP

For matching awards which completed ther performance penod on 31 December 2012, achievernent aganst the measure 1s shown in the table below

2010 Performance condition Weight Achievement Resulting
DBP deferral vesting
CEOQ -50% EPS growth The range was 9% (threshold) — 50% Compound growth 79 5%
14% {maximum) For threshold performance 12 6%
FD - 50% each invested share 1s matched by half

a share nsing to a match of two shares
at maximum performance

Relative TSR For median performance each 50% Below median No shares vest
invested share 1s matched by half a share

nising to a match of two shares for upper

quartile performance

For performance between median or threshold and upper quartile of maximum, the number of matching shares will be determined on a straight
line basis

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

For the awards of nomtnal cost options that were made in April 2010, vesting was dependent on EPS growth and relative TSR measured gver a three-
year performance period Face value awards on grant were 200% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 175% for the Finance Director

For the PSP awards which completed their performance period on 31 December 2012, achievement against the measure 1s shown in the table below

2010 Performance condition Weight Achievement Resulting
PSP awards vesting
{% of salary)
CEO - 200% EPS growth The range was 9% (threshold) - 30% Compound growth 79 5%
14% (maximum) For threshold performance 12 6%
FD -175% 25% of the award vests nsing on a straght ine

basis to 100% at maximum performance

Relatwve TSR For median performance 25% 70% Below median No shares vest
of the award vests rnsing on a straight ine basis
to 100% for upper quartile performance

Variable Bay awarded during the financial year

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)
In 2012 both the Chief Executive and the Finance Director elected to defer 50% of their earned bonus Into the DBP

For matching share awards made in 2012, EPS growth was the sole performance measure Therange for the three-year performance pernod was
set at annual compound EPS growth of 5 5% at threshold to 10 5% at maximum No matching shares will vest where performance 1s below thresheld
For threshold performance, each invested share will be maiched by one matching share For maxmum level perfarmance each invested share wall
be matched (on a gross investment basis) by two shares For performance between threshold and maximum, the number of matching shares will
be deterrmined on a straight line basis

The definition of EPS is Adjusted EPS calculated in accordance with 1AS 33 *Earnings per Share” and I1s before amortisation on acquired intangibles,
acquisihion related costs and exceptional items EPS is also adjusted for any matenal acquisitions, disposals and currency movements

The Committee has discretion to vary the proportion of awards that vest under the DBP to ensure that the outcomes are fair and appropriately reflect
the underlying financial performance of the Group
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Performance Share Plan (PSP)

In 2012 the executive directors received awards equivalent 1o 200% of salary for the Chief Executive and 175% for the Finance Director

The shares will normally only vest at the end of a three-year performance period, f the Executive Directors are shillin employment with Serco and
the two performance measures have been met The measures are EPS growth and relative TSR compared 1o the companies in the FTSE 51 to 130
{exctuding investment trusts} The two measures are independent and each deterrmines the vesting of half of the award

The structure for vesting 1s the same for both measures and no shares vest where performance 1s ether below threshold {(EPS) or below median (TSR)

For threshold/median performance 25% of the award wilt vest rising on a straight ine basis to 100% for maumum/upper quanite performance

The EPS growth range was set at 5 5%-10 5%

Total pension entitiement and life assurance
Thrs section has been audited by Deloitte LLP

The Directors receive pension and Iife assurance benefits consistent with those provided by other leading companies

The details of the defined benefit schemes operated by the Group are set out In the note on pages 159 to 166 In the event of death In service,
the Serco Supplementary Death Benefit Scheme prowdes for a lump sum payment

The accrued pension benefits of all Directers under the Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme, are as follows

Increase Transter
Change Increase  mn accrued value of
Transfer Transfer Director s intransfer 10 accrued pension increase
value at value at contnbutions  value dunng pensin during the n accruat Accrued
31 December 31 December for the the year dunng year, net net of pension at
2012 2011 year (4) = the year of inflation inflation year end
{1 @ @ (-(2)-3} (%) ) g €
£ g £ £ Epa Cpa £ tpa
Chrstopher Hyman 2,158,373 2,180,757 - (22,384) 1,245 351 5,933 127, 635
Andrew Jenner 1,132,366 1,184 608 - (52,242) 2,100 - - 79,819

Notes

a  Chnstopher Hyman ceased pension accrual on 1 Apnl 2010 and Andrew Jenner on 31 December 2010, both opting to receve a cash alternative equal to 33% of base
pay {excluding bonuses) i beu of any further pension provision Executives remain entitled to lump sum and widow's pension banefits should he die before retirement

and whist employed by Serco

b The accrued pension shown 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement, were 31 December 2012 the director's Normal Retirement Date, based on pensionable

service (o the date of ceasing accrual

¢ Theincrease in the accrued pension over the year 1s shown both as a gross increase and net of statutory inflation {see fuither notes below}

d  Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Value) Regulations 1996 The assumptions used for calculating
transfer values have been reviewed by the Trustees during the year and updated to reflect changes in expectation of infiation and ife expectancy

e CPlincreased by 2 2% over the year September 2011 to September 2012, the penod used for statutory mcreases, and by 5 2% for the pnor year Statutory indexaton
restricts pre retirement increases 1o 5% pa over the penod of measurement for pension eamed pnor to 5 Apnlt 2009 and to 2 5% pa for pension earned after that date
and we have used this measure of nflation for calculating the increase In accrued pension net of inflation in (6)

f  The accrued pension for Andrew Jenner receives statutory increases and hence the increasa net of iflation 1s zero The increase in the accrued pension for Chnstopher
Hyman allows for an mcrease in line with RPI 1o a maxmum of 4% p a over the period from date of ceasing accrual fo April 2012, as agreed when he ceased accrual
Statutory increases will be receved from Apnl 2013, as agreed following recent changes in legislation

g The impact of allowing for changes In expectations of inflation and improvement in life expectancy In the transfer valug assumptions on thes own would result in higher
transfar values at the beginning and end of the year, shown 1n (4), Inciudes the effect of both changes in the transfer values assumptions and the effect of fluctuations
n the transfer value due 1o factors beyond the control of the Company and the Directors such as stock market movements

h  The transfar values disctosed do not represent the sum paid or payable to the ndmdual Director Instead they represent a potential kability of the pension scheme
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Shareholder context
The Annual General Meeting of Serco Group plc was held on 14 May 2012 In line with recommended practice, a poll was conducted on each
resolution at the meeting The results of the poll to approve the Directors' Remuneraticn Repont for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out below

For Against Withheld?
Votes % Votes % Votes
351 474,463 9372 235,472,217 628 8,299,355

1 Inctudes those votes giving the Chairman diseretion
2 A “Vole Withheld" 1s not a vole In law and 1s not counted In the calculation of the proportion of votes “For™ or “Against™ a Resolution
3 At the meeting date there were 498 248 152 ordinary shares in 1ssue

Directors’ shareholding

The Commuttee believes that employee share ownership 1s an important means to support long-term commitment to the Company and the alignment
of employee interests with those of shareholders The ownership requirement for the Execuiive Directors 1s two times base salary for the Chief Executive
and one tmes base salary for the Finance Director As shown in the table below both Direclors exceed thewr share ownership requirements

Executives are required to retain in shares 50% of the niet value of any performance shares vesting or options exercised until they satisfy the
shareholding requirement

As at 31 December 2012, the Executive Directors' share ownership against the guidelines were

Ordinary shareholding at Ordinary shareholding at

31 December 2012 {635p) 31 December 2011 (474p}
No of shares % of salary No of shares % of salary
Christopher Hyman 917,024 854% 820,197 534%
Andrew Jenner 354,831 444% 310,99 345%

The table below shows the shareholdings for the Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors at the end of 2012

Ordinary shares of 2p each

Note tully pald ot 31 December 2012 Ordsnary shares of 2p each

1 or date of cessation If earller fully paid at 1 January 2012

Alastar Lyons 15,000 15,000
Leonard V Broese van Groenou 2 5,375 5,375
Christopher Hyman 3.4 917,024 820,197
Andrew Jenner 3 364,831 310,991
Dawvid Richardson 15,000 15,000
Angie Risley 4,399 4,399

Ralph D Crosby Jr - -

Notes

1 Ordinary shares are beneficial holdings which include the Directors personal holdings and those of thew spouses and minor children

2 Leonard V Broese van Groenou relired from the Board of Serco Group ple at the conclusion of the Company's 2012 annual general meeting on 14 May 2012

3 122 990 of Chnstopher Hyman's and 65 386 of Andrew Jenner's shares are held in trust on their behalf under the terms of therr parbicipation in the Deferred Bonus Plan
Provided such shares remain in trust for three years and subject to certain performance conditions they are alsg granted an award over matching shares equvalent
to two times the gross bonus mihally used for the share purchase

4 Security has been granted to Christopher Hyman s bank over 85,564 ordinary shares held in his name

5 As at 25 March 2013 there were no changes to the Dhrector s interests
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Other Shareholding Information
The follomng pages detail other share movements and share information for 2612

The information in these tables has been audited by Deloitte LLP
Serco Group plc Deferred Bonus Plan {DBP)

Condiional nghts to receive matching shares over Serco Group plc's ordinary shares under the DBP held by Directors at 31 December 2012
were as follows

Market pnce
Awards held at at award Granted dunng Awards held at
1 January 2012 Date of award (p) the penod 31 December 2012 Performance penod Vesting date
Chnistopher Hyman 130,754 12 Jun 2009 404 - - 1 Jan 2009- 12Jun 2012
31 Dec 2011
144,666 29 Mar 2010 802 - 144,666 1 Jan 2010- 29 Mar 2013
31 Dec 2012
173,898 4 Apr 2011 551 - 173,898 1 Jan 2011- 4 Apr 2014
31 Dec 2013
- 21 May 2012 518 170,935 170,935 1 Jan 2012~ 21 May 2015
31 Dec 2014
Andrew Jenner 76,232 12 Jun 2009 404 - - 1 Jan 2009- 12 Jun 2012
31 Dec 2011
73,865 29 Mar 2010 602 - 73,865 1 Jan 2010- 29 Mar 2013
31 Dec 2012
88,033 4 Apr 2011 551 - 88,033 1 Jan 2011— 4 Apr 2014
31 Dec 2013
- 21 May 2012 518 87,010 87,010 1 Jan 2012- 21 May 2015
31 Dec 2014

Notes

1 The awards shown in the table are the maximum number of shares that can vest under the performance condions

2 The performance condittons attached to the awards are descnbed on page 100

3 The performance condiions attached to the awards that vested on 12 June 2012 achieved maximum aganst the EPS element {50%) of the award resulting in 100% vesting
and below threshold aganst the TSR element (50%) resulting in zero vesting

4 For awards which completed therr performance penod on 31 December 2012 our perfomance against the three year EPS performance measure was compound growth
of 12 6% per annum which resuited in 79 5% of the EPS element (50%) of the award vesting For the TSR element of the matching award the Group s TSR performance
relatrve 10 its comparator group was below medzan and therefore no shares under TSR element (50%) of the matching award vested

5 The aggregate of the total theoretical gains on the awards exercised by the Directors dunng 2012 amounted to £0 6 milion This is calcutated be reference to the difference
between the closing mid-market price of the shares on the date of exercise and the award pnce disregarding whether such shares were sokt or retained on exercise,
and 1s stated before tax Of the 107 281 awards exercised, 51,298 shares were retained
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Serco Group plc Performance Share Plan (PSP)
Conditional nights to Serco Group pic ordinary shares under the PSP held by Directors at 31 December 2012 were as follows

Awards Market Awards
held at price at Granted held at 31
1 January Date of award during the December Performance Eariest Latest
2012 award {P) penod 2012 penod vesting date  exercise date
Chnstopher Hyman 315,789 22 Jun 2009 408 - 98,206 1Jan 2009- 22 Jun 2012 21 Jun 2018
31 Dec 2011
213,750 6 Apr 2010 604 - 213,750 1Jan 2010 6 Apr2013 5 Apr 2020
31 Dec 2012
247,568 31 Mar 2011 566 - 247,568 1Jan 2011— 31 Mar 2014 30 Mar 2021
31 Dec 2013
- 8Jun2012 535 272,148 272,149 1Jan2012- 8Jun2015 7 Jun 2022
31 Dec 2014
Andrew Jenner 162,790 22 Jun 2009 408 - 50,624 1Jan 2009— 22Jun 2012 21 Jun 2019
31 Dec 2011
110,180 6 Apr2010 604 - 110,190 1Jan2010- 6 Apr2013 5 Apr2020
31 Dec 2012
127,652 31 Mar 2011 566 - 127,652 1Jan 2011- 31 Mar 2014 30 Mar 2021
31 Dec 2013
- BJun2012 535 139,672 139,672 1Jdan2012- 8Jun2015  7.Jun 2022
31 Dec 2014

Motes

1 Awards take the form of nominal cost options

2 Awards made are calculated at a face value on grant of 200% and 175% of base salary for the Chief Executve and Finance Director respectively

3 The performance conditions attached to the awards are described in the Policy Report on page 100

4 The performance conditiens attached to the awards that vested on 22 June 2012 achieved maximum agansl the EPS elemant {30%) of the award resulung in 100% vesting
and below threshold aganst the TSR element (70%) resulting in zero vesting

5 On 31 December 2012 the performance conditions attached to the awards made on 6 Apnl 2010 were satsfed Our performance agamst the three-year EPS performance
measure was compound growth of 12 6% per annum which resulted in 79 5% of the EPS element (30%) of the award vesting For the TSR element of the matching award,
the Group's TSR performance relative to its comparator group was below median and therefore no shares under TSR element (70%) of the matching award vested

Serco Group plc 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)
The LTIP has been replaced by the PSP The condittonal nghts to Serco Group plc ordinary shares under the LTIP held by Directors at 31 December 2012
were as follows

Awards Market Market Awards
held at price at Vested price on held at 31
1 January Date of grant during the vesting Daecember Pertormance Earhest Latest
2012 award (s} penod {p) 2012 penod vesting date  exercise daie
Christopher Hyman 84,500 12 Nov 2007 456 -~ 556 84,500 1 Jan 2008~ 31 Dec 2010 11 Nov 2017
31 Dec 2010
Andrew Jenner 52,098 12 Nov 2007 456 - 556 52,058 1 Jan 2008—- 31 Dec 2010 11 Nov 2017
31 Dec 2010

Notes

1 Awards take the form of nominal cost options

2 Awards made are calculated at 100% of salary at the ime of grant

3 The TSR performance condition 1s measured relative 1o the top 250 companies in the FTSE  as ranked by market capitalisation excluding those i certain sectors which
are not comparable with the Group

4 No awards were granted exercised or Japsed dunng the penad

5 The last award under the LTIP was made in Nevember 2007
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Serco Group plc 1998 and 2005 Executive Option Plan (EOF)
Cptions over Serco Group plc ordinary shares granted under the EOP and held by Directors at 31 December 2012 were as follows

Awards Awards
held at Exercised held at Market price Date from
1 January dunng the 31 December onN exercse Exercise which Drate of expiry
2012 penod 2012 date (p) price (p) exercisable of options
Chnistopher Hyman ~ 116,373* 116,373 - 520 264 3 May 2005 2 May 2012
289 515 - 289,515 - 153 6 May 2006 5 May 2013
219,320* - 218,320 - 217 3 Mar 2007 2 Mar 2014
183,404 - 183,404 - 235 29 Apr 2008 28 Apr 2015
147,492 - 147,492 - 339 5 May 2008 4 May 2016
120,798 - 120,798 - 439 19 Mar 2010 18 Mar 2017
123,076 - 123,076 - 455 27 Feb 2011 26 Feb 2018
Andrew Jenner 69,824* 69,824 - 520 264 3 May 2008 2 May 2012
173,709 - 173,709 - 153 6 May 2006 5 May 2013
133,178* - 133,178 - 217 3 Mar 2007 2 Mar 2014
116,885 - 116,885 - 235 29 Apr 2008 28 Apr 2015
88,495 - 88,495 - 339 5 May 2009 4 May 2016
74,530 - 74,530 - 439 19 Mar 2010 18 Mar 2017
75824 - 75,824 - 455 27 Fab 2011 26 Feb 2018

Notes

1 The final award to Executve Dhrectors under this plan was made in February 2008

2 The awards shown i the table are the maximum number of shares that can vest under the performance conditions

3 The extent to wihuch an award will vest 1s measured by reference 10 the Group s Eammgs Per Share {EPS) performancea refatve ta the Retal Prce Index (RPL) over the
three-year performanca penod Full details of the vesting schedule for these awards can be found in previous reports

4 Far those oplions marked with an (*) approumatety 14 67% of the options granted under the Plan represent supplememary options granted for the sole purpose of
compensating participants for agreeing to bear the Company's llability to employers’ National Insurance Contnbutions upon the exercise of the underlying Plan awards
Thase options can only be axercised n conjunction with and 1o the extent of the underhing option

5 No payment was matde for the grant of the awards

6 Grants of options under the EOP are calcutated at 100% of salary at the ttme of grant

7 The market pnce of the Company’s ordinary shares at the close of business on 31 December 2012 was 535p and the range duning the year 1o 31 December 2012
was 483 2p 1o 602p

8 No grants were made dunng the year

2 The aggregate of the total theoretical gains on aptions exercised by Directors dunng 2012 amounted to £0 5 mililon  Thus 15 calculated by reference to the difference
between the closing mid-market price of the shares on the date of exercise and the exercise price of the options, disregarding whather such shares were sold or
retamned on exercise, and 15 stated before tax Of the 186,197 options exercised, 148,303 were sold and 37 894 were retaned
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Remuneration Report

Five-year total shareholder returns

The chart shows the value, as at 31 December 2012, of a £100 investment in Serco share on 31 December 2007, compared with £100 invested in
the FTSE 100 on the same date It has been assumed that all dividends paid have been renvested The TSR level shown at 31 December each year
1s the average of the closing daily TSR levels for the 30-day period up te and including that date

Total shareholder returns (£)
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Share dilution

Awards granted under the Serco Group plc share plans are met either by the 1ssue of new shares or by shares held in trust when awards vest

The Committee monitors the number of shares issued under its vanious share plans and ther impact on dilution limits The relevant dilution limits
established by the Association of Brtish Insurers in respect of all share plans 1s 10% in any rolling ten year period and in respect of discretionary share
plans 1s 5% in any roling ten-year period Based on the Company's 1ssued share capital at 31 December 2012, our dilution level was 6 67% against

all share plans and 4 38% against discretionary share plans

The Group has an employee share ownership trust which 1s administered by an independent tustee and which holds ordinary shares in the Company
to meet vanous obligations under the share plans In July 2012 aloan of £16 million was made to the Employee Trust in order to finance the purchase
of shares to satisfy the ongoing liabilities under the Company's employee shaie plans

The Trust heid 8,267,992 and 10,174,594 ordinary shares at 1 January 2012 and 31 Decemnber 2012 respectively

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

J-5

John Hickey
Secretary
4 March 2013
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Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the Group Financial Statements of Serco Group ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprnise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Staiement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity the Consolidated Balance Sheet
the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 40 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Thig report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work
has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responstbilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group Financial Statements
and for being satished that they give a true and fair view Our responsibiiity 1s to audit and express an apinion on the Group Financial Statements in
accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient lo give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
pohcies are appropriate 1o the Group’s crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Direclors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financral information in the annual report to identify material Inconsistencies with the audited tinancial statements |If we become aware of any apparent
material russtatements or nconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Oplinion on the Group Financial Statements
In aur opivon the Group Financial Statements

& give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's affarrs as at 31 Decemnber 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended,
® have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
e have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2008 |
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with |
the Group Financial Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required 1o report to you 1if, In our opinion

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
& we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

@ the Directors' statement contained within the Corporate Governance Report in relation to going concern, and |

e the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance |
Code specitied for our review, and

o certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Other matter
We have reporied separately on the parent Company Financial Statements of Serco Group ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 and on the
information in the Directors' Remuneration Report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

AL ek LA:-,LJEL
—_—

Richard Knights (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delotte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audior
tondon, United Kingdom

4 March 2013
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Section 5 | Financial statements

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

2012
Before
exceptional Exceptlonal
Items items Total 2011
Note £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 49130 - 4,913 0 4 646 4
Cost of sales {4,169 5) - {4,169 5) (3.846 Q)
Gross profit 7435 - 7435 700 4
Administrative expenses (428 7) - (428 7) {410 3}
Adjusted operating profit 3148 - 3148 2901
Other expenses — amortisation of Intangibles ansing on acguisition (241) - (24 1) (200}
Other expenses — acquisition-related costs 37 - {(37) (39}
Exceptional net prefit on disposal of subsidiaries and operations 18 - 56 56 -
Exceptional denation to Serco Foundation 8 - {50) {(50) -
Operating profit 2870 06 2876 2662
Investment revenue 9 124 - 124 122
Exceptional other gain 10 - 511 511 -
Finance costs 11 {491) - (491) (40 1}
Profit before tax 2503 517 3020 2383
Tax 12 (626) 85 (56 1) (63 1)
Profit for the year 1877 58 2 2459 1752
Attnbutable to
Equity owners of the Company 1871 58 2 2453 1751
Non-controlling interest [1]:] - 06 01
Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS 14 38 09p 11 85p 49 94p 35 70p
Dhluted EPS 14 37 21p 11 57p 48 78p 3508p
Adjusted operating profit is stated before net profi on disposals of subsidianes and operations, the exceptional donation to the Serco Foundation,
amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisitions and acqursition-related costs
L) ]
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December
2012 201
Note £m £m
Profit for the year 2459 1752
Other comprehensive income for the year
Net actuanal loss on defined benefit pension schemes! 30 (201 2) (51 0)
Actuanial gain on retmbursable nghts? 30 1102 1165
Net exchange loss on translation of foreign operations? (17 9) (22}
Farr value loss on cash flow hedges dunng the year? (55) (35 7)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income?® 12 299 (59)
Recycling of cumulatve hedging and translation reserve? - 63
Total comprehensive income for the year 1614 1972
Attrbutable to
Equity owners of the Company 1608 1971
06 01

Non-controlling interest

1 Recorded in retirement benefit abligaticns resarve (n the consolidated statemen of changes in equity

2 Recorded in hedging and transiation reserve i the consolidated statement of changes 0 equity

3 Of the tax charge a credit of £25 4m {2011 debit of £14 7m) was recorded i the retirement benefit abligations reserve and a credit of £4 5m (2011 £8 8m) was recorded

in the hedging and translation reserve
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December

Retirament Share- Hedging
Share Capltal benefit based Own and Non-
Share promlum redemption  Retalned obligations  payment shares transliation Total controlling
capital account reserve  earnings raserve reserve reserve reserve equity interest
£m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 99 3067 01 568 5 {142 8) 587 {27 5) 677 8413 -
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 1751 508 - - (28 8) 1971 01
Shares transferred to
option holders on
exercise of share options - 160 - - - (20} 33 - 173 -
Dwmdends paid - - - {37 3) - - - - (37 3) {01)
Expense in relation to
share-based payments - - - - - 112 - _ 112 -
Tax credit n relation to
share-based paymenis - - - - - (18 - — (18 -
Purchase of own shares
for Employee Share
Ownership Trust (ESOT) - - - - - - (24 0) - (240 -
At 1 January 2012 9% 3227 01 708 3 (92 0) 661 (48 2} 389 10038 -
Total comprehensive
mncome for the year - - - 2453 (65 6) - - (18 9) 1608 06
Shares transferred to
option holders on exercise
of share oplions 01 as - - - (3 8) 54 - 57 -
Dividends paid - - - (419} - - - - (41 9) 04)
Expense in relation to
share-based payments - - - - - 12.1 - - 121 -
Tax charge in relation
to share-based payments - - - - - 31 - - 31 -
Purchase of own shares
for Employee Share
Ownership Trust (ESOT) - - - - - - (16 0} - (18 0) -
Change in non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - 11
At 31 December 2012 100 3265 01 95097 (157.6) w7 {58 8) 200 11276 13
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31 December

2012 2011
Note £m €m
Non-current asseis
Goodwill 15 1,3123 1,2590
Other intangible assets 16 2269 184 9
Property, plant and equipment 19 190 6 194 8
Trade and other receivables 22 2605 2619
Retirement benefit assets 30 697 1223
Deferred tax assets 26 433 282
Denvative financial instruments 29 01 20
2,103 4 20531
Current assets
Inventones 21 644 588
Trade and other recervables 22 856 1 7986
Current tax assets 210 a2
Cash and cash equivalents 24 198 6 254 8
Denvative financial instruments 29 36 76
1,143 7 1,1290
Total assets 3,247 1 31821
Current liabilitles
Trade and other payables 28 {883 1) (804 2)
Current tax habiliies {14 0) (17 8)
Obligatons under finance leases 27 {(108) (103)
Prowvisions 3 (11 5) {10 4)
Loans 25 {64 6) (206 6}
Dervative financial instruments 29 (138) {12 3}
(997 8) {1,061 86)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and cother payables 28 (42 5) (61 4}
Obligatons under finance leases 27 (40 0) (35 6)
Loans 25 (665 1) (636 2)
Denvative financial instruments 29 (24 5) (26 3)
Retirement beneiit obligations 30 (271 0) (278 1)
Provisions 3 (46 2) (56 2)
Deferred tax habllies 26 (311) (22 3)
(1,120 4) (1,116 7}
Total llabilities (2,1182) (2,178 3)
Net assots 1,128 9 1,0038
Equity
Share capital 32 100 99
Share premium account 33 3265 3227
Capital redemption reserve 01 01
Retained earrungs 9097 706 3
Retirernent benefit obligations reserve 34 (157 6) 920
Share-based payment reserve 34 777 661
Own shares reserve 34 {68 B) (48 2)
Hedging and translation reserve 34 200 3889
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,127 6 1,0038
Non-controlling interest 13 -
1,1289 10038

Total equity

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2013 and signed en its behalf by

A frt-

Chnstopher Hyman Andrew Jenner
Chief Executive Finance Director
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Consolidated Cosh Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Note £m £m
Net cash Inflow from operating activitlos before special pension contribution 303 4 25670
Special contnbution 1o detined benefit pension schemes - {40 0)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 35 3034 2170
Investing activities
Interest received 31 34
Increase in securnty deposits - B2
Proceeds from disposat of property, plant and equipment 210 92
Proceeds from disposal of ntangible assets 01 -~
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes and operations 18 1310 -
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired (excluding acquisition-related costs} 17 (1M1 8) 8253
Purchase of other intangible assets (49 9} (352)
Purchase of property plant and equipment (52 7} (497}
Net cash outfiow from Investing actlvities (89 2) (405 8)
Financing activities
Interest paid (47 3) (35 8)
Dividends paid 13 {41 9) (37 3)
Non-controlling interest dividends paid (0 4) Q1)
Cash inflow from matured denvative financial instruments - 49
Repayment of loans (366 6) (559 8)
Repayment of non recourse loans .7 {79
New loan advances 2168 8184
Capital element of inance lease repayments (29) {107)
Purchase of own shares for Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) (16 0} {24 0)
Proceeds from tssue of share capital and exercise of share options 57 173
Net cash (outflow)/Inflow from financing activitios (261 4) 1650
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (47 2) {23 8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2548 2793
Net exchange loss (90} o7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 198 6 2548
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I General information

Serco Group plc {the Group) I1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office
1s Serco House, 16 Bartley Wood Business Park, Bartley Way, Hook, Hampshire, RG27 gUY

These consolidated financial statements (the financial statements) are presented in pounds Sterling because this 1s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates Foreign cperations are included in accordance with the policies set out In note 2

2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
These financial statements on pages 116 to 176 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) adopted
for use in the European Union and therefore the Group hinancial statements comply with Aricle 4 of the EU IAS regulation

The financtal statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial Instruments The following pnncipal
accounting policies adopted have been apphed consistently in the current and preceding financial year except as stated below

As discussed in more detail n the Finance Review, these financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis

Adoption of new and revised Standards
The following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted in the current year Ther adoption has not had any significant impact
on the amounis reported in these financial staternents but may impact the accounting for future transactions and arrangements

IFRS 1 {amended} Severe Hypennflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-hime Adopters

The amendments provide guidance for entities prepanng financial statements in accordance with IFRS after a period when therr functional currency was
subject to severe hypennflalion They also remove references to a fixed transition date to eliminate the need for companies adopting IFRSs for the first
time after 1 January 2004 to restate derecognition transactions that occurred before the date of transition to IFRSs

IFRS 7 (amended) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets
These amendments are intended to provide greater transparency around nsk exposures of ransactions where a financial asset 1s transferred but the

transferor retains some leve! of continuing exposure (referred to as ‘continuing Involvement’) it the asset

IAS 12 {amended) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets
The amendment provides a practical solution to the problem by introducing a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount will normally be
through sale

|AS 1 (amended) Presentation of tems in Other Comprehenswe Income
This amendment increases the required leve! of disclosure within the statement of comprehensive income

Improvements to IFRSs 2011
Aside from those items already 1dentified above, the amendments made to standards under the 2011 improvements of IFRS have had no impact

on the Group

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company, entities controlled by the Company (its subsidianes) and
entites jointly controlied by the Company (s joint ventures) up to 31 December each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtan benefits from its actvities

The results of subsidianes and joint ventures acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as approprate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianies and jont ventures to bring accounting poheies into ine with those
used by the Group

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elimmated on consohidation

Non-controling interests represent the portion of profit or ioss and net assels n subsidianes thatis not held by the Group and 1s presented within equity
n the consolidated balance sheet, separalely from parent shareholders’ equity
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition methed The consideration for each acquisiion 1s measured at the
aggregate of the tarr values at the date of exchange, of assets given, habilities incurred or assumed, and eguily Instruments issued by the Group In
exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisihion-related costs are recogrised in profit or loss as incurred

Where apphcable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or labihity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
atts acquision date far value Subsequent changes In fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement
penod adjustments (which 1s subject 1o a maximum of one year} All ather subseqguent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classihed
as an assel or hability are accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting standards Changes in the far value of contingent consideration
classified as equity are not recognised

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabiities and contingent liabiliies that meet the condions for recogrition under IFRS 3 (2008) Business
Combinattons are recognised at therr fair value at the acquisition date exceplt where a different treatment 1s mandated by another standard

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recogrised as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired Goodwill 1s measwred as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred the amount of any non-controlling interest and the far value of any previously held equity interest in the acquired enlity
over the net of the acquisihon date amounts of the \dentifiable assets and labilives acquired

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net farr value of the acquiree's identiftable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest and the far value of any previcusiy held equity interest In the acquired enuity, the excess is recogrised
immediately in the income statement

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquision over the Group's interest In the fair value of the identifiable assets
and habilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, at the date of acquisition Goodwill is imibally recogrised as an asset at cost and 1s
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 15 reviewed for impawment at
least annually Any imparrment is recogmised immediately in profit or loss and 1S not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of imparrment testing, goodwallis allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination CGUSs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 1s an
indication that the unit may be imparred |f the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the imparrment 10ss 1S
allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit An imparrment loss recognised for goodwill I1s not reversed in a subsequent penod

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jaintly controlled entity, the atinibutable amount of goodwall 15 Included in the determinabion of the profit or loss
on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested for
impairment at that date ‘Goodwill wnitten off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Investments in joint ventures

The Group's investments in joint ventures are reported in the financial statements using the proportionate consolidation method whereby the Group's
share of each of the assets, habilities, Income and expenses of its joint ventures 1s combined ing by line with similar items i the Group's financial
statements or reported as separate {ine items within the Group's financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Sigruficant accounting policies {continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Assets held tor use in the rendenng of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumutated depreciation
and any prowvision for imparment

Depreciation i1s provided on a straight-ine basis at rates designed to reduce the assets to ther residual value over therr estimated useful lives

The principal annual rates used are

Freehold buildings 25%

Short-leaseheld bullding improvements The lugher of 10% or the rate produced by the lease term
Machinery 16%—20%

Motor vehicles 10%-50%

Furniture 10%

Otfice equipment 20%-33%

Leased equipment The higher of the rate produced by the lease term or useful life

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirernent of an asset i1s determined as the citterence between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and 1s recognised in the Income statement

Assets are grouped into classes of similar nature and use and separately disclosed except where this 1s not material

Other intangible assets
Customer relationships represent the value of contracts acquired on the acquisition of subsidianes and are amoriised over the average length of the

related contracts

Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an intangible asset only if all of the following condtions are met

@ an assel s created that can be separately identified, and which the Group intends to use o sell,

# the finalisation of the asset is technically feasible and the Group has adequate resources to complete its development tor use or sale,
® It 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

& the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Purchased software and development expenditure 1s amortised over the penod in which the Group 15 expected to benefit This penod 1s between three
to eight years, or the length of the contract if longer Provision is atso made for any imparment All other development expenditure is written off as
incurred Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated

Ucences comprise premiums paid for the acquisition of licences which are amortised on a straight-ing basis over the life of the licence

Franchises represent costs incurred in obtaining franchise nghts and franchise goodwill ansing on the acquisition of franchises These are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the life of the franchise

Pension related intangibles represent assets arnising tn relation to the Group’s nght to manage and operate contracts where there 1s a defined benefit
pension scheme and 1t 1s not virtually certain that contributions will be recovered from the customer but where the Group’s obligation to contribute to the
scheme ends when the contract ends The intangible assets represent the Group's share of scheme net habiities on the date that contracts commence
and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over the hfe of the contract

Assets are grouped nto classes of similar nature and use and separately disclosed except where this is not material
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2 Significant accounling policies {continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Annually, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and Intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets
have suffered an imparment loss If any such indication exisis, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated In order to determine the extent of the
imparment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs A CGU ts the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets or groups of assets For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill acquired in a business
combination 1s allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinahon

Recaoverable amount 1s defined as the hugher of farr value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assel for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrang amount of the asset (or CGL) 1s reduced
to its recoverable amount An impairment l0ss 1s recognised as an expense immediately imparment losses recogmsed in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit {group of units) on a pro rata basis

Anaimpaiment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed In respect of other assets imparment losses recognised in prior penods are assessed

at each reporting date for indications that the toss has decreased or no longer exists Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGL) 1s increased to the revised estimale of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecaation or amortisation, had no imparment loss been recognised for the
asset (or CGU) in prior years A reversal of an mpairment loss is recognised as income immechately

Impairment losses and reversals are included within administrative expenses within the consolidated income statement

Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received or recewvable and represents amounts due for goods and semices provided in the
normal course of business net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes

Revenue ts deferred when the Group has received consideration under the terms of a contract in advance of performing the related service or
delivening the associated goods Deferred revenue is recognised as revenue i the income statement when the Group has fulhiled the relevant
contractual commitment

Revenue recognition repeat service-based contracts
Revenue on repeat service-based contracts 1s recognised as services are provided

Revenue recognitlon long-term project-based contracts

The Group has a number of long-term contracts for the prowision of complex, project-based sermces Where the outcomne of such long-term

project-based contracts can be measured reliably, revenue and costs are recogrnised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
actmaty at the balance sheet date in accordance with |IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts This 1s measured by the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date compared to the estmated total contract costs

Vanations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agieed with the customer, or are virtually
certain of being received

Where the cutcome of a long-term project-based contract cannot be estmated reliably, contract revenue i1s recognised to the extent of contract costs
that are probable to be recovered Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue the expected loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately

Revenue recognition other
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and titte has passed

Interest mncome I1s accrued on a ime basis, by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount

Dmdend income from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to receive payment have been established
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continuved)

Bid costs and phase-in costs

All o costs are expensed through the income statement up to the pomnt where contract award (or full recovery of costs) 1s virtually certan Bid costs
ncurred after this point are then capnalised within trade and other receivables On contract award these bid costs are amaortised through the income
statement over the contract penod by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date Bid costs are only
capitalised to the extent that it 1s expected that the related contract will generate sufficient fulure economic benefits to at least offset the
amortisation charge

Phase-n costs directly related to phase-in programmes of contracts are trealed as an integral part of contract costs and are recognised on
a straight-ine basis over the IHe of the cantract except where they are specifically reimbursed as part of the terms of the contract when they are
recognised as revenue

Segmental information
Segmental information 1s based on internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Group’s Chief Cperating Decision

Maker m order to allocate resources o the segments and to assess therr performance

Segmental revenue 1s analysed on an external basts Inter-segment revenue i1s not presented as 1t 1s not significant in the context of revenue as a whole
Net finance costs are not presented for each operating segment as they are reviewed on a consolidated basis by the Group's Chief Operating
Decision Maker

Items excluded from segmental results comprise corporate expenses Specific corporate expenses are allocated to the corresponding segments
Segment assets compnse goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventories trade and other recevables {excluding
corporation tax recoverable) and any retirement benefit assets Segment iabiities compnse trade and other payables and retirement benefit obligations

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value and compnse service spares, parts awating installation and long-term project-based
contract balances Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs that have been incurred in bringtng the iInventones to their

present location and condition

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the iessee

All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assels held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at far value or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments
determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding hability 1o the lessor 15 ncluded in the balance sheel as a finance lease obligation
Lease payments are apporiioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligalion so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaning balance of the liability Finance charges are charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to a qualifying asset

n which case they are capitased in accordance with the Group's general policy on barrowing costs (see below)

Total rentals payable under aperating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Forelgn currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange on the dales of the transactions At each balance sheet date,
monetary assets and habilittes that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denomenated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing on the date
when the farr value was determined Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in the net profit or loss for the pencd, except for exchange
differences ansing on non-monetary assels and habilires where the changes in far value are recogmsed drrectly in equity in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive ncome (SOCI)

On consolidation, the assets and habilities of the Group's overseas operalions are translated al exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod Exchange differences ansing, if any, are recognised directly
within equity In the Group's hedging and translation reserve Such translation differences are recognised as income or expenses in the perod in which
the operation is disposed of

Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquistion of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilibes of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarly take a

substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for ther intended use or sale

All other borrowing costs are recogrised as an expense n the penod in which they are incurred
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2 Significont accounting policies {continued)

Retiremont benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined beneiit penston schemes, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the projected unit credt actuanal cost method, with actuanal
valuations being carned out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recogrised in full in the penod in which they occur They are
recogrised outside the income statement and are presented in the SQCI

The current service cost represents the increase 1n the present value of the scheme liabiliies expected 16 anse from employee service In the
current penod

Past service cost 1s recogmnised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and 1s amortised on a straight-ine basis over the average
period untl the beneft vests Gains and losses on curtailments or settlements are recognsed in the penaod in which the curtailment or
setilement occurs

The retrement benefit cbligation recogrised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit cbiigation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service costs, and as reduced by the far value of scheme assets Any asset resulting fromthis calculaton 1s meted to past service
cost, plus the present value of avallabte refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the scheme

The economic benefd from refunds 1s only recognised to the extent that the Group has an unconditonal nght to receve a refund

To the extent that an economic benefit 1s available as a reduction in contnibutions and there 1s a mimmum funding requirement, the economic benefit
avallable as a reduction in contributions 1s calculaled at the present value of

a) the estimated {uture service cost in each year less

D) the estimated minimum funding contnbutions required In respect of the future accrual and benefits in that year

Defined benefit obligations ansing frem contractual obligations

Where the Group takes on a contract and assumes the cbligation te contribute vanable amounts to the defined benefit pension scheme throughout the
period of the contract and 1t 15 not wrtually certain that the contributions will be recovered from the customer, the Group's share of the defined benefit
obhgation less its share of the penston scheme assets that it will fund over the penod of the contract 1s recogmised as a hability at the start of the
contract with a corresponding amount being recegrised as an intangible asset The intangible asset, which reflects the Group's nght to manage and
operaia the contract, 1s amortrsed over the contract pencd The Group's share of the scheme assets and habiities 1s calculated by reducing the scheme
assets and habilities by a franchuse adjustment The franchise adjustment represents the amount of scheme deficits that will be funded outside the
contract penod Subsequent actuanal gains and losses in refation to the Group's share of penston obligations are recognised outside the income
statement and are presented in the SOCI

Where the Group takes on a contract and assumes the obligation to contnbute variable amounts to the defined benefit pension scheme throughout
the penod of the contract and it 1s virtually certain that the contnbutions will be recovered from the customer, the Group's share of the defined benefit
obligation less its share of the pension scheme assets are recogrised as a hability at the start of the contract with a corresponding amount being
recognised as a financial asset at far value, being the far value of the rembursable nghts In the consolidated income statement, the expense relating
to the defined benefit scheme 1s presented net of the amount recognised for rembursement Subsequent actuanal gans and losses in relation to the
Group's share of pensron obhgations are recognised outside the income statement and are presented n the SOCI The change in farr value of the
reimbursable nghts that 1s not presented In the income statement 1s reported 10 the $SOCI

Mult-employer pension schemes
Multi-employer penston schemes are classified as either a defined contnbution pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme under the terms
of the scheme

When sufficient information is not available to use dehned benefit accounting for a mult-employer defined benefit penston scheme the Group accounts
for the scheme as if It were a defined contnbution scheme
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2 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax expense and deferred tax expense

Current tax expense 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t excludes
items of income or expense that are taxabte or deductible in olher years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductuible The Group's
habihity for current taxs calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s prowded, using the liabiity method, on iemporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and ther carmpng amounts for accounting purposes

Deferred tax habiliies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Delerred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available
against which these items can be utilsed

Deferred tax assets and habilities are not recognised If the temporary difference anises from goodwaill or from the mihal recognition of an asset and
hability 1n a transaction ather than a business combination and, at the time of the transacton, affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabiities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences ansing on nvestments in subsiianes and joint ventures, except where the
Group I1s able to contral the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be utihsed

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the penod when the liabiity I1s settled or the asset Is realised, based upon tax
rates and legisiahon that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s charged or credited in the income
statement except where it relates to items charged or credited direcily to equity, in whuch case the deferred tax 1s also recognised in equity

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght te set off current tax assets agamst current tax labiihes and when
they refate to ncome taxes levied by the same tax authority where the Group intends to settle its current fax assets and habilihes on a net basis

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which t1s incurred  Development costs are expensed m the penod in which the
costs are incurred unless the entena for capitahisation 1s met (see other ntangible assets pohcy)

Share-based payment

The Group makes equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees and operates an HMRC approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option
scheme open to ehgible employees which allows the purchase of shares at a discount These are measured at farr value at the date of grant The far
value 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pertod, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest SAYE options are
freated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme, resuling in an acceleratron of the remainder of the related expense

Where the fair value of share options requires the use of a valuation model, {ar value 1s measured by use of the Binomial [ attice or Monte Carlo
Simulation models depending on the type of scheme, as set out In note 37 The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on
management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations Where relevani, the value
of the option has also been adjusted to fake account of market condiions applicable to the option

Trade recelvables

Trade receivabies are recaognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectrve interest method, less prowvision
for impairment A prowsion for impairment of tracle recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the contract Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that a trade recevable 1s impaired The
amount of the prowision s based on management's best estimate of the recoverable amount The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the
use of an allowance for doubtful debts and the amount of the loss 1s recognised in the Income statement within admimistrative expenses When a trade
receivable 1s uncollectible, it 15 written oft against the allowance for doubtful debts Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand and balances with banks and similar instituticns, which are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to nsignificant changes in value and have a matunty of three manths or less from the date of acquisihon This defiriion
15 also used for the consolidated cash flow statement

Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the peniod in which they are declared, appropnaltely authorsed and no
longer at the discretion of the Company
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Loans

Loans are initially stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of 1ssue costs The carrying amount of loans hedged by denvatives 1s
increased by the finance cost In respect of the accounting penod and reduced by payments made in the penod Loans which are unhedged are
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Accrued interest 1s recorded separately from the associated borrowings within
current liabihties

Loans are descnbed as non recourse foans and dlassified as such only If no Group company other than the relevani borrower has an cbligation,
under a guarantee or other arrangement, to repay the debt

Derivative financlal Instruments and hedging activities

The Group enters into a variety of denvative financial instruments to manage the exposure to interest rate foreign exchange nsk and price nsk,
tncluding currency swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity future contracts Further details of dervative
financial Instruments are given In note 29

Dervatives are inthally recognised at fair value at the date a dernvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to ther fair value
at each balance sheet date A denvative with a positive farr value 1s recogrised as a financial asset whereas a dervative with a negative far value is ;
recognised as a inancial hability The resuthing gain or loss 1s recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative 1s designated and effective !
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recogmition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relatonshup The Group

designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recogrused assets or labilities or firm commitments {fair value hedges), hedges

of lighly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency nisk of firrm cemmitments {cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments

n foreign operations

A denvative 1$ presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaiming matunty of the instrument 1s more than 12 months and it
1S not expected to be realised or settled wathin 12 months Other derivatives are presented as curent assets of current liabiitres

Embedded dervatives
Denvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their nisks and charactenstics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and these are not measured at far value through profit or loss

Hadge accounting

The Group designates certamn hedging instruments, which include denvatives, embedded dernvatives and non-dervatives in respect of foreign
exchange nsk, as either tar value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net Investments in foreign operations Hedges of foreign exchange
nsk on highly probable forecast transactions and firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges

At the Inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationshtp between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its
nsk management objectives and its strategy lor undertaking vanious hedge transactions Furthermore, at the Inception of the hedge and oh an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that i1s used i a hedging relationship 1s hughly effective in offsetting changes in far values
or cash flows of the hedged item

Details of the farr values of the dernvative iInstruments used for hedging purposes and movements In the hedging and translation reserve in equity are
detailed in the SOCI and descnbed in note 29

Fair value hedges

Changes in the farr value of derwatives that are designated and qualify as far value hedges are recorded n profit or loss immediately, together wath
any changes in the tar value of the hedged item that 1s attnbutable to the hedged nsk The change in the far value of the hedging instrument and the
change in the hedged item attributable 1o the hedged risk are recogrised in the ine of the income statement relating to the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised,
or noe longer qualifies for hedge accounting The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged itern ansing from the hedged nsk 1s amortised to
profit or loss from that date

Cash flow hedges
The effective porhion of changes in the farr value of dervatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity The gain
or loss relating to the inefiective portion 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

Amounts deferred in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the penods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line of the income
statement as the recognised hedged tem However, when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results inthe recogmuion of a non-financial asset
or a non-financial habilty, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the inihal measurement of the
cost of the non-financial asset or non-inancial lability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or 1s soid, terminated, exercised,
or no longer qualiftes for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that trme remains in equity and 1s recognised when the
forecast transaction 1s ulimately recognised in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1s no fonger expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity 1s recognised immedhately in profit or loss
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2 Significont accounting policies {continued)

Hedges of net investments i foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging nstrument relating
to the effective poartion of the hedge Is recognised in equity and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserve The gain or loss relating to the
neffective portion 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss and s included in the ‘net exchange gainfioss on translation of foreign operations’

hne item

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency translabien reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss in the same way as exchange differences relating to the foreign operations

Net Investments in foreign operations
Exchange differences ansing on monetary items that form part of the Group's net investment in foreign operations are inihally recogrised in equity
and accumutated in the hedging and translation reserve and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on dispesal of the net investrent

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obhgation Prowisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the obhigation at the balance
sheet date

New standards and interpretations not applied
At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and interprelations which have not been apphed in these financial
statemnents were 1IN 1ssue but not yet effecuve (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

o IFRS 1 {amended) Government loans
e IFRS 7 {amended) Duisclosures — Ofisetting Financtal Assets and Financiat Liabiliies

e IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

® IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

o IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

e IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
e IFRS 13 Faur Value Measurement

& IAS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits

® IAS 27 (revised) Separate Financial Statements

@ IAS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

¢ IAS 32 (amended) Offseting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

& Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures (Amendments to IFRS 8 and IFRS 7)
® Annual Improvements 2009-2011

The Drrectors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a matenal impact on the Group’s financial statements
n the period of mtial application except as follows

o IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments,

@ IFRS 11 will require the Group to change from proportionate consohdation of joint arrangements and adopt equity accounting A restatement of the
2012 results for these changes reduces statutory reported revenue by £852 9m and profit before tax by £15 1m There 1s no impact on post tax
profits, earnings per share, or net assets from this change,

@ IFRS 13 will impact the measurement of fair value for certain assets and habilities as well as ihe associated disclosures, and

@ |AS 19 {revised) will impacl the measurement of the varnous components representing movements in the defined benefit obligation and associated
disclosures, but not the Group's total ocbhgation [t is likely that following the replacement of expected returns on plan assets with a net finance cost
in the iIncome statement, the profit for the penod will be reduced and accordingly other comprehensive income increased

Beyond the information above, It 1$ not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards and interpretations untl a detailed
review has been completed
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3 Critical accounting judgements ond key sources of estimotion uncertainty

Critical judgements In applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2 above, management has made the following judgements
that have the most significant efiect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart from those involving estimations which are dealt
with below)

Revenue and profit recognition of long-tarm project-based contracts
Revenue and profit 1s recogrised tor certan long-term project-based contracts based on the stage of completion of the contract activity This 1s
measured by the proportion of costs incurred to estmated whole-ife contract costs

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concermning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are discussed below

Impairment of goodw:ll

Determining whether goodwill 1Is imparred requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated
The value in use calculation involves an estimation of the future cash flows of cash-genesating units and also the selection of appropriate discount
rates, which involves Judgement, to calculate present values (see note 15) The carrying value of goodwill 1s £1,312 3m {2011 £1,259 Om) at the
balance sheet date

Retirement benefit obligations

The calculation of retirement benefit obligations 1s dependent on matenal key assumptions including discount rates, future returns on assets and future
contnbution rates (see note 30) The value of net retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date 1s £201 3m {2011 £156 4m) Details of the
impact of changes in assumptions relating to retirement benefit obligations are disclosed in the Finance Review (page 58)

Business combinations

The calculation of tar values associated with business combinations requires the use of judgement In determining the future economic inflows and
outflows associated with the acquired assets and habilittes This includes the estmation of contingent deferred consideration and ntangibles ansing
on acquisiion As permitted by IFRS 3 (2008), provisianal amounts are recognised for acquwed net assets dunng the measurement pernod where
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date 1s not avalable at the reporting date

4 Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Renderning of senvices 4,823 0 44813
Revenue from long-term project-based contracts S0 0 1651
Revenue as disclosed in the consolidated income statement 4,913 0 4,646 4
Investment revenue {note 9) 124 122
Operating lease iIncome 08 07
Total revenue as defined in I1AS 18 4,926 3 46593

5 Segmental information

Information reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment perfarmance focuses
an the categornes of customer idenhfied using therr respective markets Details of the different products and services provided by each operating
segment are included in the Our business and Our performance sections of this report From 1 Apnft 2012, the Group has reapportioned its business
nto four segments resulting in a restatement of the 2011 segmental informatton The Group’s reportable operating segments under IFRS 8 Operating
Segments are

Reportable Segments Operating Segments

UK & Europe UK and Europe frontline services in areas including home affairs, defence, health, transportation
and local government direct services,

Amencas US defence, Inteligence and federal cwilian agenctes operations, and Canachan operations,

AMEAA, Fronthne contracts in Australasia, Middle East, Asia (including Hong Kong and India) and Afnca, and

Global Services Global BPO middle and back office services

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies descnbed in note 2
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5 Segmental information {continued)

The {following 15 an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment in the year ended 31 December 2012

Reportable segments

UK & Global
Europe Americas AMEAA Services Tota!
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

Yoar ended 31 December 2012 £m m £m £m £m
Revenue 2,561 1 7534 8830 7155 4,913 0
Result
Segment Adjusted operating profit 1778 552 643 621 3594
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition {0 4) (137) {0 3) (97) (24 1)
Acquisihon-related costs ®1) - {(18) (18) 37)
Exceplional net prefit on disposal of subsidianies and operations 310 - - (25 4) 56
Segment rasult 2083 415 622 252 3372
Exceplional donation to Serco Foundation {50)
Corporate expenses {44 6)
Operating profit 2876
Investment revenue 124
Exceptional other gain 511
Finance costs (49 1)
Profit before tax 3020
Tax (58 1)
Profit for the year 2459
Goodwill and capital expenditure*
Goodwill additions 13 - 945 668 162 6
Property, plant and equipment segments 128 08 2089 197 612
Property, plant and equipment corporate 19
Total 631
Intangible assets segments 24 18 02 420 86 4
Intangible assets corporate 93
Total 957
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation segments 232 29 786 177 514
Depreciation corporate -
Total 514
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition segments 04 137 03 97 241
Amortisation — other segments 38 08 20 18 184
Amortisation — other corporate 32
Total 457
Segment assets
Reportable segment assets 980 1 6043 476 3 844 9 2,905 6
Corporate assets 749
Total segment assets 2,98056
Unallocated assets 266 6
Consolidated total assets 3,247 1
Segment liabllities
Reportable segment habilities {656 6) 937 (160 7) (256 3) {1,167 3)
Corporate habilities (29 3)
Total segment liabihties (1,196 6)
Unallocated habilities (921 6)
Consolidated total liabilities (2,118 2)

*Capital expenditure 1s siated on a cash basis including acquisiions but excluding finance leases

Group Adjusted operating profit 1s €314 8m and comprises segment Adjusted operating profit of £359 4m less Corporate expenses of £44 6m
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5 Segmental information {continued)

Reportable sagments

UK & Global
Europe Amencas AMEAA Services Tota!
2011 201 201 2011 201
Year ended 31 December 2011 - restated £m €m £m £m em
Revenue 25952 B68 2 6721 5109 4,646 4
Result
Segment Adjusted operating profit 1776 730 514 340 3360
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisiion 02 (13 6) - 62) {20 0)
Acquisition-relaled costs 02 - - 37 39
Segment resull 1772 594 514 241 3121
Corporate expenses (45 9)
Operating profit 266 2
Investment revenue 122
Finance costs (40 1)
Profit before tax 2383
Tax (63 1)
Profit for the year 1762
Goodwlll and capital expenditure*
Goodwill additions 130 - 161 3287 3578
Property, plant and equipment segments 234 06 142 475 857
Property, plant and equpment corporate 31
888
Intangible assets segments 26 16 11 574 627
Intangible assets corporate 238
Total 865
Depreciation and amortisation
Deprectation segments 198 34 77 151 460
Pepreciation corporate -
Total 460
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition segments 02 136 - 62 200
Amortisahion — other segments 61 10 V7 o8 98
Amortisation ~ other corporate 99
Total 395
Segment assets
Reportable segment assets 11266 660 7 2080 652 5 2,7378
Corporate assets 1425
Total segment assels 2,8803
Unallocated assets 3018
Consolidated total assets 31821
Segment liabilities
Reponable segment habilihes (658 8) (103 9) (128 1} {199 5) {1.090 3)
Corporate liabiliies (54 Q)
Total segment labilities {1,144 3)
Unallocated habiliies (1,034 Q)
Consolidated total liabilitles (2178 3)

*Capital expenditure s stated on a cash basis including acquistions but excluding finance leases

Group Adjusted operating profit1s £230 1m and compnises segment Adjusted operating profit of £336 Om less Corporate expenses of £45 9m
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2012 201
£m £m
Segment assets comprise
Goodwill 1,3123 1,250 0
Other intangible assets 2269 1849
Property, plant and equipment 1906 1948
Trade and other receivables — non-current 2605 2619
Retirement benefit assets 697 1223
Inventories 644 588
Trade and other recevables — current 856 1 7986
Total segment assets 2,9805 2,880 3
Unallocated assets 266 6 3018
Consolidated total agsets 3,247 1 31821
2012 201
£m fm
Segment liabilities comprise
Trade and other payabies — current {883 1) (804 2)
Trade and other payables — non-current (42 5) 614)
Retirement benefit obligations (271 0) 2mn
Total segment habilities {1,196 8) (1,144 3)
Unallocated habufinies {921 6) (1,034 0)
Consolidated total liabilltles (2,118 2) (2178 3)
Geographic information
Restated
Non-current Non-current
Roevenue asseots* Revenue assets*
2012 2012 201 2011
£m £m £m £m
United Kingdom 2,7314 1,0120 25873 10088
United States 6944 437 4 8021 460 8
Austraha B24 8 1894 660 4 615
Other countries 6624 4212 596 6 491 8
Total 4,9130 2,0600 4,646 4 20229

*Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets

Revenues from external customers are attnbuted to ndmdual countnes on the basis of the location of the customer

Information about major customers

The Group has two major governmental customers which each represent more than 10% of Group revenues The customers' revenues were
respectively £2,589 1m (2011 £2,470 2m) across UK & Europe and Global Services and £848 7m (2011 £740 2m} within the Amencas segment
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6 Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediing)

2012 2011
£m £m
Research and development costs 618 576
{Profitiloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0 9) 06
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment {note 19) 514 460
Amortisation of intangible assets - ansing on acquisiion (note 16) 241 200
Amortisation of intangible assets -~ other (note 16) 218 185
Staft costs (note 7) 2,1255 20109
Allowance for doubtful debts (credited)/charged to income statement (note 22) (0 8) 72
Net foreign exchange (credity/charge {7 5} 77
Meoevement on non-designated hedges and reclassified cash flow hedges 71 (66)
Operating lease payments 1370 1300
Operating lease Income (note 4) {0 9) {07)

Amounts payable to Deloitte LLP and therr assocrates by the Company and its subsiciary undertakings in respect of audit and non-audit services are

shown below

2012 201
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company's Auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 09 o8
Fees payable to the Company's Auditcr and their associates for other services to the Group
- audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 09 06
Total audit fees 18 14
— Audit-related assurance services 01 02
- Taxation compliance senaces 03 02
- Other {axation advisory services 03 04
— Other services 04 04
Total non-audit fees 11 12

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their assoctates for non-audit services 1o the Company are not required 1o be disclosed separately because the

consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consoitdated basis

Details of the Company's policy on the use of auditors far non-audit sentces and how the auditor's mdependence and cbjectvty was safeguarded

are sel out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 89 to 90 No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements
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7 Stoff costs

The average monthly number of employees {including Executive Directors) was

2012 2011

Restated

Number Number

UK & Eurape 28,459 28 111
Amerncas 8,854 9,260
AMEAA 9,987 7912
Globa! Services 48,672 31,045
Unallocated 141 3
Total 96,113 76,670

Average monthly numbers of employees for joint ventures are included on a proporhconately conseolidated basis in the table above

Aggregate remuneration comprised

2012 201

£m £€m

Wages and salaries 1,854 6 1,731 1

Socal secunty costs 146 3 156 3

Other pension costs (note 30) 1125 1123

2,113 4 19997

Share-based payment expense (note 37) 121 112

Total 2,1255 20109
8 Exceptional donalion to Serco Foundotion

2012 201

£m £m

Exceptional donation to Serco Foundahon 50 -

To mark Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated to service excellence, we have established the Serco Foundation as an independent
chantable foundation An exceptional payment of £5 Om has been made in the year to estabish the charitable foundation

9 Investment revenue

2012 201

£m £m

Interest recewvable on other loans and deposits 32 40

Net interest receivable on retirement benefit obligations {(note 30) 92 82

Total 124 122
10 Exceptionol other goin

2012 201

£m £m

Gain on step acquisiion accounting of joint venture (note 17b) 511 -

On 16 November 2012 Serco acquired the remaining 50% equity stake in DMS  taking its equity ownership to 100% DMS was formerly accounted
for as a Joint venture and following the acquisition of further shares it became a wholly owned subsidiary in accordance with IFRS 3 {Rewised 2008)
Business Combinations, before accounting for the purchase of the remaining equity stake, the value of the previcusly held 50% shareholding was
restated to fair value on the acquisition date This resulted i an exceptional gan of £51 1m beng recognised in the iIncome statement
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{1 Finoance costs

2012 201
£m £m
Interest payable on non recourse loans 09 10
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases 29 21
Interest payable and amortisation of capitalised financing transaction costs on other loans 43 4 356
Movement in discount on prowisions and deferred consideration 19 14
Total 491 40 1
12 Tox
12 (a) Income tax recognised in the income statement
Before
exceptional Exceptional
Items Items Total
2012 2012 2012 2011
£m £m m £m
Current income tax
Current Income tax expense 564 (51) 613 670
Adjustments in respect of prior years (7 8) - (7 8) (585)
Deferred tax
Current year 93 (14) 79 37
Adjustments in respect of prior years 47 - 47 1)
6286 {65) 561 631
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the consolidated income statement as follows
Before
exceptional Exceptional
items items Total
2012 2012 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Profit before tax 2503 817 3020 2383
Tax calculated at a rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 613 127 740 631
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16 07 23 15
Unrelieved tax losses 36 - 36 31
Eftect of the use of unrecogrused tax losses - - - (2 6)
Unprowvided deferred tax 11 - 11 25
Impact of changes in slatutory tax rates 14 - 14 18
Overseas rate differences 32 - 32 51
Step acquisition accounting of joint venture - (12 5) {12 5) -
Disposal of Serco GmbH - 68 68 -
Statutory tax benehts (65) (14 2) {(207) (39)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (31) - 31) (7 6)
Tax charge 826 {6 5) 56 1 631
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12 Tax {continued}

12 (b) Income tax recognised in the SOCI

2012 2011
£m £m
Current tax
Taken to retirement benefit obligations reserve {7 0) (18 0)
Deferred tax
Relating to cash flow hedges {4 5) {8 8)
Taken to retirement benefit obligations reserve (18 4) 327
(29 9) 59

The income tax expense for the year 1s based on the blended UK statutory rate of corporation tax for the penod of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) The impact of
changes in statutory tax rates relates principally to the reduction of the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012, which was enacted
on 26 March 2012 |n addition, the UK corporation tax rate was reduced from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013, which was enacted on 17 July 2012
These changes have resulted in a deferred tax charge ansing from the reduction in the balance sheet carrying value of deferred tax assets to reflect
the anticipated rate of tax at which those assets are expected to reverse The UK Government has also indicated that it intends to reduce the main tax
rate down to 21% 1n Apnl 2014 We estimate that the future rate changes would further reduce the UK deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
but the actual impact will be dependent on the deferred tax position at that tme

12 (c) Tax on ltems taken directly to equity

2012 2011
£m em
Current tax
Recorded in share-based payment reserve (0 8) 08
Deferred tax
Recorded in share-based payment reserve (2 5) 26
{31) 18
I3 Dividends
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders In the year
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of 5 9p per share on 490 2 million ordinary shares
{2011 Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 of 5 15p per share on 488 5 million ordinary shares) 289 252
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 2 65p per share on 488 2 miflion ordinary shares
{2011 Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of 2 50p per share on 486 & milion ordinary shares) 130 121
419 373
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 7 45p per share on 488 3 million ordinary shares
{2011 5 80p on 489 1 milllon ordinary shares) 36 4 2889

The proposed final dividend for 2012 1s subyect to approval by shareholders at the Annhual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability
in these financial statements A dmidend waiver is effectrve for those shares held on behalf of the Company by its Employee Share Ownership Trust
(note 34}
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14 Earnings per shore

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (EPS) have been calcutated in accordance with [AS 33 Earmings per Share EPS is shown both before
and after amortisation of intangible assets ansing on acquisition (note 18} Lo assist In the understanding of the underlying performance of the business

The calculation of the basic and diluted EPS 1s based on the followsng data

Number of shares

2012 201%
Milllons Millions
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 4912 490 5
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares share options 117 86
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 5029 4991
Earnings per share
Per share Per share
Earnings amount Earnings amount
2012 2012 2011 201
£m Pence £m Pence
Earnings for the purpose of basic EPS being net profit
attributable to the equity owners of the Company 2453 49 94 1751 3570
Add back
Exceptional profit on disposal of subsidanes,
net of tax credit of £5 3m (2011 Enil) {10 9) (2 22) - -
Exceptional donatron to Serco Foundation,
nei of tax of £1 2m (2011 £nil) 38 oy - -
Exceptional gain on step acquisition, net of tax of £nil (2011 £nul) (51 1) (10 40) - -
Amortisation of ntangible assels ansing on acquisition,
net of tax of €5 4m (2011 £4 3m) 187 3a 157 320
Acquisiion-related costs, net of tax of £0 5m (2011 £0 5m) 3z 065 34 089
Adjusted earnings 2090 42 55 194 2 39 59
Earrungs for the purpose of basic EPS 2453 49 84 1751 3870
Efiect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - {118) - {0 62)
Dituted EPS 2453 4878 1751 3508

At 31 December 2012 opticns over nil (2011 nil} shares were exciuded from the weighted average number of shares used for calculating diluted
earnings per share because their exercise price was above the average share price for the year and they were, therelore, anti-dilutrve
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15 Goodwill

£EM
At 1 January 2011 899 5
Additions 3578
Exchange differences 17
At 1 January 2012 1,2590
Addittons 162 6
Disposals (86 8)
Exchange difierences (22 5)
At 31 December 2012 1,3123

Goodwill is attnbutable to the excess of consideraton over the fair value of net assets acquired and includes expected synergies, future growth

prospects, staff knowledge, expertise and customer contacts

Additions dunng the year relate 1o goodwill recognised on four acquisitions More details of these acquisitions are presented in the Acquisitions note

{note 17}

The goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units {CGUSs) that are expected to benefil from that

business combination Goodwill has been allocated to CGUs in the following operating segments

201

2012 Restated

£m £m

UK & Europe 2803 3670
Amencas 3932 4113
AMEAA 134 3 313
Global Services 504 5 449 4
At 31 December 1,312 3 1,258 0

The Group tests goadwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impared The recoverable amount

of each CGU 1s based on value in use calculations

Key assumptions

The value in use calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on financial plans approved by semor management covenng a five-year
perod, and include a terminal value based on the projections for the final year of that plan, wih a growth rate assumption applied

The key assumptions afiecting the CGUs within each operating segment are discussed below

Short-term growth rates

Short-term revenue growth rates used in each CGU five-year plan are based on internal data regarding the current pipeline of opportunities and
published industry forecasts for the relevant market Further discussion of the Group's order book and pipeline 1s provided in the Our Business

and Our Performance sections
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1S Goodwill {continued)

Terminal growth rates

The cash flows subsequent to the five-year period are based upon management's estmate of the growth rates of the sectors in which the CGUs
operate Where possible these have been denved with reference to external sources The range of terminal growth rates applied to the CGUs within

each operating segment are set out below

2012 2011

% %

UK & Europe 25 25
Americas 27 30
AMEAA 25-35 25-356
Global Services 50 25-70

These rates do not exceed the average long-term growth rates forecast for the individual market sectors

Discount rate

Pre-tax drscount rates, derved from the Group's post-fax weighted average cost of capital have been used in discounting the projected cash fiows
These rates are adjusted for nsks specific to the market n which the CGU operates, including but not kmited to geographic and econormic risks,

contract length, and customer type

The range of pre-tax discount rates applied to the CGUs within each operating segment are disclosed below

2012 2011

% %

UK & Europe 8084 88-91
Americas 830 99
AMEAA 95 104
Global Services 105 91-122

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitmty anafysis has been periormed for each key assumption and, except as noled below, the Directors have not identified any reasonably possible
matenal changes in the key assumptions that would cause the carnying value of net assets, including goodwill, to exceed the recoverable amount

Across the identified CGUs an increase in the discount rate of 1% would not cause the operating assets to exceed therr recoverable amount in any
CGU, with the exception of the Americas CGU where a 1% Increase In the discount rate would result n an impairment of £30m  Across the identified
CGUs a decrease In the terminat growth rate of 1% would not cause the operating assets to exceed thew recoverable amount n any CGU with the

exception of the Americas CGU where a 1% decrease in the terminal growth rate would result in an impairment of £6m

Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012 | 139




Saction 5 | Financial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|6 Other intongible assets

Acqulsition related Other
Software, IT
Licences and other Penslon
Customer and development related
relationships franchises expenditure intangibles Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 1165 742 1709 262 3878
Arnsing on acquisition 447 - 11 - 45 8
Elminated on disposal - - (14 9) - {14 9)
Additions - 07 49 2 - 49 9
Dhsposals {04} - {2 5) - {29)
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment - 09 64 - T3
Pension scheme franchise adjustment - - - 19 19
Exchange differences 587 (18) (16) - {89)
At 31 December 2012 1551 742 2086 281 466 0
Amortisation
At 1 January 2012 421 618 791 199 2029
Arising on acquisition - - 03 - 03
Eliminated on disposal - - {10 3) - {10 3)
Charge for the year 1686 75 1986 20 457
Disposals {0 4) - 23) - (27)
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment {0 3) 05 63 - 66
Exchange differences {186) (16) 1) - {(33)
At 31 December 2012 56 4 682 926 219 2391
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 a8 7 80 1160 62 2269
Acquisition related Other
Software, IT
Licences and other Pension
Customer and development related
relationships franchises axpenditure intangicles Total
em £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 734 783 1345 266 3128
Ansing on acquisition 520 - 39 - 559
Additions - - 306 - 306
Disposals {2 5) - (0 5) - 30
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment - - (02) - ©2)
Pension scheme franchise adjustment - - - (0 4) 0 4)
Exchange differences (6 4) (41} 26 - (79)
At 31 December 2011 1165 742 1709 262 33878
Amortisation
At 1 January 2011 327 855 619 177 1678
Charge for the year 127 73 173 22 395
Disposals (25) - {0 5) - 30)
Exchange differences 08) 10 04 - (14)
At 31 December 2011 421 618 791 199 2029
Net book value
At 31 Decomber 2011 74 4 124 918 63 184 9

Included in Software, IT and other development expenditure 1s an amount of £9 7m (2011 £nil}in respect of leased intangibles

Customer relationships are amortised over the average length of contracts acquired
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16 Ctherintangible assets (continued)

Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquistion consists of amortisation in refation 1o Customer relationshups and Licences and franchises
and totals £24 1m (2011 £20 0m)}

The Group 1s carrying £116 Om {2011 £91 8my) in relation {o Software, IT and other development expenditure which includes assets relating
to the Group's SAP finance-related systems of £59 4m (2011 £57 2m) The average amortsation penod of these assets has three years
(2011 four years) remaining

The Group 1s carrying £98 7m (2011 £74 4m) in relation to Customer relationstups of which the pancipal compaonent is £35 8m ansing from
the acquisition of Intelenet In 2011 The remaining average life of the customer relationship iNtangible assets 1S approxmately seven years
(2011 seven years)

The value of internally generated intangible assets as at 31 December 2012 was approximately £71 9m (2011 £58 5m)

17 Acquisitions

Dunng the year, the Group completed the following acquisiions which have been accounted for in accordance with {FRS 3 Business
Combinations (2008)

17 {a} Vertex Public Services Limited

On 11 June 2012, Serco acqurired 100% of the issued share capital of Vertex Public Services Limited (Vertex}, a provider of high quaiity business

process outsourcing services o UK local and central government The cash cost of the acquisition was £55 8m

Book Falr value Provislonal
value adjustments falr value
m £m £m

Net assets acquired were
Goodwill 230 (23 0) -
ntangible assets 3.7 37 74
Property, plant and equipment 12 (0 6) 06
Deferred tax asset - 38 38
Trade and other recevables 285 o7 278
Trade and other payables (233) - (233)
Retirement benefit obligations (134) - (13 4)
Provisions - (49) (a9)
Net habilittes acquired 197 21 7) (20)
Goodwill 6756
Total consideration 855
Satisfied by
Cash 565
Total consideration 655
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Purchase consideration 555

The provisional farr value of the financial assets acquired includes trade receivables with a far value of £24 3m and a gross contractual value of £24 4m

The goodwill of £57 5m ansing from the acquisition represents future opporturities in the UK outsourced contact centre services industry None of the

goodwll i1s expected to be deductible for corparate income [ax purposes

£1 0Om of acquisition-retated costs incurred on the Vertex acquisition have been expensed to the income statement

Vertex Public Services Limited contnbuled £64 Om to revenue and £8 4m to the Group’s Adjusted operating profit for the period between the date of
acquisiion and the balance sheet date If the acquisition of Vertex Public Services Limited had been completed on the first day of the financial year,

Group Revenue for the penod would have been £5,041 0m and the Group's Adjusted operating profit would have been £331 6m
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|7 Acguisitions {continued)

17 (b} DMS Maritime Pty Limited

On 16 November 2012, Serco acqurred the remaining 50% stake in DMS Mantime Pty Limited from our joint venture partner P&O Maritime Services
The transaction strengthens Serco's position as a leading defence services provider in Australia and in the growing marine services market The cash
cost of the acquisition was £68 1m (A$106 3m} DMS was formerly accounted for as a jomt venture and following the acquisition of further shares

it became a wholly owned subsidiary In accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised} the difference between the far value of the equity owned prior to the
acquisition of £55 3m and the book value of the joint venture of £4 2m was recognised in the consolidated income statement, with the gain of

£51 1m reported in the exceptional other gain iine

Book Falr value Provislonal
value adjustments falr value
£m £m £m

Net assets acquired were
Intangible assets - 327 327
Property, plant and equipment 48 - 48
Inventories 55 - 55
Trade and cther receivables 100 - 100
Loans (14 8) - (14 8)
Bank overdrafts {0 4) - {0 4)
Deferred tax hability (©5) {9 8) (103)
Provisions (0 4) - {0 4)
Net assets acquired 42 229 271
Gain on remeasurement to farr value 51 1)
Goodwill 831
Total consideration 691
Satisfied by
Cash 691
Total consideration 691
Net cash outilow ansing on acquisition
Purchase consideration 691

The provisional fair value of the financial assets acquired includes trade recevables with a far value of £5 9m and a gross contractual value of £6 Om

The goodwll of £93 1m ansing from the acquisition represents future opportunities in the Australan manne services industry None of the goodwill 1s
expected to be deducuble for corporate Income tax purposes

£1 8m of acquisition-related costs incurred on the above acquisitions have been expensed to the Income statement
The additional stake in DMS Mantme Pty Limited contributed £5 8m to revenue and £1 Sm to the Group's Adjusted operating profit for the pernod

between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date If the acquisihon of DMS Mantime Pty Limited had been completed on the first day of
the financial year, Group revenue for the penod would have been £4,948 8m and the Group’s Adusted operating profit would have been £321 3m
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|7 Acquisitions {continued}

17 (c) Other Acquisitions

Anglia Support Partnership

On 13 April 2012, Serco entéred into an agreement 1o acquire the trade and assets of Angha Suppon Partnership (ASP) ASP provides support semvices
to the Cambnidge and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust, together with a further five partnenng NHS organtsations The imihal cash cost of the
business combination was £5 2m In addition, £3 5m of deferred consideration was paid on 30 September 2012 Up to a further £7 2m of deferred
consideration i1s payable from 2013 to 2020, contingent on the financial performance of the acquired business The farr value of this deferred contingent
consideration 1s £3 3m The prowisional farr value of net assets acquired totalled £4 O0m £0 8m of acquisihon-related costs incurred on this acquisition
have been expensed to the income statement

Due to the y;mmatenal nature of this acquisition, full disclosures under IFRS 3 are not presented

Prionty Properties North West Limited

On 1 June 2012, Serco acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Pnonty Properties North West Limited (PPNW) PPNW is a property management
company specialising in the provision of short and long term housing The cash cost of the acquisition In the penod was £2 7m In additron, deferred
consideration of up to £1 1m s payable contingent on financial performance in the penod to 31 January 2013 The farr value of this deferred, contingent
consideration s £0 5m The provisional fair value of net assets acquired totalled £1 8m

£0 1m of acquisitien-related costs incurred on this acquisiion have been expensed to the income statement

Due to the mmatenal nature of this acquisimon, full disclosures under IFRS 3 areé not presented

Cther acqulsitions (in aggregate)

Book Fair value Provisional
value adjustments fair value
£m £m £m

Net assets acquired were
Intangible assets 43 - 43
Property, plant and equipment 12 (0 6) 06
Trade and other recevables 21 - 21
Cash and cash equwalents 08 - 08
Trade and other payables (12} - (12)
Tax habilities (1) - 1)
Provisions - (07} 07)
Net assets acquired 71 (13) 58
Goodwill 94
Total consideration 152
Satsfied by
Cash 114
Contingent consideration arrangement 38
Total consideration 152
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions
Purchase consideration 114
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (08)
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisiions 1086

Serco Listening Company Limited (formerly The Listening Company Limited)
Duning the year a cash payment of £6 6m was made in respect of deferred contingent consideration payable {ollowing the acquisition of The Listening
Company Limited in 2011
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I 8 Disposals
Durmng the year the Group generated the following net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations
2012 2011
£m £m
Gamn on disposal of Serco Technical Services 5786 -
Loss on disposal of Serco GmbH (27 7) -
Loss on disposal of UK data hostng operations (11 8) -
Loss on disposal of education software business {12 8) -
Net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations 66 -

18 (a) Serco Technical Services
On 29 June 2012, the Group disposed of its Techrical Services business which prowides consulting and project solutions prmarily to the UK ewil and
nuctear defence markets, for a consideraton of £135 3m

£m
The net assets at the date of dlsposal were
Goodwill 644
Intangible assels o8
Property, plant and equipment 16
Trade and other receivables 132
Cash and cash equivalents 06
Trade and other payables {51
Deferred tax labiihies (52)
Net assets disposed 703
£m
The profit on disposal is calculated as follows
Cash consideration 1363
Less
Net assets disposed {70 3)
Disposal-related costs (7 4)
Profit on disposal 576
£m
The net cash Inflow arising on disposal is as follows
Consideration received 1353
Less
Cash and cash equivalenis disposed (0 6)
Disposal-refated costs pad dunng the penod (4 9)
Net cash inflow on disposal 1298

18 (b) Serco GmbH

On 29 June 2012, the Group disposged of its snterest in Serce GmbH The farr value of consideration receivable 1s £nil The business provides support
services for the German ar defence radar systems, engtneenng and administralive suppoert services for the defence sector as well as training senvices,
facilites management, field installation and maintenance services, and IT consulting and related services

£m
The net assets at the date of disposal were
Goodwill 220
Intangible assets 12
Property, plant and equipment 60
Deferred tax asset 62
Trade and ¢ther recevables 214
Loans receivable 259
Cash and cash equivalents 06
Trade and other payables (8 6)
Bank overdrafis 13)
Retirement benefit cbligations (50 5)
Provisions (@1
Net assets disposed 218
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8 Oisposals (continued)

18 (b) Serco GmbH (continued)

£m
The loss on disposal |s calculated as follows
Net assets disposed (218)
Disposal-related costs (59)
Loss on disposal (27 7)
£m
The net cash outflow arising on disposal Is as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (0 6)
Disposal-related costs pad dunng the penod 29)
Net cash outflow on disposal (35)

18 (c) Other disposals
On 21 Decemnber 2012, the Group agreed to dispose of its UK data hosting operations There was Enil cash consideration and the net assets disposed
amounted to £7 8m, gving a loss of £11 5m, after accounting for disposal costs of €3 7m

On 31 December 2012, the Group disposed of its education software business There was £6 3m of consideration received and the net assets
disposed amounted to £17 7m, gmving a loss of £12 8m, after accounting for disposal costs of £1 4m

£m
The net assets at the date of disposal were
Goodwill 04
Intangible assets 26
Property plant and equipment 14
Trade and other recevables 191
Cash and cash equivalents 02
Trade and other payables (19)
Finance lease obligations 62)
Other loans 1)
Net assels disposed 255
£m
The loss on disposal is calculated as follows
Cash consideration 63
Less
Net assets disposed (25 5)
Disposal-related costs 61
Loss on disposal (24 3)
£m
The net cash Inflow arising on disposal is as follows-
Consideration receved 63
Less
Cash and cash equivalents disposed ©2)
Disposalbrelated costs paid dunng the penod (14)
Net cash inflow on disposal 47
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[9 Property, plant and equipment

Machinery,
Frechold Short-leasehold motor vehicles,
land and building furniture and
buildings Improvements equipment Total
£m £m £m £Em
Cost
At 1 January 2012 70 590 3396 405 6
Additions 12 50 794 856
Reclassification from/(io} intangtble assets 15 83 {17 1) {73)
Disposals {086) {(19) (44 9) 47 4)
Ansing on acquisition - 14 224 238
Elminated on disposal {42) (82) (42 2) {54 6)
Exchange differences 01 (17 (61) {79
At 31 December 2012 48 819 3311 3978
Accumulated depreciztion and impairment
At 1 January 2012 37 271 1800 2108
Charge for the year 03 88 423 514
Reclassification from/(tc) intangible assets 02 34 (10 1) (6 5)
Ensposals {01} {11) (26 1) 27 3)
Ansing on acquisiion - 13 165 178
Elminated on disposal (22) (53) (27 5) (35 0)
Exchange differences - (08) {(32) (4 0)
At 31 December 2012 19 3343 1719 207 2
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 29 285 1592 19086
Machinery,
Freehokd Short-leasehold motor vehicles,
land and builtding furniture and
butldings Improvements equipment Total
em £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 72 508 2977 3557
Additions - 71 722 793
Reclassifications from intangible assets - - 02 02
Disposats - (5 4) (59 6} (65 0)
Ansing on acquisition - 72 329 401
Exchange differences (02) 07 (3 8} 47
At 31 December 2011 70 580 3396 405 6
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment
At 1 January 2011 35 263 1905 2203
Charge for the year 03 62 395 460
Disposals - (5 3) (50 0) (55 3)
Exchange differences ©1) o1 - ©2)
At 31 December 2011 a7 271 1800 2108
Net book value
At 31 December 2011 33 319 189 6 1948

The carrying amount of the Group's Machinery, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment includes an amount of £42 6m (2011 £45 8m) in respect

of assets held under finance leases

The carrying amount of the Group's Short-leasehold buiiding improvements includes an amount of £0 5m (2011 £1 4m) in respect of assets held

under finance leases
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20 Joint ventures
The Group's interests in joint ventures are reported i the consolidated financial statements using the proportionate consolidation method
The effect of the Group's joint ventures on the consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet s as follows

Income statement

2012 2011
£m £m
Revenue 8529 8193
Expenses (775 5) (737 7)
Operating profit 774 816
investment revenue 27 27
Finance costs (0 5) 07)
Profit before tax 796 836
Tax (15 1) (200)
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures 645 636
Operating profit s after allccating €mil (2011 €1 Omj) of costs incurred by Group
Balance sheet
2012 201
£€m €m
Non-current assets 2379 2184
Current assets 1460 1716
Current habidities (134 4) (138 9)
Non-current labilines {238 9) {212 5)
Net assets 108 386
21 Inventories
2012 2011
£m £m
Service spares 3rs 321
Parts awaiting installaton 13.1 104
Long-term project-based contract balances 13.7 163
614 588
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22 Trade and other recevables

2012 2011
£m £m

Trade and other receivables non-current
Amounts owed by Joint venturers 66 59
Amounts recoverable on retirement benefit obligations {note 30a) 2147 1887
Loans receivable {note 25) 01 -
Secunty deposits 03 a3
Other receivables 388 580
2605 2619
2012 2011
£m om

Trade and other recelvables current

Trade receivables 6208 609 0
Other amounts recoverable on contracts 699 620
Prepayments and accrued income 774 874
Loans receivable {note 25) 11 -
Secunty deposits 78 -
Cther recewvables 711 402
856 1 798 6

As at 31 December 2012, trade recevables of €14 Om (2011 £2 9m} were considered to be impaired Imparments to trade recevables are based
on specific estimated mecoverable amounts and provisions on outstanding balances greater than a year old unless there 1s firm evidence that the
balance 1s recoverable The amount of the provision was £6 2m as of 31 December 2012 (2011 £7 2m) pnmanly because our customers either have
a sovereign credit rating being government organisations or are blue chip private sector companies

The ageing of trade recervables 1s as tollows

2012 201

£m €m

Neither imparred nor past due 4819 496 8
Not impaired but overdue by less than 30 days 855 B37
Not impaired but overdue by between 30 and 60 days 309 1556
Not imparred but overdue by maore than 60 days 227 173
Impared 140 29
Allowance for doubtful debts (62) (72
6288 €090

Movements on the Group allowance for doubtful debts are as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Al 1 January 72 42
{Credited)/charged to Income statement (0 8) 72
Utilised o1 (42)
Exchange differences ©3) -
At 31 December 62 72

The maximum exposure to credit nsk n relation to trade recevables at the reporting date is the far value ol trade recewables The Group does not hold
any ceollateral as security

148 | Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012




23 Llong-term contracts

2012 2011
£m £m
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
Amounts due from long-term project-based contract customers included in trade and other recevables 240 394
Amounts due to long-term project-based contract customers included m tfrade and other payables (09) (@5)
23 1 389
Long-term project-based contract costs incurred plus recogrised profils less recognised losses to date 685 2 8722
Less progress payments (662 1) {833 3)
231 389

As at 31 December 2012, £nil {2011 £nil) of advances received trom customers were included within long-term project-based contract balances
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had £1 3m (2011 £0 4m) of contract retentions held by customers

24 Cosh and cash equivalents

Other Other
currencies Total Sterling curnencies Total
2012 2012 20 a0m 2011
£m £m £m Em £m
Customer advance payments* 75 75 - 55 55
Other cash and short-term deposits 1048 1911 896 1597 2493
Total cash and cash equivalents 1123 198 6 896 1652 2548

*Customer advance payments fofallng £7 5m {2011 £5 5m) are encumbered cash balances

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheel} comprnise cash at bank and other
short-term highly lquid investments with a matunty of three months or less
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25 Loans
Non MNan
recourse Other recourse Other
loans loans Total loans loans Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m tm &m £m £m

Loans are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year 100 535 638 78 198 8 206 6
Between one and two years 24 379 403 77 1472 154 ¢
Between two and five years 73 Mz22 2155 - 1046 104 5
After five years 54 3998 4052 - 3768 3768

251 7034 7285 165 8273 8428
Less amount due for
settlernent wathin one year
(shown within current habiliies) (100) {54 8) (64 6) (7 8) (198 8) {206 6)
Less Amounts shown in
receivables [(note 22} - 12 12 - - -
Amount due for settiement
after one year 151 6500 6651 77 6285 6362

The carrying amounts and farr vatues of the loans are as follows

Carrying Falr Carrying Far

amount value amount value

2012 2012 20m 2011

£m £m £m £m

Non recourse loans 251 266 155 161
Other loans 7034 7235 827 3 8489
7285 7501 8428 8650

The tar values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate associated with the loan All [cans are held at
amortised cost
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26 Deferred tox

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences under the habiity method, using local substantively enacled tax rates

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account 1s as follows

2012 2011
£m £Em
At 1 January — asset 59 (23 5)
Income statement charge (note 12) 126 16
Acquistticns/disposals 65 {10 8)
ltems recognised in equity and in other comprehensive Income {note 12) (25 4) 265
Exchange differences - 03
At 31 December - asset (122) (59}
The movement in deferred tax assets and lliabilities during the year was as follows
Temporary Share-basod
differences payment and Retirement Derlvative Other
on assels/ employse benefit financial temporary
intangibles benefiis schomes Instruments differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £€m
At 1 January 2012 256 {23 8) 185 @1 (17 1) (59)
(Credited)/charged to mcome statement 39) 46 o7 - 12 126
Acquisitions/disposals 40 01 20 - 04 65
Items recognised in equity and
in other comprehensive iNcome - (25) (18 4) {45) - (25 4)
Exchange differences 23) 02 a1 - 20 -
At 31 December 2012 234 (21 4) 29 (13 8) {3 5) (12 2}
The movement in deferred tax assets and hatilities dunng the previous year was as follows
Ternporary Share-based
differences payment and Retirement Detwative Other
on assets/ employee banefit financial temporary
intangibles benefits schemes Instruments differences Total
£m £m £€m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 173 (27 1} (13 5} {0 3) 01 (23 5}
{Credited)/charged to income stalement (68) 22 (07 - 69 16
Acquisihons/disposals 167 (14) - - (26 1) {10 8}
Iterns recogrused in equity and
In other comprehensive Income - 26 327 (88) - 265
Exchange differences (16 01 - - 20 03
Al 31 December 2011 256 {23 8) 185 @1 (17 1) {59

Deferred mcome tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax habiihies and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authonty The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset} for inancial

reporng purposes

2012 2011

£rm £m

Deterred tax lrabilties 311 223
Delerred tax assets (433) (28 2)
122) (59

At the balance sheet date, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £16 5m (2011 £10 2m) which principally relate to unused tax losses
of £48 4m (2011 £34 9m) Losses of £11 8m (2011 £4 5m}) expire within five years, losses of £24 4m (2011 £17 2m) expire within six to ten years
and losses of £12 2m (2011 £13 2m) may be carmed forward indefinitety

Al the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax iabiities have not been recegnised was £rul (2011 £0 1m) No hability has been recogrised in respect of these differences because the Group
15 1n & posttion to control the iming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future
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27 Obligations under finance leases

Present value Present value
Minimum of minlmum Minimum of minimum
lease payments teaso payments lease payments lease payments
2012 2012 2011 201
fm £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 120 108 108 103
Between one and five years 398 368 329 305
After five years 33 32 52 51
551 508 480 459
Less future finance charges {43) - 31) -
Present value of lease obligations 508 s08 459 459
Less amount due for settlement within one year {shown under current habihties) (120) {10 8) {(109) (10 3)
Amount due for setllement after one year 388 400 350 3586
Finance lease obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets
The Directors estimate that the fair value of the Group's lease cbligations approximates ther carrying amount
28 Trade and other payables
2012 2011
£m £m
Trade and other payables Current
Trade payables 1939 2177
Other payables 167 5 1403
Accruals and deferred income 5203 446 2
Amounts owed to joint venturers 14 -
883 1 804 2
The average credit penod taken for trade purchases Is 26 days (2011 31 days)
2012 2011
£m £m
Trade and other payables Non-current
Other payables 425 614
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29 Financtal risk management

29 (a) Falr value of financia! Instruments
(1} Hierarchy of far value

The classification of the fair value measurement falls into three levels, based on the degree to which the farr value 1s cbservable The levels

are as follows

Level 1 derived from unadjusted quoted pnices in active markets for identical assets or habibties,
Level 2 derved from other observable market data for the assets or habiliies and
Level 3 derved from valuaton techniques using data that 1s not based on cbservabte market data

Based on the above, the denvative inanaal insttuments held by the Group at 31 December 2012, are considered to fall into Level 2

The Group held the fcllowing financial instruments which fall within the scope of 1AS 38 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement

at 31 December

Camrrying amount Comparison Carrying amournt Companson
{measurement basis) fair value (measurement basis) taw value
Fair value Fair value
Amortised hierarchy Amorised hierarchy
Cost - Level 2 Cast - Level 2
2012 2012 2012 2011 20m 20114
£m £m £Em £m £m £m
Loans and receivables
Trade recevables (note 22) 6288 628.8 8090 6090
Loan recelvables {(note 22) 12 12 - -
Derivative financial assets
Denvative inancial instruments non-current 01 20
Dervative financial Instruments current 36 76
Financlal liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables (note 28} (193 9) (193 9) 2177 (217 7)
Loans {note 25) (728 7) {751 3) (842 8) (865 Q)
Dertvative financial liabilities
Dernvative financial instruments current (13 8) (12 3)
Denvative financial instruments  non-current (24 5) (26 3)

The Directors estimate that the carrying amounts of trade recevables and trade payables approximate 1o ther far value

The far values of loans are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the barrowing rate assocated with the loan Al loans are held

at amortised cost

The farr values of denvative inancial instruments are calculated based on a discounted cash flow analysis using approprate gquoted interest rates

for the duration of the instruments as noted below

@ Currency swaps and Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows The present value of foreign currency

balances are converted at the year end exchange rate,
® Forward foreign exchange contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates matching the matunties of the contracts, and

® Commodity contracts are measured at the present value of estimated cash flows with reference to quoted forward fuel prices
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29 Financial risk management {continued)

29 (a) Fair value of financlal instruments (continued)

{n) Far value of denivative financial instruments

The farr valuation of denvative financial iInstruments resutts in a net lability of £34 6m {2011 £28 Om}, compnsing nen-current assets of £0 1m (2011
£2 0m), current assets of £3 6m (2011 £7 6m) current habilities of £13 8m (2011 £12 3m} and non-current llabilities of £24 5m (2011 £26 3m)

Movement In Movement in
talr value of falr value of
cash flow non-designated
1 January 2012 hedges hedges 31 December 2012
£m £m £m €m
Curiency swaps 0B 09) (0 5) (06)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (316} (04) (29) {34 9)
Interest rate swaps {06) 06 (01) (01}
Commodity futures contracts 24 {14) - 10
{290} {(21) (35) (34 6)
Movement In Movement In
far value of far value of
cash flow non-desyynated
1 January 2011 hedges hedges 31 December 2011
£&m £m £m £m
Currency swaps 10 02) - 08
Forward foreign exchange contracts 02 (38 3) 69 (31 6)
Interest rate swaps (36) 30 - (0 6)
Commeodity futures contracts 28 02 - 24
02 (357) 69 (29 0}

29 (b) Financial risk

The Board s ulimately responsible for ensuring that financial and non-financial nsks are monitored and managed within acceptable and known
parameters The Board delegates authonty to the executive team to manage financial nsks The Group's treasury function acts as a service centre
and operates wathin clearly defined guidelines and policies that are approved by the Board The guidelines and pohcies define the financial nsks to
be managed, specify the objectives in managing these nsks, delegate responsibilities to those managing the nsks and establish a control framework
to regulate treasury actmties to minirmise operational risk

29 (c) Liquidity nsk

() Credit facilibes

The Group maintains commitied credit faciliies to ensure that it has sufficient iquidity to maintain its ongoing operations As at 31 December,
the Group's committed bank credit facilihes and corresponding barrowings were as follows

Amount Drawn Undrawn Tota! facllity

2012 2012 2012 2012

Currency milllons £m £m £m

Syndicated revolving credit facility GBP 7300 1776 552 4 7300
Amount Orawn Undrawn Total facility

201 2011 2011 201

Cunency milhons £m £m £m

Syndicated revolving credit faciity GBP 4000 - 4000 400 0
Syndicated term loan facility (amortising) uUsD 258 4 166 3 - 166 3
Syndicated term loan facility (amortising) GBP 750 750 - 750
Bilateral revolving credit facility GBP 750 - 750 750
Bilateral revolving credit faciity EUR 125 - 104 104
2413 485 4 7267

The £730 Om syndicated revolving credit faciity was signed in March 2012 and matures in March 2017 It replaced all ewisting syndicated and bilateral
credit faciites

The banking facilities are unsecured and have financial and non-financiat covenants and obligations typical of these arrangements

In addition to the banking facilities the Group has outstanding US private placements of £460 8m of which £70 2m amortise between 2013 and 2015
and £390 6m are bullet repayments between 20186 and 2023
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29 Financlal risk manogement (continued)

29 (c) Liquidity risk {continued)
{11) Matunty of financial habilities

The Group’s financial habilties will be settled on a net basis based on the remaining pestod at the balance sheet 1o the contractual matunty date

The amounts disclosed below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay

On demand

or within Betwaen one Betwoen two After
one yeaf and two years end five years five yoars Total
£m £m fm £m £m
Trade payables {note 28) 1939 - - - 1939
Obligations under finance l2ases (note 27) 120 1256 273 33 851
Loans (note 25) 64 6 40 4 2195 405 2 7297
Future loan interest 211 185 626 380 1401
Dervative financial habilities 146 g9 190 - 435
At 31 December 2012 306.2 813 3283 446 5 1,162 3

Cn demand

or within Between one Between wo Aler
ong yaar and two years and five years five years Total
£m £m m £m €m
Trade payables (note 28) 2177 - - - 2177
Cbhgations under finance leases {(note 27} 108 106 223 52 430
Loans (note 25) 206 6 154 9 104 5 3768 B42 8
Future loan interest 294 251 544 710 1799
Denvative financial habilitres 123 107 224 - 454
At 31 December 2011 4769 2013 036 453 0 13348

The Group’s dernvative financial labilities are setfled on both a net and gross basis depending upon the terms of each derrvative financial instrument
The matunty of the Group's undiscounted dernvative financial habilites is as follows

Forward
Cross forelgn
currency exchange Interast
swaps contreacts rate swaps Total
£m £m £m £m
On demand or within one year - (14 6) - (14 6}
Between one and two years - 98) (o1 99)
Between two and five years 7} (18 3) - {19 0)
At 31 December 2012 o7} {42 7) o1) {43 5)
Forward
Cross loregn
currency exchange interest
swaps contracts rate swaps Total
£m em £m £m
On demand or wathin cne year - (117} 8 (123
Between one and two years - {107 - (107
Between two and five years - (22 4) - (22 4)
Al 31 December 2011 - {44 8} ©e (45 4)
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29 Financial risk management (continued)

29 (d) Foreign exchange risk

{1) Transactional

It1s the Group's policy to hedge matenal transactional exposures using forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the functional currency value of
non-functional currency cash flows At 31 December 2012, there were no matenal unhedged non-functional currency monetary assets or habilities,
frm commiiments or probable forecast transactions

(1) Translational
Where possible the Group will raise external funding to match the currency profile of its foreign cperations, and mitigate transtation exposure
i match funding 1s not possible then currency derivatives are also used to protect against movements in foreign exchange

{m} Hadge accounting

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as either farr value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign
operations Page 127 details the Group's accounting policies in relation to denivatives qualifying for hedge accounting under IAS 38 The hedge
accounting relationships as at 31 December 2012 were as follows

Cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2012, the Group held two cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges against the 2003 US Dollar private placement Fixed
interest cash flows denominated in US Dollars are exchanged for fixed interest cash flows denominated in Sterhng The profile of these cross currency
swaps held by the Group Is as follows

Notlonal Recelvable USD Payabie GBP Notional Recewvable USD Payable GBP

amount interest rate Interest rate amount Interest rate Interest rate

2012 2012 2012 201 2011 201

Maturity USD m % % usD'm % %
August 2015 210 57 57 320 57 57
August 2015 120 57 57 183 57 57

The Group also held a number of forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges The net notonal amounts are summansed by
currency below

2012 201

£m £m
Sterling (176 3) {235 1)
US Dollar (a7 2) {131 0)
Euro 95 (0 8)
indian Rupee 1907 3370
Qther - 100

All currency derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are highly effective and as at 31 December 2012 a far value loss of £33 8m (2011 £35 7m loss)
has been deferred in the hedging reserve The net far value loss recogmised on cash flow hedges dunng the year was £2 1m (2011 £35 7m loss), whilst
net losses of £10 1m were reclassified to the consohdated income statement

(v) Currency sensitivity

The Group's currency exposures that result in net currency gains and losses in the income statement and equity anse pnncipally from movement
in US Dallar and Indhan Rupee exchange rates At 31 December 2012 if both had weakened by 109 against Sterling, with all other vanables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been £0 6m hegher (2011 £0 2m lower) and equity would have been £2 Om higher

(2011 €1 4m higher}
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29 Financial risk manogement (contnued)

29 (o) Interest rate risk

The Group's policy 1s 10 minimise the impact of interest rate volatility on earnings te prowide an appropnate level of certamty to cost of funds

Exposure to interest rate nsk anses pnnaipally on changes to US Dollar and Sterling interest rates

(1} Interest rate management

An analysis of financial assets and liabiliies exposed to interest rate nsk is set out below

Financial assets

Weighted Weighted

average fixed average fixed

Floating rate Fixed rate Interest rate Floating rate Fexed rate interest rate

2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011

£m £m % £m £m %
Cash and cash equivalents 198 6 - 2548 -

Financial llabilities

Welghted Weighted

average fixed average focad

Floating rate Fixed rate Interost rate Fioating rate Fixed rate nterest rate

2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 20M

£m £m “% £m £m %

Non recourse Canadian Dollar loans - 75 527 - 155 527

Nan recourse Sterling loans - 176 364 - - -

Sterling loans 1002 506 590 1054 942 5983

US Dollar loans 265 4109 434 1916 408 6 366
AU Dollar loans 798 - - -
Other loans 366 - 278 -
2431 486 6 3245 518 3

Exposure to interest rate fluctuations 1s mitgated through the issuance of fixed rate debt and the use of interest rate denvatives Excluded from the
above analysis 1s £50 8m (2011 £45 9m) of amounts payable under tnance leases, which are subject to fixed rates of interest

{ti} Interast rate swaps

Interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2012 relate to Intesest rate nsk management on debt held locally wathin the Group

Maturity
Notional Payable USD Recelvable USD Receivable JPY
Value Interest rate interost rato Interost rate
2012 2012 2012 2012
UsDm % % %
March 2014 21 689 - 3 month JPY Libor + 10
January 2015 38 630 3 month USD Libor + 20 -
Maturity
Notional Payable USD Recerable USD Recewnabla JPY
Value nlerest rate nteresi rate Interest rate
2011 2011 2011 201
usDm % % %
March 2012 3000 183 3 month USD LIBOR -
December 2012 91 4865 6 month USD Libor + 186 -
December 2012 09 856 6 month USD Libor + 65 -
March 2014 37 689 - 3 month JPY Libor + 10
January 2015 50 630 3 month USD Libor + 20 -

The interest rate swaps were not designated as cash flow hedges The fair value loss of £0 1m has therefore been recorded in the income statement

(2011 £29m gan)

(1) Interast rate sensitvity

A 100 basis point Increase 1n interest rates on the net financial liability position at the balance sheet date, with all other vanables hefd constant,
would have resulted in a reduction in post-tax profit for the year to 31 December 2012 of €0 4m {2011 £0 5m)
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29 Financial risk management {continued)

29 (f) Price risk
The Group I1s exposed to cormmodity price nsk through its joinl verdure rail operations due to the volatility in the price of fuel

The matunty profile of the commodity denvative used by the joint venture to reduce this risk 1s as follows

Maturity
Notlonal Payable
value fixed rate
2012 2012
Miltlon thres p periltre
January 2013 — September 2013 299 44 81
September 2013 - March 2014 223 48 70
Maturity
Notional Payable
value fxed rate
2011 2011
Million Itres p per htre
January 2012 - Septembar 2013 646 44 81

The commodity denvative 1s designated as a cash flow hedge and is lughly effective As at 31 December 2012 a far value gamn of £1 Om
{2011 £2 4m gan) has been detferred in the hedging reserve This gan 1s expected 1o be recognised in the consolidated income statement
in tuture penods

Price nisk sensitivity
An increase of US Dollar 0 2 (E0 13) per hitre in the price of fuel at the balance sheet date would result in a gain of £3 3m in equity (2011 £4 2m gain)
The sensitivity to changes in fuel prices resulting from changes in exchange rates 1s included within the currency sensitivity analysis (see note 29(d))

29 (g) Credit risk
The Group's principal financiat assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recevables

Credit nsk is the nisk that a counterparty could default on its contractual cbligahons In this regard the Group's principle exposure I1s to cash and
cash equivalents denvative transactions and trade receivables

The Group's trade recevables credit nisk ts relatively low given that a high proportion of our customer base are government bodies with strong
sovereign, or sovereign hke, credit ratngs However, where the assessed credit worthiness of a customer, government or non government, falls
below that considered acceptable appropriate measures are taken ta mitigate against the sk of contractual default using instrumenis such as
credit guarantees

The Group’s Treasury function only transacts with counterparties that compty with Board policy The credit nsk 1s measured by way of a counterparty
credit rating and as a minimum any counterparty must have a long term public rating of 'Single A’ from any two recogrised rating agencies

Pre approved limits are set based on a rating matrix and exposures monitored accordingly The Group also employs the use of set-off nghts in
some agreements

29 (h) Capital risk
The Group defines capital as equity, debt capital market 1ssuance, loans and borrowings and cash and cash equivalents The Group does not have
any externally imposed requirements for managing capital, other than those imposed by Company Law

The Board’s objective 15 to maintan a capital structure that supports the Group's strategic objectives, including but not imited to reshaping the portfolio
through mergers, acquisitons and disposals In doing so the Board seeks to manage funding and iquidity nsk, optimise shareholder return and
maintan an implied investment grade credit position This strategy 1s unchanged from the prior year

The Board reviews and approves at least annually a treasury policy document which covers inter ahia, funding and iiquidity nsk, capital structure and
nsk management This policy details targets for committed funding headroom, diversification of commutted funding and debt matunty profile

The Articles of Association of Serco Group plc require that the net borrowings of Serco Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings shall not at any time
without the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution exceed three and a half tmes adjusted capital and reserves

The Group ensures that sufficient funds and distributable reserves are held to allow payments of projected dividends to shareholders and it intends
to pursue a policy of dwdend growth that broadly reflects the ncrease in underlying earrings of the business
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30 Retlirement benefit schemes

The Group has accounted for pensions in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes
and defined contnbution schemes The pension charge for the year ended 31 December 2012, including the proportionate share of joint ventures,
was £112 5m (2011 £112 3m)

30 (a) Defined benefit echemes
The Group operates defined benefit schemes for qualifying employees of its subsicharies in the UK and Eurcpe In addition, the Group has interests
In joint ventures, which operate defined benefit schemes for qualifying employees

The assets of the funded schemes are held independently of the Group s assets In separate trustee administered funds The Group's major schemes
are valued by independent actuanes annually using the projected unit credit actuanal cost method This reflects service rendered by employees to
the dates of valuation and incorporates actuanal assumptions primarnly regarding discount rates used in determiming the present value of benefits,
projected rates of salary growth, and long-term expected rates of return for scheme assets Discount rates are based on the market yields of
hugh-quality corporate bonds in the country concemed Long-term expected rates of relurn for scheme assets are based on published brokers’
tarecasts for each calegory of scheme assets Pension assets and liabilihes in different defined benefit schemes are not offset unless the Group

has a legally enforceable nght to use the surplus in one scheme to settle obligations in the other scheme and ntends 1o exercise this nght

() Balance shaet values
The amounts recogrused m the balance sheet are grouped together as follows

Contract specific — Virtually certain costs rembursed

The Group has an obligation to contribute to the pension scheme over the term of the contract At rebrd, any deficit or surplus would transfer to the
next contractor Throughout the contract, it 1s virtually certain that the Group will be reimbursed the expenditure required to settle the defined benefit
obligation The Group’s share of the defined benefit obligation less its share of the farr value of scheme assets that it will fund over the pencd of the
contract, has been recognised as aliabiity The Group has recognised the nght to reimbursement as a separate asset

In the Income statement, the expense relating to this defined benefif plan has been presented net of the amount recognised for the rembursement,
resulting in a nil charge to the income statement

Contract specific - Not certain costs retmbursed

These are pre-funded defined benefit schemes The Group has obligations to contnbute vanable amounts to the pension schemes over the terms of
the related contracts At rebid, any deficit ar surplus would transfer to the next contractor The Group has recognised as a liability the defined benefit
obligation less the far value of scheme assets that it will fund over the period of the contracts with a corresponding amount recognised as intangible
assets at the start of the contracts Subsequent actuanal gans and losses in relation to the Group's share of the pension obligations have been
recognised in the SOCI The intangible assets are amorised over the term of the contracts

Non contract specific

These consist of a pre-funded defined benefit scheme which does not relate to any specific contract (the funding policy 1s to contribute such vanable
amounts, on the adwce of the actuary, as will achieve 100% funding on a projected salary basis) and an unfunded defined benefit scheme, bath of
which do not relate to any speafic contract Any labiliies ansing are recognised in full
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

30 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

(u} Tnennial funding valuation

Amaong our non contract specific schemes, the largest 1s the Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS} The most recent full actuanal

valuation of this scheme was undertaken as at 6 Apnl 2009 and resulted in an actuanally assessed deftcit of £141m Following this review, the Group
agreed with the Trustees to make cash contnibutions of 30% of members’ pensionable salanes until 2019, plus lump sum payments of £20m, which
was paid in December 2010 and £40m, which was paid in January 2011 The Group continues 1o review the level of benefits and contrbutions under

the scheme in ight of cur business needs and changes to pension legistation

The assets and habihties of the schemes at 3t December are

Virtually Not
certain costs canaln costs Non contract
reimbursed reimbursed specific Total
2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Scheme assets at falr value
Equities 823 248 4 589 3336
Bonds except LD a31 919 19 147 9
Liabality driven investments {LDI) 283 159 982 6 1,026 8
Gilts - 277 209 48 6
Property 284 358 04 648
Cash and other 1005 851 58 6 244 2
Annuty policies - - 25 225
Fair value of scheme assets 2836 5048 1,155 8 1,944 2
Present value of scheme liablives (49823) (755 2} {1,115 3) (2,368 B)
Net amount recogrised (214 7) (250 4) 405 (424 6}
Members’ share of deficit - 672 42 714
Franchise adjustment - 1510 - 1510
Effect of IFRIC 14 - - 09 09
Net retiroment benefit {(obligation)/asset {214 7) {32 2) 456 (201 3)
Analysed as
Retirernent benefit obligations {2147) {(322) (24 1) (271 0)
Retirement benefit assets - - 697 897
Related assets
Intangible assets {note 16} - 62 - 62
Trade and other recewvables (note 22} 2147 - - 2147
2147 62 - 2209
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30 Retirement benefil schemes {continued)

30 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
The assets and habilities of the schemes at 31 December are

Virtually Not
ceramn costs certain costs Non contract
raimbursed reimbursed specific Total
2011 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m
Scheme assets at fair value
Equities 842 2349 391 3582
Bonds except LDI 179 na 59 95 2
Liability driven investments (LDI) 240 160 9186 958 6
Gilts 300 230 119 649
Property 242 284 30 556
Cash and ather 723 556 608 188 7
Annuity policies - - 260 260
Farr value of scheme assets 2526 4293 10653 1,747 2
Present value of scheme habiliies {441 3) {594 9) (1,001 3) (2,037 5)
Net amount recognised (188 7) (185 6) 640 {290 3)
Members’ share of deficit - 437 22 459
Franchise adjustment - 954 - 95 4
Effect of IFRIC 14 - - (7 4) (74)
Net retirement benefit (obligation)/asset (188 7) (26 5) 588 (156 4)
Analysed as
Retirernent benefit obligations {188 7) (26 5) {63 5) 278 7)
Retirement benefit assets - - 1223 1223
Related assets
Intangible assets {note 16) - 63 - 63
Trade and other recevables (note 22) 887 - - 1887
1887 63 - 1950

Liabilities in refation to unfunded schemes included above amount to €0 2m (2011 £48 4m)

Certain of the Group's non confract specific schemes have a Liability Driven Investment {LDI) strategy which ams to reduce volatility nsk by better
matching assets to habilities The main asset classes that make up the LDI investments are gilts and corporate bonds with inflation and interest swap
overlays The assumed expected rate of return 1s taken to be gilts +0 8% (2011 gilts +0 8%)

In some schemes, employee contnbutions vary over time to meet a specified proportion of the overall costs, ncluding a proportion of any deficit
The habilittes recognised in the balance sheet for these schemes are net of the proportion attributed to employees In addibion, the amounts charged

to the income statement for these schemes are net of the proportion attnbuted to employees The amounts atinbuted to employees are shown

separately In the reconciliation of changes in the far value of scheme assets and liabilities
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30 Retirement benefit schemes (conlinued)

30 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
The amounts recogrised in the financial statements for the year are analysed as follows

Virtually Not
certain costs certain costs Non contract
reimbursed reimbursed specific Total
2012 2012 2012 2012
tm £m £m £m
Recognised In the income statement
Current service cost — employer 107 194 129 430
Past service cost - 01 11 12
Curtailment gain - - 61) 61)
Reimbursed to employer (107) - - (107)
Recognised in arnving at operating profit - 195 79 274
Expected return on scheme assets — employer {162) {19 8) (52 8) (88 B)
Interest on franchise adjustment - {4 5) - (45)
Interest cost on scheme liabilities — employer 209 216 483 g e
Reimbursed to employer @n - - a7
Finance income - (27) (65) (@ 2)
Included within the SOCI
Actual return on scheme assets 240 351 s o 971
Less expected return on scheme assets (162} (26 9) (53 9) (97 0)
78 82 (156 9) o1
Other actuanal losses (323) {89 2} (79 8) {201 3)
Actuarial losses recognised in the SOCI (24 5) {81 0) (95 7) {201 2)
Change in iFRIC 14 - - 83 83
Change n franchise adjustment - 529 - 529
Change in members’ share - 224 21 2456
Reimbursed to employer 245 - - 245
Actuarial gains on reimbursable rights 245 753 104 1102
Total pension cost recognised In the SOCI - 57) (85 3) (91 0)
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

30 {a) Defined benefit schemes (continued}

Virtually Not
certain costs certain costs Non contract
reimbursed reimbursed specific Total
2011 2011 201 2011
£m £m em £m
Recognised In the income statement
Current service cost — employer 84 165 165 404
Past service cost - - 04 04
Curtasiment gain - - 03 03)
Settlement gain - - 02) ©2)
Reimbursed to employer (84) - - (8 4}
Recognised in arnving at operating proiit - 165 154 318
Expected return on scherne assets - employer (170) (20 3} {53 6} (80 9)
Interest on franchise adjustment - (29} - (2 9}
Interest cost on scheme habiliies — employer 205 205 481 891
Reimbursed to employer (35) - - {3 5}
Finance income - 27 {55) 82}
Included within the SOCI
Actual {loss)/return on scheme assets 102} 53 1628 1579
Less expected return on scheme assets (17 0) (27 8) (55 0) (99 8)
(27 2} (22 5} 107 8 581
Other actuanal losses {39 7} (438} {25 6) {109 1)
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the SOCI {66 9) (66 3) Bz22 (51 0)
Change in IFRIC 14 - - (62) 62
Change in franchise adjustment - 384 - 384
Change in members’ share - 168 09 174
Retmbursed to employer 669 - - 669
Actuaria) gains/{fosses) on reimbursable rights 669 549 53) 1165
Total pension (cest)/income recognised in the SOCI - (114) 769 655
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30 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

30 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Cumulative actuarial losses recoegnised since 1 January 2004 are £67 5m (2011 gains of £23 5m)
Changes n the far value of scheme liabilities are analysed as follows
Virtually Not
certain costs certaln costs Non contract
reimbursed reimbursed specific Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2011 32 510 4 9515 1,840 1
Current service cost — employer 84 165 155 40 4
Current service cost — employee - 66 03 69
Past service costs - - 04 04
Scheme participants contnbutions 41 06 06 53
Interest cost — employer 205 205 481 881
Interest cost — employee - 73 11 84
Benefits paid (96) (10 8) 359 (56 3)
Actuanal losses 397 438 256 1091
Plan curtalments - - 03 ©03)
Pian settlements - - (43) 43
Exchange ditierences - - (13) (13
At 1 January 2012 4413 594 9 1,001 3 2,0375
Current service cast — employer 107 194 129 430
Current senice cost — employee - 74 02 76
Past service costs - 01 11 12
Scheme participants’ contributions 43 o7 06 56
Interest cost — employer 209 216 46 3 888
Interest cost — employee - 74 09 83
Benefits pard 112) (121) (38 4) {(617)
Actuanal losses 323 892 798 2013
Plan curtaiments - - (61) 61)
Ansing on acquisiion of a subsidiary - 26 6 899 96 5
Ehminated on disposal of a subsidiary - - {51 6) {51 8)
Exchange differences - - (16) {16)
At 31 December 2012 4983 7552 1,1163 2,368 8

164 | Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012




30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

30 (a) Defined kenefit schemes (continued)
Changes in the farr value of scheme assets are analysed as follows

Virtually Not
certaln costs certaln costs Non contract
relmbursed relmbursed specific Total
Em £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 2548 4033 B751 18332
Expected return on scheme assets - employer 170 203 536 909
Expected return on scheme assets — employee - 75 14 89
Employer contnibutions 138 250 665 1050
Contributions by employees 41 65 09 15
Benefits pad (8 6) {10 8) (359} {56 3)
Actuarnal (losses) and gamns {27 2) (22 5) 1078 58 1
Plan settlements - - (4 1} (41}
At 1 January 2012 252.6 4293 1,065 3 1,747 2
Expected return on scheme assets — employer 162 198 528 a8 8
Expected return on scheme assets — employee - T 11 82
Employer contributions 138 237 298 673
Contnbutions by employees 44 73 08 123
Benefits paid (112) {12 1) {38 4) (617)
Actuanal gains and (losses) 78 82 (159) '}
Ansing on acquisiion of a subsidiary - 215 616 831
Ehminated on disposal of a subsidiary - - (11) (11)
At 31 December 2012 283 6 504 8 1,1668 1,944 2
Employer contributions for non contract specific schemes tn 2012 include a £nil (2011 £40 Om) special contnbution
History of experience gains and losses
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Experlence adjustments arising on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 02 581 522 732 (263 7)
Percentage of the farr value of scheme assets 00% 33% 34% 54% 22 )%
Experience adjustments arising on scheme liablilities
Amount {£m) 24 3 56 42 {58 2) 01
Percentage of the present value of scheme labiihies 10% 03% 02% (33)% 00%
Fair value of scheme assets (Em) 1,944 2 1,747 2 1,633 2 1,356 9 1,194 1
Present value of scheme liabilities (Em) (2,368 8) {2,037 5) (18401) (1,744 4) {1,343 4}
Deficit {£m) (424 6) {290 3) {306 9) (387 5) (149 3}

The normal contnbutions expected to be paid duning the financtal year ending 31 December 2013 are £61 8m (financial year ended

31 December 2012 £64 9m)

Assumptions in respect of the expected return on scheme assets are based on market expectations of returns over the life of the related oblhigation

Due consideration has been given to current market conditions as at 31 December 2012 in respect to inflaton, interest, bond yields and equity

perfarmance when selecting the expected return on assets assumptions

The expected yiefd on bond investments with fixed interest rates 1s denived from their market value The yield on equity investments contains an

addimonal premium {an ‘equity nsk premium’) to compensate investors for the additional anticipated nisks of holding this type of investment, when

compared to bond yields Management have concluded that an appropriate equity nsk prermium 1s 4 6% (2011 4 6%}
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30 Relirernent benefit schemes (continued)

30 (a) Defined benefit schomes (continued)

The overall expected return on assets Is calculated as the weighted average of the expecied returns for the principal asset categories held by scheme

2012 201
% %
Maln assumptlons
Rate of salary Increases 340 330
Rate of increase i pensions in payment 2 20 (CPI) and 3 00 (RPI} 210 (CPI) and 2 90 (RPY)
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 2 20 (CPI) and 3 00 (RPI) 210 (CPi) and 2 90 (RP1)
Inflatton assumption 2 20 (CPI) and 3 00 (RP1) 210 (CPI) and 2 90 (RP1)
Discount rate 4 30 470
Expected rates of return on scheme assets
Equities 770 770
Bonds except LDI 430 470
LOI 390 390
Gilts 310 310
Property 435 435
Cash and other 050 050
Annuity pohcies 4 30 470
2012 2011
Years Years
Post-retirement mortality
Current pensioners at 85 - male 210 209
Current pensicners at 65 - female 235 234
Future pensicners at 65 — male 225 225
Future pensioners at 65 —female 2486 246

30 (b} Defined contribution schemes
The Group paid employer contributions of £71 3m (2011 £66 9m) into UK and other defined contribution schemes, foreign state pension schemes
and mulb-employer schemes, including those of joint ventures

Pre-funded defined benefit schemes treated as defined contribution

Serco accounts for certain pre-funded defined benefit schemes relating to contracts as defined contnbution schemes because the contnbutions are
fixed untl the end of the current concession and at rebid any surplus or deficit would transter to the next contractor Cash coninbulions are recognised

as pension costs and no asset or hability 1s shown on the balance sheet
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31 Provisions

Employee
related Property Contract Other Total
£m £m tm £m £m
At 1 January 2011 10 66 80 140 396
Ansing from acquisitions Q4 36 292 69 401
Charged to income statement 45 c4 - - 49
Released to income statement - €2 (12) 32 (4 6)
Uthsed dunng the year (10} (15) {75) o1 {10 1)
Unwinding of discount - 03 02 - 05
Exchange differences 01 ©3) {26) (10) (38)
At 1 January 2012 150 B9 261 166 66 6
Ansing from acquisitions 06 16 64 01 8.7
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiary {01) - - - 0 1)
Charged to ncome statement* 14 - - 90 104
Released to income statement {0 8) (07) (57) (0 1) (73)
Utilsed durnng the year (] (17) (11 3) (47) (18 4)
Unwinding of discount - 02 03 - 05
Exchange differences {0 8) {0 4} {09} (0 8) 27)
At 31 December 2012 148 79 149 201 577
Analysed as
Current - 09 52 54 15
Non-current 148 70 97 147 46 2

*Included in amounts charged to Income statement is an amount of £6 6m refating to businesses disposed n the year

Employee related provisions relate to long-term service awards and terminal gratuities habilities which have been acerued and are based on contractual
entitlement, together with an estimate of the probabilites that employees will stay untl retirement and receve all relevant amounts

Property provistons relate to leased properties which are either underutiised or vacant and where the unavoidable costs associated with the lease
exceed the economic benefits expected to be requred Management has calculated the provision based on the discounted cash outflows required
to setile the lease obligations as they fall due over the next ten years

Contract provisions primarily relate to Intelenet where, as required under I1AS 37, a provisson has been taken for a loss making onerous contract
Management has used the present value of the estmated future cash outflows required to settle the contract obligations as they fall due over the

next seven years in determining the provision

Other provisions are held for legal and other costs that the Group expects to ncur over an extended penod These costs are based on past expenence
of similar stems and other known factors and represent management's best estimate of the likely outcome
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32 Share capital

Number Number
2012 2012 2011 201
Em Millions £m Millions
Issued and fully paid
497,327,070 (2011 493,220,805) ordinary shares of 2p each at 1 January 99 497 3 99 493 2
Issued on the exercise of share options 01 12 - 41
498,462,508 (2011 497,327,070) ordinary shares of 2p each at 31 December 100 498 5 99 497 3
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
During the year 1,135,438 (2011 4,106,265) ordinary shares of 2p each were allotted to the holders of share-based awards or thenr personal
representatives using newly iisted shares
33 Share premium account
2012 201
£m £m
At 1 January 3227 3087
Premium on shares 1ssued 38 160
At 31 December 3265 3227

34 Reserves

34 (a) Retiromont banefit obligations reserve

34 (b) Share-based payment reserve

of share options satished by own shares

34 (c} Own shares reserve

31 December 2012 was £54 4m (2011 £39 2m)

34 (d) Hedging and translation reserve

The hedgmg and translation reserve represents foreign exchange differences ansing on franslation of the Group's overseas operations and movements .

relating to cash flow hedges
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The retirement benefit obligations reserve represents the actuanal gains and losses recogrused in respect of annual actuanal valuations for defined
benetit retirement schemes, the far value adjustments on rembursable nghts and the related movements in deferred tax balances

The share-based payment reserve represents credits relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions and any gan or loss on the exercise

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Serco Group plc purchased in the market and held by the Serco Group plc Employee
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to satisty options under the Group's share options schemes At 31 December 2012 the ESOT held 10 174,594
(2011 8 267,992) shares equal to 2 0% of the current allotted share capital (2011 1 7%} The market value of shares held by the ESOT as at -




35 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Reconcillation of operating profit to net cash Inflow from operating activitles

2012 2011
£m Em
Operating profit for the year 2876 266 2
Adjustments for
Share-based payment expense 121 112
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprment 514 460
Amoertisation and impairment of intangible assets a57 395
Exceptional net profit on cisposal of subsidianes and operatons (58) -
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (09) 05
Movement in provisions {19 8) @8)
Other non cash movements (2 8) 34
Operating cash inflow before movements In working capital 3677 3570
{Increase)/decrease in inventores (15) 92
(Increase)/decrease In recevables (48 7) 268
Increase/(decrease} in payables 386 (84 5)
Special contnbution to defined benefit pension scheme {note 30a) - (40 0)
Cash generated by operations 356 1 2685
Tax pad {(527) 515)
Net cash inflow from operating actlvities 3034 2170

Additions to fixtures and equipment duning the year amounting to £14 4m (2011 £29 6m) were financed by new finance leases

Analysis of net debt

At 1 January Exchange Non cash At 31 December
2012 Cash flow Acquisitions* Disposals differences movements 2012
£m £m £em £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 254 8 (46 8) o8 {14) {9 0) - 198 8
Non recourse loans (15 8) [t rg) - - o1 - (251)
Other loans (827 3) 1362 {15 2) (24 4) 273 - (703 4)
Obhgations under
finance leases (45 9) 29 - 62 02 (14 2) (50 8}
(633 9) 828 (14 4} {19 6) 186 (14 2) {5807}
At 1 January Exchange Mon cash At 31 December
2011 Cash flow Acquisitions™ Disposals differences movements 2011
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 2723 {322) B4 - 07 - 2548
Non recourse loans (23 7) 79 - - 03 - {15 5)
Other loans {490 4) (258 6) (733) - (50) - (827 3)
Obligations under
finance leases (26 4) 107 {08) - o2 {29 6) (45 9)
(261 2} (2722) (65 7) - 52 (29 B) (633 9)

*Acquisitons represent the net cash/(debt) acquired on acquisition
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36 Capitol and other commitments

2012 20N
£m m

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided
— Property, plant and equipment 12 14
- Intangible assets 77 -

Included wathin the balances above 1s joint venture capital expenditure contracted but not provided in relation to property, ptant and equipment of £0 1m
{2011 £0 1m)

Al the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
whtch fall due as tollows

2012 2011

£m £m

Within one year 1105 1370
Between one and five years 18959 198 3
After five years 1337 1312
4341 4665

Principal lease commitments are within the UK & Europe segment with future minimum lease payments totalling £219 6m (2011 restated £205 3m)
These leases relate pnmarily to administrative and operational buldings, track and rolling stock within the train operating companies The length of the
leases I1s concurrent with the penod of the franchises and the terms ¢f the leases are fixed durng this penod

37 Share-bosed payment expense

The Group recognised the fellowing expenses related to equity-settled share-based payment ransactons

2012 2011

£m £m

Executive Option Plan - o1
Long Term Incentive Scheme and Plan [+]:} 09
Sharesave 02 07
Transformational Share Scheme o1 01
Performance Share Plan 99 B5
Deferred Bonus Plan 11 09
121 12

Executive Option Plan {(EOP)

Options granted under the EOP may be exercised after the third anniversary of grant, dependent upon the achievement of a financial performance
target over three years The options are granted al market value and awards made to ehgible employees are based on between 50% and 100%

of salary as at 31 December pror to grant |f the options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire
Furthermore, options may be forfeited if the eligible employee leaves the Group before the options vest Detalls of the movement m all EOP options
are as follows

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exerclse price options eXercise price

2012 2012 2011 201

Thousanda £ Thousands £

Outstanding at 1 January 3,389 249 3,957 263
Granted durnng the year - - - -
Exercised during the year {759) 229 (294) 337
Lapsed dunng the year (158) 222 (274) 362
Outstanding at 31 December 2,472 256 3,389 249

Of these options 2,471 696 (2011 3,300,690) were exercisable at the end of the year, with a weighted average exercise price of £2 56 (2011 £2 34)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual life of 2 Q years (2011 2 5 years)
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37 Share-based payment expense {continued)

Executive Optlon Plan {(EOP) {continued)
The exercise pnices for options outstanding at 31 December 2012 ranged from £1 39 10 €4 55 (2011 £1 39 t0 84 55)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise approximates to the weighted average share price during the year, which was £5 50
(2011 £534)

The fair value of options granted under the EOP 1s measured by use of the Binomial Lattice model The Binomial Lattice model 1s considered to be
most approprate for valuing options granted under this scheme as it allows exercise over a longer penod of ime between the vesting date and the
expiry date

There were no new options granted under Executive Option Plans dunng the year

Long Term Incentive Scheme (LTIS) and Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIF)

Awards made to efigible employees under the above schemes are structured as options with a zerc exercise pnice The extent to which an award vests
{and therefore becomes exercisable) 1s measured by reference to the growth in the Group's earnings per share (EPS) or total shareholder return (TSR)
over the performance penod or service pericd conditions

If the options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the options exprre Furthermore, options may be forfeited If the
eligible empioyee leaves the Group before the options vest Details of the movement in all LTIS and LTIP options are as follows

Waelghted Weighied

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price options exercise pnce

2012 2012 2011 201

Thousands £ Thousands £

Qutstanding at 1 January 2,638 Nil 3,691 Nil
Granted durnng the year 218 Nil 23 Nil
Exercised dunng the year (247) Nil (411) Nil
Lapsed dunng the year (1,692) Nil (665) Nil
Outstanding at 31 December 917 Nil 2,638 Nl

Of these options 521,459 {2011 2,169,500) were exercisable at the end of the year
The ophions outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual fe of 3 9 years (2011 5 8 years)

There were four grants of LTIP options duning the year The fair value 1s considered 1o be therr face value less the present value of any dividend
payments not paid over the vesting penod

The weighted average farr value of optrons granted under this scheme in the year s £5 25
Transformational Share Scheme
Awards made to eligible employees under the Transformational Share Scheme are structured as options with a £nil exercise price and are exercisable

after the third anniversary of the grant

The employee must exercise the options no later than 30 days after the vesting date Furthermore, if the eligible employee leaves the Group before the
options vest, the options may be forfeited

Welghted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exorclse price options BXBrCISE Prce

2012 2012 2011 2011

Thousanda £ Thousands £

QOutstanding at 1 January 86 Nil 119 Nil
Granted dunng the year - Nil - Nil
Exercised dunng the year (53) Nil (33) Nil
Lapsed durning the year - Nil - Nil
Outstanding at 31 December 33 Nil 88 Nil

None of these options were exercisable at ihe end of the year {2011 none)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual life of 0 2 years (2011 06 years)
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37 Share-bosed payment expense (continued)

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Under the PSP eligible employees have been granted aptions with an exercise pnce of two pence Awards vest afier the performance period of three
years and are subject to the achievement of two performance measures The prmary performance measure 1s TSR and the second performance
measure I1s based on EPS growth

Welghted Weghted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price options exercise prce

M2 2012 201 201

Thousands € Thousands £

Outstanding at 1 January 7,426 002 3944 002
Granted durning the year 4,104 002 3,987 Qo2
Exercrsed during the year (125) 002 (9) 002
Lapsed during the year {1,321) 002 (496) 002
Qutstanding at 31 December 10,084 002 7,426 002

148,830 of these options were exercisable at the end of the year (2011 none)
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual life of 85 years (2011 8 7 years)

In the year, four grants were made with 50% of the options granted subject to TSR perfermance conditions and 50% subject to EPS growih
performance conditions

The options subject to TSR performance condions were valued using the Monte Carlo Simulation model The options subject to EPS growih
performance conditions were deemed to have far values equal to their face value less the present value of any dividend payments not receved
over the vesting penod

The Monte Carlo Simulation model 1s considered to be the most appropnate for valuing options granted under schemes where there are changes
in performance conditrons by which the oplions are measured, such as for the TSR-based awards

The inputs ito the Monte Carlo Simulation model for options granted dunng the year with TSR performance conditions are

2012 201
Weighted average share price 540p 558p
Weighted average exercise piice 2p 2p
Expected volatlity 22 7T% 28 1%
Expected Ife 3 years Jyears
Risk free rate 03% 18%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the hustorical volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behawvioural considerations

The assumptions for options granted dunng the year wath EPS growth performance conditions are

2012 201
Weighted average share price 540p 558p
Waeighted average exercise pnce 2p 2p
Expected volatility N/A N/A
Expecied life 3 years 3 years
Risk free rate N/A N/A

The weighted average far value of options granted under this scheme in the year i1s £4 38

172 | Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2012




37 Shaore-based payment expense (conlinued)

Deterred Bonus Plan {(DBP)

Under the DBF, eligible employees are entitled to use up to 50% of their earned annual bonus to purchase shares in the Group at market price
Provided they remain In employment for a specified penod, the shares are retained for that perod and the two performance measures (which are
the same as the PSP scheme, being TSR and EPS growth) have been met, the Group will make a matching share award For shares purchased

by employees in 2011 the match was on a basis of two times the gross bonus deferred

Welghted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options axercise price options exercise price

2012 2012 201 2011

Thousands £ Thousands £

Outstanding at 1 January 750 Nit 426 Nil
Granted durning the year 519 Nil 324 Nil
Exercised dunng the year {107) Nil - Nil
Lapsed dunng the year {104) NIl - Nil
Qutstanding at 31 December 1,058 NIl 750 Nil

None of these options were exercisable at the end of the year (2011 none)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual ife of 1 6 years {2011 1 5 years)

in the year, one grant was made with 100% of the deferred bonus subject to EPS growth performance conditions

The portion subject to EPS growth performance conditions was deemed to have a far value equal to therr face value less the present value of any

diwidend payments not received over the vesting period

Expected votatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the Group's share price over the previous three years The expected lfe
used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and

behawioural considerations

The assumptions for options granted duning the year with EPS growth performance conditions are

2012 2011
Weighted average share price 515p 548p
Weighted average exercise price Nil Nl
Expected volatility N/A N/A
Expected Iife 3 years 3years
Risk free rate N/A N/A

The weighted average tarr value of options granted under this scheme in the year 1s £5 16
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37 Share-bosed payment expense (continued)

Sharesave 2008
The Sharesave 2008 scheme provides for a purchase price equal to the dally average market price on the date of grant less 10% The options can
be exercised for a penod of six months following therr vesting Details of the movement in Sharesave 2008 options are as follows

Welghted Weighted

Number of average Nurmber of average

options exercise price ophons eXercIse price

2012 2012 201 2011

Thousands £ Thousands £

Qutstanding at 1 January 1,108 40 5,479 40
Granted dunng the year - 40 - 49
Exercised during the year (807) 40 (3,981) 40
Lapsed durning the year (3M) 40 (390} 40
Outstanding at 31 December - 40 1,108 40

Of these options none (2011 1,101,183) were exercisable at the end of the year

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual ife of nil 2011 0 2 years) Given that options granted under the
Sharesave scheme can be exercised at any ime after vesting management consider the Binormial Lattice model to be appropnate to value the options
granted under this scheme The Binomeal Lattice model allows exercise over a2 window 1n time, from vesting date to expiry date and assumes option
holders make economically rational exercise decisions

Sharesave 2012
The Sharesave 2012 scheme provides for a purchase price equal to the daily average market price on the date of grant less 10% The options can be
exercised for a penod of six months following their vesting Details of the movement in Sharesave 2012 options are as follows

Welghted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price ophons exercisa price

2012 2012 2011 201

Thousands £ Thousands £

Outstanding at 1 January - - - -
Granted dunng the year 6,074 514 - -
Exercised during the year - 514 - -
Lapsed dunng the year {62) 514 - -
Outstanding at 31 December 6,012 514 - -

Of these options, none (2011 none) were exercisable at the end of the year

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average contractual ife of 3 4 years (2011 nil) Given that cptions granted under the
Sharesave plan can be exercised at any ime after vesting, management consider the Binomual Lattice model to be appropnate to value the oplions
granted under this scheme The Binomial Lattice model allows exercise over a window In time, from vesting date to expiry date and assumes option
holders make economically rattonal exercise decisions
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38 Related party transactions

Transachons between the Company and ts wholly owned subsidiarnies, which are retated parties, have been eliminated on conschidation and are
not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its joint venture undertakings are disclosed below, with the relevant proportion

being eiminated on consolidation

Trading transactions
Buring the year, Group companies entered into the following matenal transactions with joint ventures

2012 2011
£m £m
Royalties and management fees recevable 23 15
Dividends recevable 806 643
829 658
The following receivable balances retabng to joint ventures were included In the consolidated balance sheet
2012 201
£m £m
Current
Loans 10 05
2012 2011
em £m
Non-current
Leans 26 32

Joint venture recevable and loan amounts outstanding have ansen from transactions undertaken during the general course of trading, are unsecured,

and will be settled in cash Interest ansing on loans 1s based on LIBOR, or its equivalent, with an app

ropnate margin No guarantee has been given or

received No provisions are required for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by the joint ventures

Remuneration of key management personnel

The Directors of Serco Group pic had no material transactions with the Group dunng the year other than serace contracts and Directors'

lhability iInsurance

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group 1s set out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified n 1AS 24 Related

Party Disclosures

2012 2011

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 94 89
Post-employment benefits 04 06
Share-based payment expense 18 28
116 123

The key management personnel compnse the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee

(2012 17 indmduals, 2011 18 individuals)
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39 Listof principal undertakings

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by providing information only in relation
to undertakings whose resulls or financial position, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affecied the financial statements

A complete iist of subsichary and associated undertakings will be attached to the next Serce Group plc annual return to Companies House

The percentage of equity capital held directly or indrectly by Serco Group plc 1s shown The voting nghts are the same as the percentage holding
The companies are incorporated and pringipally operate in the countries stated below

Principal subsidiaries 2012 2011
United Kingdom
Serco Limited 100% 100%
NPL Management Limited 100% 100%
AMEAA
Australia Serco Australia Pty Limited 100% 100%
incha Intelenet Global Services Private Limited 100% 100%
North America
USA Serco Inc 100% 100%
Joint venture undertekings 2012 201
United Kingdom
AWE Management Limited 3% 33%
Northern Rail Holdings Limited 50% 50%

All joint ventures are accounted for using the propertionate consclidation methed All the subsidianes of the Group have been consclidated

All the prnincipal subsidianes of Serco Group plc and 1ts joint venture undertakings are engaged In the provision of support services

40 Contingent llabilities

The Company has guaranteed overdrafts, finance leases, and bonding facilities of its joint ventures up tc a masimum value of £27 2m {2011 £8 2m)
The actual commitment outstanding at 31 December 2012 was £23 2m (2011 £4 8m)

In addition to this, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance guarantees and indemnities relating to performance bonds and letters
of credit issued by its banks on its behalf, in the ordinary course of business These are not expected to result in any matenal financial loss

The Group 15 aware of claims and potential claims which involve or may involve legal proceedings against the Group The Directors are of the opinion,

having regard to legal advice receved and the Group's insurance arrangements that it 1s unlikely that these matters will 0 aggregats, have a matenal
effect on the Group's financial positton
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Audit Report

on Parent Company Financial Statements prepared under FRS 101

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Serco Group plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Serco Group ple for the year ended 31 Decernber 2012 which compnse the Parent
Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 16 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s appiicable
law and Finanaial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

This report 1s made solely lo the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent pesmitted by taw, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and the Comparny's
members as a body, for our audit work for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsihilities of Directors and Auditer

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent company financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the parent company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audli of the financial stataments

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements suffictent ta give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This iIncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the parent Company’s crrcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financiat statements In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the annual report to identify matenal Inconsistencies with the audited financtal statements 1f we become aware of

any apparen! matenal misstatements or inconsistenctes we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parerd company financial statements

® give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012,
e have been properly prepared in accordance with Finanoial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and
® have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Oplnion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

& the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 2008, and
& the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent wath the parent
company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, In our opinion

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches
not visited by us, or

® the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

® cerlain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have not recewed all the information and exptanations we require for our audnt

A ik Lﬁdallda-
—_—

Richard Knights (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditer
London, United Kingdom

4 March 2013
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Company Balance Sheet

At 31 December

201
2011 Ongnalty
2012 Restated reported
Note £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidianes 2 8118 8166 8166
8118 8166 8166
Current assets
Debtors amounts due within one year 3 60 47 47
Debtors amounts due after more than one year 3 1,2280 985 6 984 4
Denvative financial Instruments due within one year [ o7 64 64
Denvative iinancial instruments due after more than one year 6 - 09 09
Cash at bank and in hand 56 - -
1,240 3 997 6 996 4
Total assets 2,052 1 18142 18130
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 4 {249 4) (185 4) (185 4)
Borrowings 5 (106 2) (170 2) (170 2)
Dervative financial instruments 6 {2 6) (42 (42)
(358 2) {359 8) (359 8)
Net current assets 8821 637 8 6366
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 5 (615 0) (606 7) (606 7)
Amounts owed 1o subsichary companies (385 3) {222 1) (222 1)
Denvative hnancial instruments 6 (0 6) €2 02
(1,000 9) {829 0) (829 0)
Provisions for liabillties - 190 (10
Total llabilities (1,359 1) (1,189 8) (1,189 8)
Net Assets 693 0 624 4 6232
Capital and reserves
Called up share capnal 8 100 99 98
Share premium account 9 3285 3227 227
Capital redemplion reserve 01 01 01
Own shares reserve 10 (58 8) (48 2) {48 2}
Share-based payment reserve 1 577 491 480
Hedging and translation reserve 12 19 19 19
Profit and loss account 13 3556 2889 2888
Total shareholders’ tunds 693 0 624 4 6232

The financial statements {registered number 2048608} were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2013 and signed on its behalf by

A= frb-

Chnstopher Hyman
Chief Executive
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

| Accounting policies
The princtpal accounting policies adepted are set out below and have been apphed consistently throughout the current and preceding year as restated

Basis of accounting

The Company meets the definfion of a gqualfying entity under FRS 100 {(Financial Reporting Standard 100) 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council
Accordingly, 1in the year ended 31 December 2012 the Company has undergone transition from reporting under UK GAAP to FRS 101 asissued by the
Financial Reporting Council The financial statements have therefore been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101)
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council This transition 1s not considered to have had a matenal effect on the
financial statements

As permitted by FRS 101 the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avalable under that standard in relation to share-based
payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash-flow
statement, standards not yet effective, imparrment of assets and related party ransactions |

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on the going concern basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial |
instruments Histoncal cosl is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any imparment in value

Share-based payment

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees and operates an HMRC approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) share
oplion scheme open to eligible employees which allows the purchase of shares at a discount These are measured at farr value at the date of grant
The farr value 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pencd, based on the Company’'s estimate of shares that will eventually vest
SAYE options are treated as cancelled when employees cease lo contnbute to the scheme resulting in an acceleration of the remamnder of the
related expense

Where the far value of share options requires the use of a valuation model, far value 1s measured by use of the Binomial Lattice or Monte Carlo
Simulation models depending on the type of scheme The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management's best estmate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considerations Where relevant, the value of the option has also been
adjusted to take account of market conditions applicable to the option

Dmdends
Dmdends are approved by the Board of Directors, and recorded in the Company's financial statements in the penod in which they are declared,
appropriately authonsed and no longer at the discretion of the Company

Denvative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Company enters into a vanety of denvative inancial nstruments to manage the exposure to mterest rata foreign exchange nsk and price nisk,
including currency swaps foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity future contracts

Dervatives are imtially recognised at fair value at the date a denvatrve contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to therr far value

at each balance sheet date A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative far value1s

recognised as a financial hability The resulting gam or loss 1s recogrised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative 1s designated and effective

as a hedging mstrument, in which event the trning of the recogmition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relatonship The Company

designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the farr value of recognised assets or habilites or firm commitments {tair value hedges), hedges of

highly probable torecast transactions or hedges of forergn currency nisk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments In |
foreign operations ‘

A dernvalive I1s presented as a fixed asset or a creditor falling due after more than one year if the remaining matunty of the instrument s more than ‘
12 months and it rs not expecled to be realised or settled within 12 months Other denvatives are presented as current assets or creditors  amounts |
faling due wittun one year

Embedded dervatives
Dernvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate dervatves when therr risks and charactenstics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and these are not measured at far value through profit or loss

Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging nstruments which include dernvatives, embedded denvatives and non-dervatives in respect of foreign
exchange nsk, as erther far value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operatons Hedges of foreign exchange nisk
on highly probable forecast transactons and firm commutments are accounted jor as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relancnship the entity documents the relattonship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item along with its
nsk management cbjectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that 1s used in a hedging relationship 1s highly eftective In offsetting changes in far values
or cash flows of the hedged item

Movements in the hedging and translation reserve in equity are detaled in the SOCI and descnbed in note 12
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I Accounting policies {continued)

Fair value hedges

Changes in the farr value of denivatives that are designated and qualify as far value hedges are recorded in profit or loss immediately, together with
any changes in the far value of the hedged item that 1s attnbutable to the hedged nsk The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change i the hedged item attnbutable to the hedged nsk are recognised in the Iine of the ncome statement relating to the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging retationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item ansing from the hedged nsk |
1s amortised to profit or loss from that date

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the farr value of derivatives that are designated and qually as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

Amounts deferred in equity are reclassfied to profit or loss in the penods when the hedgad item affects prefit or loss, in the same iine of the iIncome
staternent as the recognised hedged item However, when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recogmiion of a non-financtal asset
or a non-financial habiity, the gains and losses previously deferred in eguity are transterred frem equity and included In the initial measurement of
the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial hability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualfies for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equaity at that time remains 1n equity and Is recogrused
when the forecast transaction s ultimately recogrised in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was deferred in equity 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

Hedges of net investments in foretgn operations

Hedges of net Investments In foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or toss on the hedging instrument relating
to the effective portion of the hedge s recogrised in equity and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserve The gaun or loss relating to the
ineffective portion 1s recogrised iImmediately in profit or loss and 1s included in the ‘net exchange gain/loss on translaton of foreign cperattons’

line item

Gamns and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss In the same way as exchange dfferences relating to the foreign operations

Net investments in foreign operations
Exchange differences ansing on monetary items that form part of the Company's net investment in foreign operations are initially recognised in equity
and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserve and rectassified from eguity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment

Tax

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax expense and deferred tax expense Current tax expense 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxabte profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income statement because H excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
In other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible Deferred tax s provided, using the hability method, on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities and ther carrying amounts for accounting purposes

Deferred tax labities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable
agatnst which these items can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recogrised if the temporary difference anses from goodwll or from the imihial recognition of an asset and
liability tn a transaction other than a business combination and, at the time of the transachon, affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit
Deferred tax liabiities are recognised for taxable temporary dfferences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and Joint ventures, except where
the Company 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary diference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxabla profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utihsed

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period when the habiity 1s settled or the asset 1s realsed, based upon tax

rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s charged or credited in the income
statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 1s also recognised in equity
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2 Investments held as fixed assels

em
Shares In subsldiary companies at cost
At 1 January 2012 B16 6
Options over parent’s shares awarded to employees of subsidianes 72
Disposals (12 0)
At 31 December 2012 8118
£m
Shares in subsidiary companies at cost
At 1 January 2011 B121
Options over parent's shares awarded to employees of subsidiaries 71
Disposals (2 6)
Al 31 December 2011 8166
Full details of the principal subsidianes of Serco Group ple can be found in note 39 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements The Company
directly owns 100% of the ordinary share capiial of the following subsidiary
Neame % ownership
Serco Holdings Limited 100%
3 Debtors
2011
2011 Onginafty
2012 Restated Reported
£m £m £m
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies - o1 01
Corporation tax recoverable ase 25 25
Other debtors 24 21 21
60 47 47
Amounts due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies 12121 9689 968 9
Amounts owed by joint ventures 41 33 33
Other debtors £9 85 86
Deferred tax asset (note 7} 59 49 37
1,2280 9856 984 4
1,234 0 990 3 989 1
4 Trade and other payables
2012 201
f£fm £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary companies 2315 1714
Trade creditors 03 01
Accruals and deferred income 157 127
Other creditors ncluding taxation and social security 19 12
2494 1854
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5 Borrowings

2012 201
£m £m
Loans 7212 7769
Less amounts included in creditors falling due within one year — loans (27 0) (23 6)
Less amounts included in creditors falling due within one year — bank loans & overdrafts (79 2) (146 6)
Amounts falling due after more than one year 6150 6806 7
Loans
Within one year or on demand 106 2 1702
Between one and two years 234 1260
Between two and five years 54 2 104 3
After five years 5374 376 4
7212 77689
6 Derivative financial instruments
Asacts Labllities Assets Liabtlities
2012 2012 201 201

Em £m £m £m
Currency swaps - (0 6) 09 -
interest rate swaps - - - {06)
Forward foreign exchange contracts o7 (2 6) 64 38)

07 (32) 73 {44)
Analysed as
Non-current - {0 &) 09 02
Current 07 {2 6) 64 42

[1 4 (32) 73 44)

The Company holds derivative financial instruments in accordance with the Group's policy i relation to its financial nsk management Details of the

disclosures are set out in note 29 of the Group's consohdated financial statements

7 Deferred tax asset

201

2012 Restated

£m £€m

Capital allowances in excess of deprectation 01 01
Short-term timing differences 58 48
59 49

The movement In the deferred tax asset during the year was as follows

2012 20114

£m £m

At 1 January 49 28
Prior year adjustment - 18
At 1 January restated 49 44
Charged to profit and loss account 08 18
hems taken directly to equity 02 3
At 31 December 59 49
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8 Called up share capitol

Number Number
2012 2012 2011 2011
£m Millions £m Millions

lssued and fully paid
497 327 070 (2011 493,220,805) ordinary shares of 2p each at 1 January 99 497 3 99 493 2
Issued on the exercise of share options 01 12 - 41
498,462,508 (2011 497,327,070) ordinary shares of 2p each at 31 December 10.0 4935 99 497 3

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght te fixed income

Dunng the year 1,135,438 (2011 4,106,265} ordinary shares of 2p each were allotted to the holders of share-based awards or their personal
representatives using newly listed shares

9 Share premium account

2012 201

£m £m

At 1 January 3227 3067
Premium on shares 1ssued a8 160
At 31 December 326 5 3227

|0 Own shares

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Serco Group plc purchased in the market and held by the Serco Group plc Employee
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to satisfy options under the Group's share options schemes Al 31 December 2012, the ESOT held 10,174,594

(2011 8,267,992) shares equal to 2 0% of the current allotted share capital (2011 1 7%} The market value of shares held by the ESCT as at
31 December 2012 was £54 4m {2011 £39 2m)

Il Share-bosed payment reserve

2011

201 Onginalty

2012 Restated reported

£m £m £m

At 1 January 491 8.7 387
Prior year adjustment - 15 -
At 1 January restated 491 402 387
Options over parent s shares awarded to employees of subsidianes 72 71 71
Share-based payment expense 48 42 42

Share options to holders on exercise (36) 20 20)
Tax charge on items taken directly to equity 02 04 -
At 31 December 577 491 480

Details of the share-based payment disclosures are set out in note 37 of the Group's consolidated financial statements
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i 2 Hedging ond transletion reserve

2012 2011

£m £m
At 1 January 19 (0 4)
Farr value (loss)/gam on cash flow hedges dunng the year - 33
Tax credit/(charge) on ems taken directly to equity - (09
Net exchange loss on translation of foreign operations - 1)
At 31 December 19 19

13 Profit and loss account

2011

20m Criginally

2012 Restated Reported

£m £m £m

At 1 January 288 9 2261 2261
Profit for the year 1086 1001 1000
Equity dmidends 4189) (37 3) (37 3)
At 31 December 3556 2889 2888

As permutted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company 1s not presented as part of these accounts

14 Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds

£m
At 31 December 2011 onginally reported 6232
Estimated profit due to transition to FRS101 01
Changes to share-based payment reserve due to transition to FRS101 11
At 31 December 2011 restated 6244

IS5 Contingent liobilities

The Company has provided certain financial guarantees and indemnities in respect of the loans, overdraft and bonding facilities, and other financial
commitments of its subsichanes The total commitment outstanding as at 31 December 2012was £151 Om (2011 £79 7m)

The Company has guaranteed overdrafts, finance leases and bonding facilihes of its joint ventures up to a maximum value of £27 2m (2011 £8 2m)
The actual commitment outstanding at 31 December 2012 was £23 2m (2011 £4 8m)

{n addition to this, the Company and ts subsidianes have provided performance guarantees and indemnities relating to performance bonds and letters
of credit 1Issued by ts banks on its behalf, in the ordinary course of business These are not expected to result in any matenal financial loss

|6 Related parties

The Directors of Serco Group ple had no matenal transactions with the Company or its subsidianes duning the year other than service contracts arxd
Directors' hability insurance Details of tha Direclors’ remuneration are disclosed in the Remuneration Report for the Group

The Company 1s exempt under the terms of FRS 8 Related Party Disclosure, from disclosing related party transactions with entiies that are part

of the Group Full details of the transactions between Serco Group plc and its related parties can be found in note 38 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements
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Supplementary information

Five-year record

212 20M 2010 2009 2008
Revenue £m 4,913 4,646 4,327 3,970 3,124
Adjusted operating profit £m 3148 2901 2587 2297 1652
Adjusted operating margin % 641% 6 24% 598% 579% 529%
Profit before tax £m 3020 2383 2139 1771 1361
Group free cash flow £m 1812 168 3 1858 1373 94 2
Group recourse net debt £m {606 9) (669 8) (303 6) (387 7) (524 5)
Total net debt £m {580 7) {633 ¢} (261 2) {358 5) (514 1)
Adjusted earnings per share p 42 55p 39 59p 34 69p 20 53p 22 20p
Diadend per share P 10 10p 8 40p 7 35p 625p 500p
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Directors, Secretary and Advisors

Chairman
Alastar Lyons CBE

Directors

Ralph D Crosby Jr*
Chnistopher Hyman CBE
Andrew Jenner

David Richardson™* ©
Angie Risley™

Malcolm Wyman*

Secretary
John Hickey

*  Nomn-Executive Director
~  Senor Independent Director

Registered Office

Serco House

16 Bartley Wood Business Park
Bartley Way

Hook

Harmpshire

RG27 sUY

Serco Group plc 1s registered In
England and Wales, No 2048608

Audltors

Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

ECAA 3BZ

Investment Bankers
UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue
London

EC2M 2PP
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Stockbrokers

J P Morgan Cazenove
125 London Wall
London

EC2Y 5AJ

Bark of Amenca Mernlt Lynch
2 King Edward Street
London

EC1A 1HQ

Principal Bankers
HSBC Bank PLC

8 Canada Square
London

E14 SHQ

Solicitors
Linklaters LLP
One Silk Street
London

EC2Y 8HQ

Reglstrars
Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
B8NS9 6DA




Shareholder information

Group website
Go to www serco com Lo catch up on the cuirent share price, latest news in the investors section and read the Annual Report and Accounts

Registrars
Adminsstrative enquines about the holding of Serco Group pic shares and enqumnes in relation to the Serco Dvidend Renvestment Plan (2RIP)
should be directed to

Equiriti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Tel 0871384 2932

There 1s a text phone avallable on 0871 384 2255 for shareholders with hearing difficulties

(Calls cost 8p per minute plus network extras )

Callers from outside the UK should use +44 (0) 121 415 7047

Tetephone ines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday

Dividend reinvestment plan

You can elect to recerve future dividends as shares rather than cash by participating in the DRIP To register, request further information, of to obtain
a copy of terms and conditions booklet and mandate form please contact Equiniti on 0871 384 2932 Alternatvely, these can be downloaded from

the websie www shareview co uk by choosing the Dividend Reinvestment Plan heading within the Share Dealing section under 'Products & Services'

Dividends paid direct to your bank account
# Avoid the nsk of cheques being lost In the post

# No need to present cheques for payment
® Dmdend credited to your account on payment date

To set up a dividend mandate or change your exssting mandated detalls please register with the Shareview website or contact Equimiti on the number
provided above

Global payment services

For overseas shareholders in certain countnes, Equiniti offers an Overseas Payment Service by arrangement with Ciibank Europe PLC This service
offers shareholders the atility to have therr dividend converted into therr focal currency and sent electronically to their local bank account To sign
up for this service, please contact Equiniti on 0871 384 2832 (+44 (0) 121 415 7047 i calling from outside the UK) Alternatively you can download
an application form and terms and conditions from the website www shareview co uk

Electronic communication
You can register for electronic commumcations by wisiting www shareview co uk you will need your shareholder reference number to sign up
After you have registered you will receive ematls alerting you to communications as they become available
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Share dealing
Serco does not endorse any one service for the buying and seling of ts shares However arangements have been made with the following
independent share dealing prowder to offer all sharehclders competitive charges

Alternatively, if shareholders hold a share cerlificate they can also use any bank, bullding scciety or stockbroker offening share dealing faclites
Shareholders in any doubt about buying or selling their shares should seek professional financial advice

Stocktrade

We have arranged a telephone share dealing service with Stocktrade for purchases/sales of Serco Group plc shares You should call +44 (0)131 240 0414
between 8 00am and 4 30pm, Monday to Friday and quote Low Co 330 Commussion s charged at 0 5% on amounts to £10,000 and 0 2% on the
excess thereafter, subject to a mimmum charge of £17 50 Further details and other dealing options can be found at www stockirade co uk/serco

This service 1s not avallable to US residents

Please note that UK share purchases will be subject to 0 5% stamp duty

Shareholder profile
The range and size of ordinary shareholding as at 31 December 2012 1s set out below

Number of Number of
Range of shareholdings shareholders % shares %
1-1,000 4,723 5297 1,909,766 038
1,001 - 5,000 2,956 3315 6,174 683 124
5,001 — 10,000 457 512 3,075 408 062
10,001 - 100,000 494 554 14,868,370 298
100,001 ~ 500 000 163 183 37,266,550 748
500 001 - 1,000,000 43 055 33,719,786 676
1,000,001 — 10,000,000 65 073 172,475,664 3460
10,000,001 and above 10 on 228,972,281 4594
Total 8,917 100 498,462,608 100
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Financial calendar

2012 Full Year Results Announcement
Ex-dnadend date for 2012 final dvidend
Record date for 2012 final dwvidend
Deadline for DRIP mandates

AGM and Intenm Management Statement
Payment date for 2012 final dwdend
Pre-close statement

2013 Half Year Resuils announcement
Ex-dividend date for 2013 intenm dividend
Record date for 2013 intenim dwvidend
Deadline for DRIP mandates

Payment date for 2013 intenm dmidend
Interim Management Statement
Pre-close statement

5 March 2013

13 March 2013

15 March 2013

30 Apnl 2013

15 May 2013

*22 May 2013

*28 June 2013

29 August 2013

*4 September 2013
*6 September 2013
*27 September 2013
*18 October 2013
*14 November 2013
*16 December 2013

* Prowisional and/or subject lo shareholder approval

Designed and produced by FTI Consulting  www fiiconsuting com
Prnted in England by Purepnnt Group  www purepnnt com
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